
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

January 10, 2017 
 

North Liberty  
City Council  

Regular Session 
 



 

 
 

City Administrator Memo 
 



City Council Memo 
for January 10, 2017 
from the desk of Ryan C. Heiar 

 

Ryan C. Heiar, City Administrator 
rheiar@northlibertyiowa.org • office (319) 626-5700 • fax (319) 626-3288 • cell (319) 541-8404 

published January 6, 2017 •page 1 
 

Meetings & Events 

Monday, Jan 9 at 6:00p.m. 

Telecommunications 
Commission 

Tuesday, Jan 10 at 6:30p.m. 

City Council  

Wednesday, Jan 11 at 6:30p.m. 

Planning Commission  

Wednesday, Jan 11 at 7:00p.m. 

Tree & Storm Water Board 

Monday, Jan 16 at 7:00p.m. 

Library Board 

Tuesday, Jan 17 at 5:30p.m. 

City Council Budget 
Workshop   

Tuesday, Jan 24 at 6:30p.m. 

City Council  

Monday, Jan 30 at 4:00p.m. 

Joint Government Meeting 

 

 

 

 

Consent Agenda 
The following items are on the consent agenda and included in your 
packet: 

 City Council Minutes (12/27/16) 
 Claims 
 Liquor License Renewals  

o Red’s Alehouse 
o El Cactus 
o Hoosier Bay Chapter of Delta Water Fowl 
o Sugapeach 

 Wastewater Treatment Plant Project, Change Order #9,  
Tricon Construction Group, $38,110.05 

 Wastewater Treatment Plant Project, Pay Request #16,  
Tricon Construction Group, $301,521.89 

 Sponsored Water Quality Project, Pay Request #5,  Metro  
Pavers, $14,823.80 

 Well Improvement Project, Pay Request #1, Gingerich 
Well & Pump Service, $291,350.75 

 Penn Street ICAAP Project, Pay Request #10, Metro Pavers,  
$3,880.64 

 North Liberty Road/Dubuque Street Project, Pay Request #10,  
Streb Construction Inc., $197,466.70 

FY 16 Audit 
Included in your packet is the FY 16 audit. Steve Kuhl will attend 
Tuesday’s meeting to present the audit and answer any questions. There 
were no major deficiencies identified and, as in previous years, the 
auditor is confident in our internal controls and daily financial practices. 
Overall, I am pleased with audit results and staff’s ability to implement 
the financial operations of the City. 



published January 6, 2017 •page 2 
 

O’Reilly’s Auto Parts Site Plan 
O’Reilly’s has resubmitted building elevations that are consistent with the Council’s requests from the 
December 13 meeting.  In summary, the architect has replaced the vertical red steel on the front of the 
building with masonry and has added additional features to the sides of the building.  Staff recommends 
approval of the new plan.  

Ogden Agreement 
The agreement included in your packet with the Ogden family is a settlement for additional issues that 
were not covered in the initial easement agreement.  In short, we used their property for a longer period 
than was called out in the easement agreement.  In addition, a piece of their equipment was damaged 
after we were off the site and it was alleged that the damaged was caused by rock remaining from the 
project.  The contractor for the project, Langman Construction, paid the Ogden’s directly for the damaged 
equipment.  The agreement notes the payment already made by Langman Construction and states that 
the City will pay $1,050, which will clear up any and all remaining claims.  Staff recommends approval the 
agreement with the Ogdens. 

North Liberty Road Project 
The agenda includes a public hearing and resolution regarding the plans and specification for the North 
Liberty Road project, from Oak Street to where the pavement ends on Penn Street.  Staff recommends 
approval of the plans specifications.  Bids are due on January 16 and it is anticipated that an award 
recommendation will be on the January 24 agenda.  The links below will direct you to videos prepared by 
Shive Hattery that highlight the project limits and scope: 

Project overview: https://vimeo.com/195519610/a9896d46f3 

Side-by-side comparison of existing and future road: https://vimeo.com/195520857/9408a5fc7a  

Communications Commission Ordinance, Third Reading 
The Telecommunications Commission was originally charged with oversight of our franchise agreements 
with local cable service providers, but changes at the state level, and the expiration of those local 
agreements, means the state has appropriated much of that role. However, the department’s public 
relations, community building and other functions are well served with Commission oversight, and this 
updated ordinance gives the Commission an advisory role in the department’s work with the public.  Staff 
recommends approval of the third and final reading.   

Mayoral Vacancy 
Included in your packet is a memo from City Attorney Scott Peterson regarding the options for appointing 
or holding a special election for the Mayor position.  Whatever option is decided, it can be approved by a 
motion/second/voice vote – a resolution is not needed.  Staff is seeking direction from the group so that 
the Mayoral replacement process can begin.   



 

 
 

Agenda 
 



 

City of North Liberty – 2017                   Updated: January 6, 2017; 2:00 p.m. 
Page: 1 3 

AGENDA 
North Liberty City Council 

January 10, 2017 
Regular Session 

6:30 p.m. 
City Council Chambers 

 
1. Call to order   
 
2. Roll call 

 
3. Approval of the Agenda 

 
4. Consent Agenda 

A. City Council Minutes, Regular Session, December 27, 2016 
B. Claims 
C. Liquor License Renewal, Red’s Alehouse – Ownership change 
D. Liquor License Renewal, El Cactus, Class C Liquor License with Sunday sales endorsement 
E. Liquor License Application, Sugapeach, Special Class C Liquor License with Sunday sales 

endorsement 
F. Liquor License Application, Hoosier Bay Chapter of Delta Water Fowl, Special Class C Liquor 

License; January 27, 2017 Event 
G. Wastewater Treatment Plant Project, Change Order Number 9, Tricon Construction Group, 

$38,110.05 
H. Wastewater Treatment Plant Project, Pay Request Number 16, Tricon Construction Group, 

$301,521.89 
I. Sponsored Water Quality Project, Pay Request Number 5,  Metro Pavers, $14,823.80 
J. Well Improvement Project, Pay Request Number 1, Gingerich Well & Pump Service, 

$291,350.75 
K. Penn Street ICAAP, Pay Request Number 10, Metro Pavers, $3,880.64 

 
5. Public Comment 

 
6. City Planner Report 

 
7. Assistant City Administrator Report  

 



City of North Liberty – 2017                   Updated: January 6, 2017; 2:00 p.m. 
Page: 2 

8. City Administrator Report  
 

9. Mayor Pro Tem Report  
 

10. FY 2016 Audit Report 
A. Resolution Number 2017-01, A Resolution accepting the Audit Report for Fiscal Year 2016 as 

completed by Winkel, Parker & Foster CPA, PC 
 

11. O’Reilly’s Auto Parts Site Plan 
A. Consideration of removing from the table 
B. Staff and Commission recommendations 
C. Applicant presentation 
D. Resolution Number 2017-02, A Resolution approving the Development Site Plan for Lot A, 

Wallace First Subdivision, North Liberty, Iowa  
 

12. Ogden Agreement 
A. Resolution Number 2017-03, A Resolution approving the Agreement between Larry H. Ogden 

and Mary Jo Ogden and the City of North Liberty, Johnson County, Iowa  
 

13. North Liberty Road Improvements Project 
A. Public hearing regarding plans and specifications, form of contract and estimate of costs for 

the North Liberty Road Improvements Project  
B. Resolution Number 2017-04, A Resolution approving and confirming plans, specifications, 

form of contract and estimate of cost for the North Liberty Road Improvements Project 
 

14. Telecommunications Commission Ordinance 
A. Third consideration and adoption of Ordinance Number 2016-18, An Ordinance amending 

Chapter 25, “Telecommunications Commission” of the North Liberty Code of Ordinances by 
repealing current Chapter 25 and adopting new Chapter 25, “Communications Advisory 
Commission” 

 
15. Mayoral Vacancy 

A. Discussion and possible action regarding Mayoral vacancy 
 

16. Old Business 
 
17. New Business 

 
18.  Adjournment 
 
 
 



 

 
 

Consent Agenda 
 



 
 

 

City of North Liberty – 2016                   Updated: December 28, 2016; 12:30 p.m. 
Page: 1  

 
AGENDA 

North Liberty City Council 
December 27, 2016 

Regular Session 
6:30 p.m. 

City Council Chambers 
 

Call to order   
At 6:30 p.m., Mayor Amy Nielsen called the December 27, 2016 Regular Session of the 
North Liberty Council to order.  Council members present: Terry Donahue, Chris Hoffman, 
Jim Sayre and Brian Wayson; absent: Annie Pollock. 
 
Other present: Scott Peterson, Dean Wheatley, Megan Benischek, Mary Byers, Ryan Heiar 
(by phone),  Scott Rundle, Channel 2 News and other interested parties. 
 
Approval of the Agenda 
Donahue moved, seconded by Hoffman to approve the agenda.  The vote was: ayes-- 
Donahue, Hoffman, Sayre, Wayson; nays—none:  absent: Pollock.  Motion carried. 

 
Consent Agenda 
Sayre moved, seconded by Wayson, to approve the Consent Agenda including City Council 
Minutes of the Regular Session of December 13, 2016; the attached claims; November 
Revenues; Liquor License Renewal, Walgreens, Class E Liquor License with Sunday Sales 
endorsement.  The vote was: ayes--Wayson, Sayre, Hoffman, Donahue; nays--absent: 
Pollock.  Motion carried. 

 
Public Comment 
No Public Comment was offered. 

 
City Planner Report 
City Planner Wheatley handed out a graph showing historic monthly housing starts in 
building permits values North Liberty and also gave an update on the North Liberty Transit 
System. 
 
City Attorney Report  
Peterson reported that he will not be at the next Council Meeting.  He had given 
information earlier to the Council on their options for the Mayor vacancy, if they choose to 
act at the next meeting.   
 
City Administrator Report  



 

 
 
City of North Liberty – 2016                    Updated: December 28, 2016; 12:30 p.m. 
Page: 2  

Heiar had nothing to report. 
 
Mayor Report  
Nielsen reported on the sweatshirts and dog bowls that the North Liberty Police 
Department is selling for the Fund-raising for the K9 dog. 
 
NLYBS Agreement 
Donahue moved, seconded by Wayson, to approve Resolution Number 2016-126, A 
Resolution approving the Agreement for Baseball and Softball Leagues between the City of 
North Liberty and North Liberty Youth Baseball/Softball.  After discussion, the vote was:  
ayes-- Hoffman, Sayre, Wayson, Donahue; nays—none; absent Pollock.  Motion carried. 

 
Forevergreen Road Utilities  
Hoffman moved, seconded by Wayson, to approve Resolution Number 2016-127, A 
Resolution approving the Services Agreement between the City of North Liberty and Shive-
Hattery, Inc.  After discussion, the vote was: ayes-- Wayson, Hoffman, Donahue, Sayre; 
nays—none; absent—Pollock.  Motion carried. 

 
North Liberty Road Project 
Wayson moved, seconded by Hoffman, to approve Resolution Number 2016-128, A 
Resolution approving the Temporary Construction Easement Agreements and Public 
Easement Agreements for the North Liberty Road Improvement Project between numerous 
property owners and the City of North Liberty, Johnson County, Iowa.  After discussion, the 
vote was: ayes—Sayre, Donahue, Hoffman, Wayson; nays-none; absent—Pollock.  Motion 
carried.  
 
Building Code Ordinance Amendments 
Donahue moved, seconded by Sayre, to approve the Third consideration and adoption of 
Ordinance Number 2016-17, An Ordinance amending Chapters 90, 96, 155, 156, 157 and 
180 of the North Liberty Code of Ordinances regarding Building Department 
Administrative Provisions and Building Code Requirements.  After discussion, the vote was: 
ayes—Hoffman, Sayre, Donahue, Wayson; nays—none; absent—Pollock.  Motion carried.  

 
Telecommunications Commission Ordinance 
Hoffman moved, seconded by Donahue, to consideration of Ordinance Number 2016-18, An 
Ordinance amending Chapter 25, “Telecommunications Commission” of the North Liberty 
Code of Ordinances by repealing current Chapter 25 and adopting new Chapter 25, 
“Communications Advisory Commission”.   After discussion, the vote was: ayes-- Sayre, 
Wayson, Hoffman, Donahue; nays—none; absent—Pollock.  Motion carried. 

 
Old Business 
No old business was reported. 
 
New Business 
Donahue presented a plaque to Mayor Nielsen for her service to the City of North Liberty. 



 

 
 
City of North Liberty – 2016                    Updated: December 28, 2016; 12:30 p.m. 
Page: 3  

 
Mayor Nielsen thanked everyone for their help during her tenure as Mayor. 
 
Adjournment 
Wayson moved, seconded by Donahue, to adjourn the meeting at 7:15 p.m.  The vote was: 
ayes—Sayre, Wayson, Hoffman, Donahue; nays—none; absent—Pollock.  Motion carried. 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Mayor Nielsen, Mayor 
 
 
      ______________________________________ 
      Mary Byers, Deputy City Clerk 
 
 



License Application (Applicant

Name of Applicant: Chrisma, Inc

Name of Business (DBA): Reds Alehouse

Address of Premises: 405 N. Dubuque

City North Liberty Zip: 52317

State IA

County: Johnson

Business (319) 626-2100

Mailing 18 Fairview Knoll

City Iowa City Zip: 52240

)

Contact Person

Name Faye Swift

Phone: (319) 331-7418 Email fpswiftia@gmail.com

Status of Business

BusinessType: Privately Held Corporation

Corporate ID Number: 124112 Federal Employer ID 421321205

Insurance Company Information

Policy Effective Date: 01/05/2017 Policy Expiration 01/04/2018

Insurance Company: Selective Insurance Company of America

Effective Date: 01/05/2018

Expiration Date:

Classification Class C Liquor License (LC) (Commercial)

Term:12 months

Privileges:

Ownership

Class C Liquor License (LC) (Commercial)

Faye Swift

First Name: Faye Last Name: Swift

City: Coralville State: Iowa Zip: 52241

Position: President

% of Ownership: 63.00% U.S. Citizen: Yes

Matthew Swift

First Name: Matthew Last Name: Swift

City: Iowa City State: Iowa Zip: 52240

Position: Secretary

% of Ownership: 37.00% U.S. Citizen: Yes

 LC0036590 



Dram Cancel Date:

Outdoor Service Effective Outdoor Service Expiration 

Temp Transfer Effective Temp Transfer Expiration Date:

Bond Effective 



License Application (Applicant

Name of Applicant: SAN JUAN INC

Name of Business (DBA): EL CACTUS AUTHENTIC MEXICAN CUISINE

Address of Premises: 40 SUGAR CREEK LN #5

City North Liberty Zip: 52317

State IA

County: Johnson

Business (319) 665-2046

Mailing 40 Sugar Creek Ln

City North Liberty Zip: 52317

)

Contact Person

Name Ivan Armendariz

Phone: (319) 499-8603 Email ivanarmendariz6012@gmail.com

Status of Business

BusinessType: Privately Held Corporation

Corporate ID Number: 488181 Federal Employer ID 47-1950157

Insurance Company Information

Policy Effective Date: 01/20/2017 Policy Expiration 01/20/2018

Dram Cancel Date:

Outdoor Service Effective Outdoor Service Expiration 

Temp Transfer Effective Temp Transfer Expiration Date:

Bond Effective 

Insurance Company: Auto Owners Insurance Company

Effective Date: 01/20/2017

Expiration Date: 01/19/2018

Classification Class C Liquor License (LC) (Commercial)

Term:12 months

Privileges:

Ownership

Class C Liquor License (LC) (Commercial)

Sunday Sales

ERICKA MARTINEZ

First Name: ERICKA Last Name: MARTINEZ

City: NORTH LIBERTY State: Iowa Zip: 52317

Position: PRESIDENT

% of Ownership: 100.00% U.S. Citizen: Yes

 LC0041399 



 
 

      North Liberty Police Department 

                     5 E Cherry St•PO Box 77•North Liberty, Iowa•52317•(319) 626‐5724/Fax: 5743 

         

 

December 15, 2016 
 
Liquor License Check 
 
Business:   El Cactus 
    40 Sugar Creek Lane Unit 5 & 6 

North Liberty, IA  52317 
   
Owner:  Ericka L. Martinez Cautino  (DOB: 1992) 

 
A record check of the above business and owner shows: 

 Trespass calls – 2 

 Civil disputes – 1 

 Thefts – 1 

 Fight/disturbances – 1 
 

 According to our records, the owner, Ericka, was issued a criminal trespass 
warning for the property on August 17, 2016.  No other calls involving Ericka 
have been reported at the business since that date.  It is unsure if the business 
has changed ownership, but a change in the liquor license has not been made. 

 

North Liberty Police Department does not have any other documented contacts with the 

owner or business that raises concerns.  

 
Record check completed by Sergeant Chris Shine 
 
 

   





North Liberty Fire Dept (IA)
25 W Cherry St PO Box 77
North Liberty, IA 52317

Fire Dept Violation Notice

December 7, 2016

El Cactus
40 Sugar Creek LN, Suite #5 & 6
North Liberty, IA 52317

ORDER TO COMPLY: Since these conditions are contrary to law, you must correct them upon receipt of this notice.  An 
inspection to determine compliance with this Notice will be conducted on or after 30 days from Dec 7, 2016.

If you fail to comply with this notice before the re-inspection date listed, you may be liable for the penalties & fees 
provided for by law for such violations.

Fire Inspection Fees:
- Initial Fire Inspection: No Charge
- 1st Re-Inspection:  No Charge
- 2nd Re-Inspection:  $75.00
- Additional Re-Inspections:  Municipal Infraction, Daily until Corrected.

Violations

703.1 Maintenance

Note Replace Sheetrock on wall in furnace room.

605.3 Working space and clearance

Note A working space of not less than 30 inches in width, 36 inches in depth and 78 inches in height shall be 
provided in front of electrical service equipment. Where the electrical service equipment is wider than 
30 inches the working space shall not be less than the width of the equipment. No storage of any 
materials shall be located within the designated working space.



Violations

605.4.3 Installation

Note Relocatable power tap cords shall not extend through walls, ceilings, floors, under doors or floor 
coverings, or be subject to environmental or physical damage. Must be plugged directly into an outlet. 
Must be placed on the floor or secured to the wall.

-- surge protector next to tappers has exposed wiring.  Needs to be replaced and mounted.

605.6 Unapproved conditions

Note Open junction boxes and open-wiring splices shall be prohibited. Approved covers shall be provided for 
all switch and electrical outlet boxes. No exposed wiring.

-- near restrooms, install cover for light switch.
-- outlet behind tv in bar is missing cover.

3003.5.3 Securing compressed gas containers

Note Securing compressed gas containers, cylinders and tanks. Compressed gas containers, cylinders and 
tanks shall be secured to prevent falling caused by contact, vibration or seismic activity. Tanks must be 
secured to the wall or non-movable object. Chain must be anchored on both sides of the tank.

--  secure all cylinders

605.4 Multiplug adapters

Note Multiplug adapters, such as cube adapters, unfused plug strips or any other device not complying with 
NFPA 70 shall be prohibited.

-- north tv.  Replace multi plug adapter with mounted surge protector.
-- tv in bar.  Replace must plug adapter with mounted surge protector 



803.1 General

Note The provisions of this section shall limit the allowable flame spread and smoke development of interior 
wall and ceiling finishes and interior wall and ceiling trim in existing buildings based on location and 
occupancy classification.

Replace missing, broken and ceiling tiles with holes through restaurant.

313.1 General

Note Fire extinguishers shall be inspected either at a minimum of 30-day intervals by staff. Documentation of 
the 30 day inspection shall be recorded on the backside of the inspection tag (Date & Initials) or on a log 
book.

-- office, remove empty gas can.

609.3.3.1 TBL Cleaning Intervals

Note -- Current cooking operations is allowing cooking exhaust/smoke to vent throughout the restaurant which can be 
seen with a haze in the seating area.  Move all cooking  equipment under the hood at least 6" from the edge of the 
hood.

--Have mechanical contractor look at your exhaust fan to verify if it is operating correctly and sized correctly for 
your cooking operation.  Have them provide a report to the building and fire department.

--  cheese melter (left of hood) was added without approval since last inspection.  Is currently not installed 
correctly with exhaust and is using an extension cord.  Submit application specifications to building depart for 
electrical, gas and mechanical review.



506.5.3 Exhaust fan mounting

Note Kitchen hood upblast exhaust fan is required to have hinges installed.  Past deadline given to install hinges.  Install 
in the next 45 days.  

7.2.1.2 30 Day Inspection.

Note Fire extinguishers shall be inspected either at a minimum of 30-day intervals by staff. Documentation of 
the 30 day inspection shall be recorded on the backside of the inspection tag (Date & Initials) or on a log 
book.

906.7 Hangers and brackets

Note Hand-held portable fire extinguishers, not housed in cabinets, shall be installed on the hangers or 
brackets supplied. Hangers or brackets shall be securely anchored to the mounting surface in 
accordance with the manufacturer’s installation instructions.

--  remount fire extinguisher near back door.

605.5 Extension cords

Note Extension cords and flexible cords shall not be a substitute for permanent wiring. Extension cords and 
flexible cords shall not be affixed to structures, extended through walls, ceilings or floors, or under doors 
or floor coverings, nor shall such cords be subject to environmental damage or physical impact. 
Extension cords shall be used only with portable appliances.

-- remove extension cord to Christmas tree.  Can use surge protector.
-- under bar sink, surge protector is plugged into extension cord.  Remove extension cord, plunge surge protector 
directly into outlet and mount to the wall.



Visit us at www.nlfire.org
Complete code references can be found at: http://www.nlfire.org/permits.html

HARDIN BRYAN HARDIN
Inspector

Ivan ruiz



License Application (Applicant

Name of Applicant: SUGAPEACH Chicken & Fish Fry 

Name of Business (DBA): SUGAPEACH Chicken & Fish Fry

Address of Premises: 650 Pacha Parkway 

City North Liberty Zip: 52317

State IA

County: Johnson

Business (319) 826-1809

Mailing 650 Pacha Parkway 

City North Liberty Zip: 52317

)

Contact Person

Name Chad Simmons

Phone: (773) 531-7051 Email info@iowasoulfood.com

Status of Business

BusinessType: Limited Liability Company

Corporate ID Number: 516536 Federal Employer ID 81-1612994

Insurance Company Information

Policy Effective Date: 01/11/2017 Policy Expiration 01/11/2018

Dram Cancel Date:

Outdoor Service Effective Outdoor Service Expiration 

Temp Transfer Effective Temp Transfer Expiration Date:

Bond Effective 

Insurance Company: MOUNT VERNON FIRE INS CO

Effective Date: 01/11/2017

Expiration Date: 01/01/1900

Classification Special Class C Liquor License (BW) (Beer/Wine)

Term:12 months

Privileges:

Ownership

Special Class C Liquor License (BW) (Beer/Wine)

Sunday Sales

Chad Simmons

First Name: Chad Last Name: Simmons

City: North Liberty State: Iowa Zip: 52317

Position: Owner

% of Ownership: 90.00% U.S. Citizen: Yes





North Liberty Fire Dept (IA)
25 W Cherry St PO Box 77
North Liberty, IA 52317

Fire Dept Violation Notice

January 4, 2017

SugaPeach
650 Pacha PKY, 1 & 2
North Liberty, IA 52317

ORDER TO COMPLY: Since these conditions are contrary to law, you must correct them upon receipt of this notice.  An 
inspection to determine compliance with this Notice will be conducted on or after 30 days from Jan 4, 2017.

If you fail to comply with this notice before the re-inspection date listed, you may be liable for the penalties & fees 
provided for by law for such violations.

Fire Inspection Fees:
- Initial Fire Inspection: No Charge
- 1st Re-Inspection:  No Charge
- 2nd Re-Inspection:  $75.00
- Additional Re-Inspections:  Municipal Infraction, Daily until Corrected.

Violations

1003.6 Means of egress continuity

Note The path of egress travel along a means of egress shall not be interrupted by any building element 
other than a means of egress component as specified in this chapter. Obstructions shall not be placed in the 
required width of a means of egress except projections permitted by this chapter. The required 
capacity of a means of egress system shall not be diminished along the path of egress travel.

--  remove tables from back hallway.

906.7 Hangers and brackets

Note Hand-held portable fire extinguishers, not housed in cabinets, shall be installed on the hangers or 
brackets supplied. Hangers or brackets shall be securely anchored to the mounting surface in 
accordance with the manufacturer’s installation instructions.

-- near front entrance.



3003.5.3 Securing compressed gas containers

Note
Compressed gas containers, cylinders and tanks, except those designed for use in a horizontal position, 
and all compressed gas containers, cylinders and tanks containing nonliquefied gases, shall be stored in 
an upright position with the valve end up.
-- 

Visit us at www.nlfire.org
Complete code references can be found at: http://www.nlfire.org/permits.html

HARDIN BRYAN HARDIN
Inspector

Carol Cater-Simmons



 
 

      North Liberty Police Department 

                     5 E Cherry St•PO Box 77•North Liberty, Iowa•52317•(319) 626‐5724/Fax: 5743 

         

 

December 15, 2016 
 
Liquor License Check 
 
Business:     Sugapeach Chicken & Fish Fry  
    650 Pacha Parkway 

North Liberty, IA  52317 
   
Owner:  Chad Simmons      (DOB: 1966)                 
 
Civil Lawsuits in which he is the defendant: 
 
         Date Created  Case Status    Case Disposition 

 8/22/2016    Pending   

 8/23/2016    Pending 
 
North Liberty Police does not have any documented call involving the owner or the business.  I 
recommend the license to be granted. 
 
 
This records check was conducted on 12/15/16 by Sergeant Chris Shine 

 
 

   





License Application (Applicant

Name of Applicant: Delta Waterfowl Foundation 

Name of Business (DBA): Hoosier Bay Chapter of Delta Waterfowl

Address of Premises: 980 NORTHFRONT ST.

City North Liberty Zip: 52317

State IA

County: Johnson

Business (319) 750-4564

Mailing 2207 Miler St.

City Burlington Zip: 52601

)

Contact Person

Name Nicolas Hampton

Phone: (319) 750-4564 Email nhampton@deltawaterfowl.org

Status of Business

BusinessType: Privately Held Corporation

Corporate ID Number: 0 Federal Employer ID 53-0259796

Insurance Company Information

Policy Effective Date: 01/27/2017 Policy Expiration 02/01/2017

Dram Cancel Date:

Outdoor Service Effective Outdoor Service Expiration 

Temp Transfer Effective Temp Transfer Expiration Date:

Bond Effective 

Insurance Company: Illinois Union Insurance Company

Effective Date: 01/27/2017

Expiration Date: 01/01/1900

Classification Special Class C Liquor License (BW) (Beer/Wine)

Term:5 days

Privileges:

Ownership

Special Class C Liquor License (BW) (Beer/Wine)

Nicolas Hampton

First Name: Nicolas Last Name: Hampton

City: Burlington State: Iowa Zip: 52601

Position: Regional Director

% of Ownership: 0.00% U.S. Citizen: Yes





Phase II Wastewater Treatment Plant Improvements Project 

Change Order Summary 

Project Bid Price: $15,621,000.00

Change Orders To Date 12/22/2016

No. Cost

1 $3,862.41

2 $23,001.91

3 $6,448.07

4 $9,908.71

5 $62,335.01

6 $3,942.11

7 $9,069.92

8 ($928.64)

9 $38,110.05

Total Change Orders $155,749.55

% of Project Cost 1.00%

Work Change Directives To Date 12/22/2016

No. Estimated Cost

1 --- Cost of $3506.54 in CO #3

2 $13,952.88

3 --- Cost of $1,414.48 in CO #9

4 --- Cost of $2,833.97 in CO #9

Total Work Change Directives $13,952.88

% of Project Cost 0.09%

Other Known Outstanding Potential Change Order Items to Date* 12/22/2016

Estimated Amount $110,994.13

% of Project Cost 0.71%

* These are items that have been requested to be added to the project by 

Contractor, Owner, or Engineer.  Pricing has been received, but not finalized.

These will not become final until approved / rejected by Owner.  

There are additional items for which pricing has not yet been received.  Estimates for

these items was included in the estimated amount.

Total for All Change Orders, Work Change Directives, & Other Known items 12/22/2016

Totals for CO, WCD, & Other $280,696.56

% of Project Cost 1.80%



EJCDC® C-941, Change Order. 
Prepared and published 2013 by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee.   

Page 1 of 2 
 

 Change Order No. 9 

 
Date of Issuance: December 22, 2016 Effective Date: June 25, 2015 

Owner: City of North Liberty, Iowa Owner's Contract No.: N/A 

Contractor: Tricon Construction Group, Dubuque, IA Contractor’s Project No.: 15-012-IA 

Engineer: FOX Engineering Engineer's Project No.: 2489-11A.660 

Project: Phase II WWTP Improvements Contract Name:  

  
The Contract is modified as follows upon execution of this Change Order: 

Description:  

Item 1 Change Proposal Request (CPR) No. 009 (Contractor’s Change Order Request (COR) No. 28R3): 
Upgrade extension stem material from carbon steel to 316L stainless steel for two plug valves installed 
in the WAS pit, and add stem guides for the extension stems.  Add $5,026.43. 

Item 2 CPR No. 017 (Contractor’s COR No. 25R2): Expansion and modification of existing security system to 
extend it to new building doors and windows.  CPR includes material and labor to install conduit and 
wire for the security system in the Control Building, Biosolids Dewatering Facility, and Secondary 
Treatment Building addition.  Installation of security devices and programming is not included in the 
cost and will be secured by the City outside of the project.  Add $23,193.45 and 14 Days. 

Item 3 COR No. 48: Per Request for Information (RFI) 95, install required interlock wiring from auxiliary 
contacts to the variable frequency drive disconnects. The auxiliary contacts are used to stop the VFD 
output prior to turning off the motor and serve as part of the automatic operation of the VFDs.  Add 
$5,029.76. 

Item 4 COR No. 49: Install required power wiring and conduit from panel UPS2 to the membrane control 
panel CPL 4.4. Add $611.96. 

Item 5 Work Change Directive (WCD) No. 003: Add control wiring to membrane air relief line control valve FV-
3468 located on the 8 inch permeate pipe.  Add $1,414.48. 

Item 6 WCD No. 004: Add permeate pump pressure switch control wiring to pressure switches located on the 
upstream and downstream sides of each of the four (4) permeate pumps.  Complete programming for 
the permeate pumps to run in reverse to backpulse the membranes.  Add $2,833.97. 

Attachments:  CPR No. 009 (Contractor COR 28R3), CPR 017 (Contractor COR 37), Contractor COR No. 48 (RFI 
No. 95), Contractor COR No. 49, WCD No. 003, WCD No. 004 
 
 
 











Owner:  City of North Liberty Project: Penn Street ICAAP Improvements Contract: STP-A-5557(619)--86-52 Pay App# 10

Contractor:  Metro Pavers Date 12/30/2016

Item Item Code Item Unit Unit Cost Qty Cost Qty Cost Qty Cost Qty Cost Qty Cost Qty Cost

1 2101-0850002 CLEARING AND GRUBBING UNIT 30.00$               188.8 $5,640.00 188.80     $5,664.00 188.8 5,640.00$         188.80     5,664.00$     

2 2102-2710070 EXCAVATION, CLASS 10, ROADWAY AND BORROW    CY 18.00$               2465 $44,370.00 2,465.00   $44,370.00 3400 $61,200.00 3,498.89   $62,980.02 5865 105,570.00$       5,963.89   107,350.02$   

3 2105-8425005 TOPSOIL, FURNISH AND SPREAD    CY 42.00$               422 $17,724.00 422.00     $17,724.00 422 17,724.00$        422.00     17,724.00$    

4 2105-8425015 TOPSOIL, STRIP, SALVAGE AND SPREAD CY 12.80$               1202 $15,385.60 1,202.00   $15,385.60 1484 $18,995.20 1,484.00   $18,995.20 2686 34,380.80$        2,686.00   34,380.80$    

5 2109-8225100 SPECIAL COMPACTION OF SUBGRADE STA 535.00$              23.6 $12,626.00 23.60      $12,626.00 25.8 $13,803.00 25.80      $13,803.00 49.4 26,429.00$        49.40      26,429.00$    

6 2115-0100000 MODIFIED SUBBASE    CY 28.00$               765 $21,420.00 801.48     $22,441.44 1040 $29,120.00 1,040.00   $29,120.00 1805 50,540.00$        1,841.48   51,561.44$    

7 2123-7450020 SHOULDER FINISHING, EARTH    STA 295.00$              23.6 $6,962.00 23.60      $6,962.00 25.8 $7,611.00 25.80      $7,611.00 49.4 14,573.00$        49.40      14,573.00$    

8 2213-7100400 RELOCATION OF MAIL BOXES    EACH 300.00$              1 $300.00 2.00       $600.00 1 300.00$           2.00       600.00$       

9 2301-1033100 STD/S-F PCC PAV'T, CL C CL 3, 10 IN. SY 44.65$               3784 $168,955.60 3,817.50   $170,451.38 4816 $215,034.40 4,837.30   $215,985.45 8600 383,990.00$       8,654.80   386,436.82$   

10 2301-7000110 PAY ADJ INCENTIVE/DISINCENTIVE FOR PCC PAVEMENT THICKNESS (BY SCHEDULE) EACH 1.00$                3385 $3,385.00 5,113.54   $5,113.54 3779 $3,779.00 6,479.56   $6,479.56 7164 7,164.00$         11,593.10  11,593.10$    

11 2304-0101000 TEMPORARY PAVEMENT    SY 41.25$               85 $3,506.25 85.00      $3,506.25 160 $6,600.00 160.00     $6,600.00 245 10,106.25$        245.00     10,106.25$    

12 2316-0000110 PAY ADJ INCENTIVE/DISINCENTIVE FOR PCC PAVEMENT SMOOTHNESS (BY SCHEDULE) EACH 1.00$                2820 $2,820.00 500.00     $500.00 3149 $3,149.00 -        5969 5,969.00$         500.00     500.00$       

13 2401-6745355 REMOVAL OF CONCRETE FOOTINGS OF HIGHWAY SIGNS    EACH 600.00$              2 $1,200.00 2.00       $1,200.00 2 1,200.00$         2.00       1,200.00$     

14 2401-6750001 REMOVALS, AS PER PLAN    LS 13,000.00$           0.4 $5,200.00 0.40       $5,200.00 0.6 $7,800.00 0.60       $7,800.00 1 13,000.00$        1.00       13,000.00$    

15 2416-0100018 APRONS, CONCRETE, 18 IN. DIA.    EACH 800.00$              1 $800.00 1.00       $800.00 1 800.00$           1.00       800.00$       

16 2416-0101036 REMOVE AND REINSTALL CONCRETE PIPE APRON LESS THAN OR EQUAL TO 36 IN. EACH 600.00$              1 $600.00 1.00       $600.00 1 600.00$           1.00       600.00$       

17 2435-0140148 MANHOLE, STORM SEWER, SW-401, 48 IN. EACH 2,800.00$            1 $2,800.00 1.00       $2,800.00 1 2,800.00$         1.00       2,800.00$     

18 2435-0140172 MANHOLE, STORM SEWER, SW-401, 72 IN. EACH 6,500.00$            1 $6,500.00 1.00       $6,500.00 1 6,500.00$         1.00       6,500.00$     

19 2435-0250900 INTAKE, SW-509    EACH 4,000.00$            9 $36,000.00 9.00       $36,000.00 11 $44,000.00 11.00      $44,000.00 20 80,000.00$        20.00      80,000.00$    

20 2435-0251224 INTAKE, SW-512, 24 IN.    EACH 1,600.00$            2 $3,200.00 2.00       $3,200.00 2 $3,200.00 2.00       $3,200.00 4 6,400.00$         4.00       6,400.00$     

21 2435-0600010 MANHOLE ADJUSTMENT, MINOR EACH 350.00$              1 $350.00 1.00       $350.00 1 350.00$           1.00       350.00$       

22 2435-0700010 CONNECTION TO EXISTING MANHOLE EACH 700.00$              1 $700.00 1.00       $700.00 1 700.00$           1.00       700.00$       

23 2435-0700020 CONNECTION TO EXISTING INTAKE EACH 700.00$              1 $700.00 1 $700.00 1.00       $700.00 2 1,400.00$         1.00       700.00$       

24 2502-8212036 SUBDRAIN, LONGITUDINAL, (SHOULDER) 6 IN. DIA. LF 9.00$                765 $6,885.00 765.00     $6,885.00 1540 $13,860.00 1,077.00   $9,693.00 2305 20,745.00$        1,842.00   16,578.00$    

25 2502-8221006 SUBDRAIN RISER, 6 IN., AS PER PLAN LF 400.00$              2 $800.00 2.00       $800.00 3 $1,200.00 3.00       $1,200.00 5 2,000.00$         5.00       2,000.00$     

26 2502-8221303 SUBDRAIN OUTLET, DR-303    EACH 200.00$              7 $1,400.00 7.00       $1,400.00 6 $1,200.00 6.00       $1,200.00 13 2,600.00$         13.00      2,600.00$     

27 2502-8221305 SUBDRAIN OUTLET, DR-305    EACH 350.00$              1 $350.00 1.00       $350.00 1 350.00$           1.00       350.00$       

28 2503-0114215 STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, RCP 2000D (CL III), 15 IN. LF 62.00$               1153 $71,486.00 1,153.00   $71,486.00 1704 $105,648.00 1,704.00   $105,648.00 2857 177,134.00$       2,857.00   177,134.00$   

29 2503-0114218 STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, RCP 2000D (CL III), 18 IN. LF 70.00$               89 $6,230.00 89.00      $6,230.00 40 $2,800.00 40.00      $2,800.00 129 9,030.00$         129.00     9,030.00$     

30 2503-0114224 STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, RCP 2000D (CL III), 24 IN. LF 80.00$               30 $2,400.00 30.00      $2,400.00 4 $320.00 4.00       $320.00 34 2,720.00$         34.00      2,720.00$     

31 2503-0114236 STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, RCP 2000D (CL III), 36 IN. LF 120.00$              14 $1,680.00 14.00      $1,680.00 14 1,680.00$         14.00      1,680.00$     

33 2503-0200036 REMOVE STORM SEWER PIPE LESS THAN OR EQUAL TO 36 IN.    LF 9.00$                98 $882.00 98.00      $882.00 192 $1,728.00 192.00     $1,728.00 290 2,610.00$         290.00     2,610.00$     

34 2504-01504100 SANITARY SEWER FORCE MAIN, TRENCHED, POLYVINYL CHLORIDE PIPE (PVC), 10 IN. LF 35.00$               1240 $43,400.00 1,240.00   $43,400.00 1240 43,400.00$        1,240.00   43,400.00$    

35 2504-0230000 SEWAGE AIR RELEASE VALVE AND PIT EACH 4,500.00$            1 $4,500.00 1.00       $4,500.00 1 4,500.00$         1.00       4,500.00$     

36 2510-6745850 REMOVAL OF PAVEMENT    SY 9.50$                480 $4,560.00 518.31     $4,923.95 2215 $21,042.50 2,213.80   $21,031.10 2695 25,602.50$        2,732.11   25,955.05$    

37 2512-1725206 CURB AND GUTTER, P.C. CONCRETE, 2.0 FT.    LF 20.00$               1104 $22,080.00 1,104.00   $22,080.00 1104 22,080.00$        1,104.00   22,080.00$    

38 2512-1859000 CURB, SPECIAL, AS PER PLAN LF 7.60$                1340 $10,184.00 1,340.00   $10,184.00 1340 10,184.00$        1,340.00   10,184.00$    

39 2515-2475007 DRIVEWAY, P.C. CONCRETE, 7 IN.    SY 45.00$               75 $3,375.00 75.00      $3,375.00 75 3,375.00$         75.00      3,375.00$     

40 2524-6765010 REMOVE AND REINSTALL SIGN AS PER PLAN EACH 250.00$              4 $1,000.00 3.00       $750.00 2.00       $500.00 4 1,000.00$         5.00       1,250.00$     

41 2524-6765210 REMOVAL OF TYPE A SIGN ASSEMBLY EACH 50.00$               4 $200.00 4.00       $200.00 1 $50.00 5 250.00$           4.00       200.00$       

42 2524-9081260 CONCRETE FOOTING FOR BREAKAWAY SIGN POST, 2'-0" DIA. X6'-0" EACH 575.00$              2 $1,150.00 2.00       $1,150.00 2 1,150.00$         2.00       1,150.00$     

43 2524-9276010 PERFORATED SQUARE STEEL TUBE POSTS LF 11.50$               60 $690.00 60.00      $690.00 60 690.00$           60.00      690.00$       

44 2524-9281121 STEEL BREAKAWAY SIGN POSTS FOR TYPE A OR B SIGNS, W 6 X 12 LF 60.00$               28 $1,680.00 28.00      $1,680.00 28 1,680.00$         28.00      1,680.00$     

45 2524-9325001 TYPE A SIGNS, SHEET ALUMINUM    SF 30.00$               14 $420.00 14.00      $420.00 14 420.00$           14.00      420.00$       

46 2525-0000100 TRAFFIC SIGNALIZATION LS 288,111.00$          1 $288,111.00 0.96       $276,111.00 1 288,111.00$       0.96       276,111.00$   

47 2527-9263118 PAINTED PAVEMENT MARKINGS, EPOXY    STA 47.00$               155.4 $7,303.80 147.83     $6,948.01 140.4 $6,598.80 134.43     $6,318.21 295.8 13,902.60$        282.26     13,266.22$    

48 2527-9263131 WET RETROREFLECTIVE REMOVABLE TAPE MARKINGS STA 115.00$              11 $1,265.00 2.12       $243.80 22 $2,530.00 3.97       $456.55 33 3,795.00$         6.09       700.35$       

49 2527-9263146 PAINTED SYMBOLS AND LEGENDS, EPOXY    EACH 210.00$              9 $1,890.00 9.00       $1,890.00 11 $2,310.00 13.00      $2,730.00 20 4,200.00$         22.00      4,620.00$     

50 2527-9263180 PAVEMENT MARKINGS REMOVED STA 38.50$               158 $6,083.00 158.00     $6,083.00 149 $5,736.50 149.00     $5,736.50 307 11,819.50$        307.00     11,819.50$    

51 2527-9263190 SYMBOLS AND LEGENDS REMOVED EACH 85.00$               10 $850.00 23.00      $1,955.00 5 $425.00 22.00      $1,870.00 15 1,275.00$         45.00      3,825.00$     

52 2528-8445110 TRAFFIC CONTROL    LS 10,500.00$           0.5 $5,250.00 0.49       $5,145.00 0.5 $5,250.00 0.49       $5,145.00 1 10,500.00$        0.98       10,290.00$    

53 2528-8445113 FLAGGER    EACH 435.00$              3 $1,305.00 0.50       $217.50 3 $1,305.00 1.50       $652.50 6 2,610.00$         2.00       870.00$       

54 2533-4980005 MOBILIZATION    LS 100,000.00$          0.5 $50,000.00 0.50       $50,000.00 0.5 $50,000.00 0.50       $50,000.00 1 100,000.00$       1.00       100,000.00$   

55 2554-0114012 WATER MAIN, TRENCHED, POLYVINYL CHLORIDE PIPE (PVC), 12 IN. LF 37.00$               2550 $94,350.00 2,557.00   $94,609.00 2550 94,350.00$        2,557.00   94,609.00$    

56 2554-0124012 WATER MAIN, TRENCHLESS, POLYVINYL CHLORIDE PIPE (PVC), 12 IN. LF 100.00$              420 $42,000.00 420.00     $42,000.00 420 42,000.00$        420.00     42,000.00$    

57 2554-0202200 FITTINGS BY COUNT, DUCTILE IRON, AS PER PLAN EACH 700.00$              5 $3,500.00 6.00       $4,200.00 17 $11,900.00 20.00      $14,000.00 22 15,400.00$        26.00      18,200.00$    

58 2554-0207012 VALVE, GATE, DIP, 12 IN. EACH 2,100.00$            6 $12,600.00 7.00       $14,700.00 6 12,600.00$        7.00       14,700.00$    

59 2554-0210201 FIRE HYDRANT ASSEMBLY, WM-201    EACH 4,500.00$            5 $22,500.00 5.00       $22,500.00 5 22,500.00$        5.00       22,500.00$    

60 2555-0000010 DELIVER AND STOCKPILE SALVAGED MATERIALS LS 1,000.00$            1 $1,000.00 1.00       $1,000.00 1 1,000.00$         1.00       1,000.00$     

61 2599-9999005 PERENNIAL PLANTS EACH 16.00$               3070 $49,120.00 3,094.00   $49,504.00 3070 49,120.00$        3,094.00   49,504.00$    

62 2599-9999009 LIMESTONE EDGING LF 15.00$               969 $14,535.00 969.00     $14,535.00 969 14,535.00$        969.00     14,535.00$    

APPLICATION AND CERTIFICATE FOR PAYMENT

AwardedTo Date

Division 1

Awarded

Division 2 TOTAL

To Date To DateAwarded





 

 
 

FY 2016 Audit Report 
 



~DRAFT 

CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORTS 
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SUPPLEMENTARY AND OTHER INFORMATION 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

JUNE 30, 2016 



CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA 

Table of Contents 

Officials 

Independent Auditor's Report 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Basic Financial Statements: 
Government-wide Financial Statement: 

Cash Basis Statement of Activities and Net Position 
Governmental Fund Financial Statement: 

Statement of Cash Receipts, Disbursements and 
Changes in Cash Balances 

Proprietary Fund Financial Statement: 
Statement of Cash Receipts, Disbursements and 
Changes in Cash Balances 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Other Information: 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule of Receipts, 

Disbursements, and Changes in Balances - Budget 
and Actual (Cash Basis)- All Governmental Funds 
and Proprietary Funds 

Notes to Other Information - Budgetary Reporting 
Schedule of the City's Proportionate Share of the 

Net Pension Liability 
Schedule of City Contributions 
Notes to Other Information - Pension Liability 

Supplementary Information: 
Schedule of Cash Receipts, Disbursements and 
Changes in Cash Balances - Governmental Funds -
General Fund Detail 

Schedule of Cash Receipts, Disbursements and 
Changes in Cash Balances - Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

Schedule of Cash Receipts, Disbursements and 
Changes in Cash Balances - Nonmajor Governmental Funds -
Capital Projects Funds 

Schedule of Cash Receipts, Disbursements and 
Changes in Cash Balances - Proprietary Funds -
Water Enterprise and Sewer Enterprise Funds Detail 

Schedule of Cash Receipts, Disbursements and 
Changes in Cash Balances - Nonmajor Proprietary Funds 

Schedule of Indebtedness 
Bond and Note Maturities 
Schedule of Receipts by Source and Disbursements 

by Function -All Governmental Funds 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

~DRAFT 

Page 

1 

2 

5 

Exhibit 

A 13 

B 17 

c 21 
22 

38 
40 

41 
42 
44 

Schedule 

1 45 

2 51 

3 52 

4 54 

5 56 
6 57 
7 59 

8 67 
9 69 

70 



Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control Over 
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters 
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in 
Accordance With Government Auditing Standards 

Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance for Each Major 
Federal Program and on Internal Control Over Compliance 
Required by the Uniform Guidance 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

~DRAFT 

71 

73 

75 



Name 

Mayor and Council 

Amy Nielsen 

Terry Donahue 

Coleen Chipman 
Terry Donahue 
Chris Hoffman 
Annie Pollocl< 
Brian Wayson 

Amy Nielsen 

Terry Donahue 

Annie Pollock 
Brian Wayson 
Terry Donahue 
Chris Hoffman 
Jim Sayre 

City Staff 

Ryan Heiar 

Tracey Mulcahey 

Debra Hilton 

Scott Peterson 

CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA 

Officials 

Title 

Through December 2015 

Mayor 

Mayor Pro T em 

Council Member 
Council Member 
Council Member 
Council Member 
Council Member 

Beginning January 2016 

Mayor 

Mayor Pro T em 

Council Member 
Council Member 
Council Member 
Council Member 
Council Member 

City Administrator 

City Clerk/Assistant City Administrator 

Treasurer 

City Attorney 

~DRAFT 

Term Expires 

December 2017 

December 2015 

December 2015 
December 2015 
December 2015 
December 2017 
December 2017 

December 2017 

December 2019 

December 2017 
December 2017 
December 2019 
December 2019 
December 2019 



To the Honorable Mayor and 
Members ·of the City Council 

City of North Liberty, Iowa 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Report on the Financial Statements 

~DRAFT 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business type 
activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of North Liberty, Iowa, as of 
and for the year ended June 30, 201 6, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements In accordance 
with the cash basis of accounting described in Note 1. This includes determining that the cash basis of accounting 
is an acceptable basis for the preparation of the financial statements in the circumstances. Management is also 
responsible for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risl< 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the City's preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control. Accordingly, we express no 
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinions. 

130 I 19th Avenue NW 
Cliluon. Iowa 52732 
tel: 563.242.3440 
fax: 563.242.5555 

519 Ki rkwood Avenue 
Iowa City, Town 52240 
tel: 3/9.351.0231 
fax: 319.351 .7720 

2 

www. wpf-cpa.com 



~DRAFT 
Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
cash basis financial position of the governmental activities, the business type activities, each major fund and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of North Uberty, Iowa, as of June 30, 2016, and the respective 
changes in cash basis financial position for the year then ended in accordance with the basis of accounting 
described in Note 1. 

Basis of Accounting 

We draw attention to Note 1 of the financial statements, which describes the basis of accounting. The financial 
statements are prepared on the basis of cash receipts and disbursements, which is a basis of accounting other 
than accounting principles generally accepted In the United States of America. Our opinions are not modified with 
respect to this matter. 

Other Matters 

Supplementary and Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise 
the City of North Liberty, Iowa's basic financial statements. We previously audited, in accordance with the 
standards referred to in the third paragraph of this report, the financial statements for the three years ended June 
30, 2015 (which are not presented herein) and expressed unmodified opinions on those financial statements 
which were prepared on the basis of cash receipts and disbursements. The financial statements for the six years 
ended June 30, 2012 (which are not presented herein) were audited by other auditors and they expressed 
unqualified opinions on those financial statements which were prepared on the basis of cash receipts and 
disbursements. The supplementary Information Included in Schedules 1 through 9, including the Schedule of 
Expenditures of Federal Awards required by Title 2, U.S. Code of Federal Regulations, Part 200, Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance), is 
presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. 

The supplementary information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to 
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic f inancial statements. Such information has 
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain 
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting 
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, 
and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. In our opinion, the supplementary Information Is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the 
basic financial statements taken as a whole. 

Disclaimer of Opinion on Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise 
the City of North Liberty, Iowa's basic financial statements. The other information, the City's Management's 
Discussion and Analysis, the budgetary comparison information, the Schedule of the City's Proportionate Share of 
the Net Pension Liability and the Schedule of City Contributions on pages 5 through 12 and 38 through 44 has not 
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, 
we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it. 

3 



~DRAFT 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 10, 2017 on 
our consideration of the City of North Liberty, Iowa's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The 
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on the Internal control over financial 
reporting or on compliance. That report is an Integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards in considering the City of North Liberty, Iowa's Internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance. 

Iowa City, Iowa 
January 10, 2017 

4 



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS a DRAFT 
The City of North Liberty provides this Management's Discussion and Analysis of its financial 
statements. This narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities is for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2016. We encourage readers to consider this information in conjunction with the City's 
financial stat ements, which follow. 

FV 2016 FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

• Receipts of the City's governmental activities increased almost $3.4 million from FY 2015 to 
FY 2016. Property tax receipts increased significantly, tax increment financing increased 
approximately $600,000 and charges for services decreased approximately $350,000. Bond 
proceeds were comparable to the p revious year, approximately $3.7 million versus the 
previous year 's $3.1 million. 

• Disbursements of the City's governmental activities increased approximately $5.21 million, 
or 27.36%, from FY 2015 to FY 2016. Public safety disbursements increased approximately 
$270,000, public works disbursements increased approximately $115,000, culture and 
recreation disbursements increased approximately $135,000, community and economic 
development disbursements increased approximately $481,000 and general government 
disbursements increased approximately $54,000. Debt service disbursements increased by 
approximately $300,000. Capital project expenditures increased by more than $3.8 million. 

• The City's total cash basis net position increased 33.87%, or approximately $3,355,000, from 
june 30, 2015 to June 30, 2016. Of this amount, the position of the governmental activities 
decreased by approximately $10,000 and the position of the business type activities 
increased by approximately $3,365,000. 

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT 

The annual report consists of a series of financial statements and other information, as follows: 

Management's Discussion and Analysis introduces the basic financial statements and 
provides an analytical overview of the City's financial activities. 

The Government-wide Financial Statement consists of a Cash Basis Statement of Activities 
and Net Position. This statement provides information about the activities of the City as a 
whole and presents an overview of the City's finances. 

The Fund Financial Statements tell how governmental services were financed in the short 
term as well as what remains for future spending. Fund financial statements report the City's 
operations in more detail than the government-wide statement by providing information 
about the most significant funds. 

Notes to Financial Statements provide additional information essential for a full 
understanding of the data provided in the basic financial statements. 

5 



~DRAFT 
Other Information further explains and supports the financial s tatements with a comparison 
to the City's budget for t he year. 

Supplementary Information provides detailed information about the General Fund, nonmajor 
governmental funds, proprietary funds and the City's indebtedness. 

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 

The City of North Liberty maintains its financial records on the basis of cash receipts and 
disbursements and the financial statements of the City are prepared on that basis. The cash basis of 
accounting does not give effect to accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued items. 
Accordingly, the financial statements do not present financial position and results of operations of 
the funds in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Therefore, when 
reviewing the financial information and discussion within this annual report, the reader should keep 
in mind the limitations resulting from the use of the cash basis of accounting. 

REPORTING THE CITY'S FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES 

Government-wide Financial Statement 

One of the most important questions asked about the City's finances is, "Is the City as a whole better 
off or worse off as a result of the year's activities?" The Cash Basis Statement of Activities and Net 
Position reports information which helps answer this question. 

The Cash Basis Statement of Activities and Net Position presents the City's cash basis net position. 
Over time, increases or decreases in the City's net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether 
the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating. 

The Cash Basis Statement of Activities and Net Position is divided into two kinds of activities: 

• Governmental Activities include public safety, public works, health and social services, 
culture and recreation, community and economic development, general government, debt 
service and capital projects. Property taxes, tax increment financing and bond sale proceeds 
finance a significant portion of most of these activities. 

• Business Type Activities include the water, sanitary sewer, and storm sewer utilities and 
utility deposits. These activities are financed primarily by user charges. 

Fund Financial Statements 

The City of North Liberty has two kinds of funds: 

1) Governmental Funds account for most of the City's basic services. These focus on how money 
flows into and out of those funds, and the balances at year-end that are available for spending. 
The governmental funds include: 1) the General Fund, 2) the Special Revenue Funds, such as 
Road Use Tax and Urban Renewal Tax Increment, 3) the Debt Service Funds, and 4) the 
Capital Projects Funds. The governmental fund financial statements provide a detailed, 
short-term view of the City's general government operations a nd the basic services it 

6 



~DRAFT 
provides. Governmental fund information helps determine whether there are more or fewer 
fi nancial resources that can be spent in the near futu re to finance the City's programs. 

The requi red financial statements for governmental funds include a statement of cash 
receipts, disbursements and changes in cash balances. 

2) Proprietary Funds account for the City's enterprise funds. Enterpr ise funds are used to report 
business type activities. The City maintains four enterprise funds to provide separat e 
information on the Water and Sanitary Sewer and Storm Water utility funds and the Utility 
Deposits fund. 

The required financial statements for proprietary funds include a statement of cash receipts, 
disbursements and changes in cash balances. 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

Net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of financial position. The City's cash basis net 
position for governmental activities decreased from a year ago, from approximately $8,256,000 to 
$8,246,000. The analysis that follows focuses on the changes in cash basis net position of 
governmental activities. 

Changes in Cash Basis Net Position of Government Activities 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Receipts: 
Program Receipts : 

Charges for service 
Operating grants, contributions & restricted interest 
Capital grants, contributions & restricted interest 

General Receipts: 
Property tax & tax increment financing 
Unrestricted investment earnings 
Bond and loan pr oceeds 
Other general receipts 

Total Receipts 

Disbursements: 
Public safety 
Public works 
Health and social services 
Culture and recreat ion 
Community and economic development 
General government 
Debt service 
Capital projects 

7 

Year ended june 30, 
FY 2016 FY 2015 

$2,809 
2,078 
1,674 

12,562 
28 

3,723 
194 

$23,068 

$2,836 
1,627 

105 
3,593 
1,648 
1,592 
4,831 
8,024 

$3,157 
1,743 

437 

11,048 
29 

3,138 
154 

$19,706 

$2,563 
1,511 

98 
3,458 
1,166 
1,538 
4,528 
4,182 



~DRAFT 
Total Disbursements 

Change in cash basis net position before transfers 

Transfers, net 

Change in cash basis net position 

Cash basis net position, beginning of year 

Cash basis net position, end of year 

$24,256 

($1,188) 

1,178 

($10) 

8,256 

$8,246 

Receipts by Source 
Charges for 
service 

Other 
general receipts _____ _ 

0.84% 
Bond--

Proceeds 
16.14% 

Unrestricted 
investment 

earnings 
0.12% 

Operating 
12

·
18% 

grants, 
contributions & 

restricted 
interest 
9.01% 

Capital 
grants, 

contributions & 
restricted 
interest 
7.26% 

Disbursements by Function 

Capita l 
Projects 
28.98% 

Debt service 
22.08% 

8 

Public works 

Health and 
social services 

0.51% 

government 
6.86% 

Community 
and economic 
development 

4.76% 

$19,044 

662 

910 

$1,572 

6,684 

$8,256 



~DRAFT 

The City's total receipts for governmental activities increased 17.05% or approximately $3,361,000. 
The total cost of all programs and services, provided by the City, increased by approximately 
$5,211,000 or 27.36%. No new programs were added. 

The City maintained the property tax rate for fiscal year 2016. With the growth in the City)s taxable 
property, tax receipts increased approximately $582,594 in fiscal year 2016. Because of the growth 
in taxable valuation in the City of North Liberty from $617,878,109 in FY 2015 to $677,362,574 in 
FY 2016, general property tax revenues increased by $482,824 even though the City's general city 
tax levy remained at the maximum $8.10 per $1,000 of taxable valuation. The total city levy in FY 
2016 was constant at $11.03264 from the levy in FY 2015. The balance of the levy was made up of a 
$1.11971 debt service levy and a $1.81293 employee benefits levy. 

The cost of all governmental activities this year was approximately $24,256,000, compared to 
approximately $19,044,000 last year. General City operating expenses increased with more capital 
projects than the previous fiscal year. 

Changes in Cash Basis Net Position of Business Type Activities 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Receipts: 
Program receipts: 
Charges for Service 
Water 
Sanitary Sewer 
Storm Water 
Utility Deposits 

General Receipts: 
Unrestricted interest on investments 

Water 
Sanitary Sewer 

Bond and note proceeds 
Total receipts 

Disbursements: 
Water 
Sanitary Sewer 
Storm Water 
Utility Deposits 
Debt Service 

Total Disbursements 
Change in net cash basis net position before transfers 
Transfers, net 

9 

Year Ended June 30, 
2016 2015 

$3,302 
3,814 

193 
170 

1 
1 

16,493 
$23,974 

$4,256 
13,314 

90 
198 

1,573 
$19,431 

$4,543 
(1,178) 

$2,943 
3,530 

187 
175 

1 
1 

966 
$7,803 

$1,845 
6,183 

65 
249 

1,544· 
$9,886 

($2,083) 
(910) 



Change in cash basis net position 

Cash basis net position, beginning of year 

Cash basis net position, end of year 

$3,365 

1,649 

$5,014 

($2,993) 

4,642 

$1,649 

Total business type activities receipts for the fiscal year were approximately $24 million compared 
to approximately $7.8 million last year. The increase was primarily due to significant capital project 
costs in the current fiscal year. The cash basis net position increased approximately $3,365,000 due 
to significant reimbursements through borrowing for capital projects for both water and sewer 
utilities. Total disbursements for the fiscal year increased by 96.5%, or approximately $9,544,000, 
due to the extensive number of capital projects undertaken by the City in fiscal year 2016. 

INDIVIDUAL MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUND ANALYSIS 

As North Liberty completed the year, its governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of 
$8,246,445, a decrease of approximately $10,000 below last year's total of $8,255,7 66. The following 
are the major reasons for the changes in fund balances of the major funds from the prior year. 

General Fund 
• The General Fund balance increased $761,332 from the prior year to $6,346,000. Property 

taxes increased by approximately $561,000. Licenses and permits decreased by 
approximately $73,000 due to a decrease in building permit fees. Intergovernmental 
revenues increased by approximately $134,000. Charges for service decreased by $326,211 
due to fewer recreation fees and inspection fees. Public safety expenditures increased by 
approximately $278,000 due to increased personnel costs in both the police and building 
departments. Culture and recreation costs increased approximately $135,000 due to 
additional programs and costs. Capital project costs for fiscal year 2016 were approximately 
$1,450,000 more than in fiscal year 2015. 

Special Revenue 
• The Special Revenue, Urban Renewal Tax Increment fund cash balance increased by 

$610,843. Collections of the tax increment financing receipts increased by $591,408. The City 
only draws what is necessary to cover costs from this funding source. 

• The Special Revenue, Road Use Tax fund cash balance increased by $313,177. Additional 
funds from the state were received from the extra funds collected. The additional funds are 
being allocated to street improvement projects. 

Debt Service- General Obligation Debt 
• The Debt Service - General Obligation Debt cash balance decreased by approximately 

$231,000. Funds accumulated over the previous years were utilized. 
Debt Service- Road Use Tax Bond Reserve 

• The Debt Service - Road Use Tax Bond Reserve was funded for the first time in fiscal year 
2012. The fund has $149,7 40 in debt service reserve. 

Capital Projects 
• Highway 965 Improvements fund cash balance increased by $375,965 due to proceeds from 

bonds and state grants for project costs exceeding expenditures. 

10 



~DRAFT 
INDIVIDUAL MAJOR BUSINESS TYPE FUND ANALYSIS 

$ The Water Enterprise Fund cash basis net position increased $1,998,035 to $3,653,065, due 
to an increase in the water rates in July 2015, and proceeds from the State Revolving Fund 
bonds to cover project costs that were funded with cash on hand in previous fiscal years. 

• The Sewer Enterprise Fund cash basis net position increased $1,465,708 to $841,253 due to 
capital projects that were cash flowed during previous years being replenished with 
borrowing. 

BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS 

Over the course of the year, the City amended its budget once. The amendment was approved on 
May 24, 2016 and resulted in an increase in operating disbursements of approximately $12,850,000 
due to numerous unplanned expenses including bond refinancing expenditures, minimum wage 
increase, special census cost, playback system replacement, Highway 965 project costs, and other 
capital project expenditures that were not projected to extend into FY 2016. The City had sufficient 
cash balances to absorb these additional costs. An additional $9,932,950 was amended for revenues 
including additional borrowing. 

The actual disbursements for the year were less in all categories than budgeted except Health and 
Social Services with an overage of $350. Capital project disbursements were about $4,000,000 less 
than budgeted due to delay of projects in construction. Business type activities were about 
$7,000,000 less than budgeted due to projects carrying over to the next fiscal year. 

DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

At June 30, 2016, the City had $65,708,000 in bonds and long-term debt compared to $40,905,000 
last year, as shown below. 

General obligation bonds 

Outstanding Debt at Year-End 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Rural Economic Development loan 
Road Use Tax revenue bonds 
Revenue bonds 

Total 

June 30 
2016 

$30,638 
280 

1,390 
33,400 

$65,708 

2015 
$25,458 

320 
1,500 

13,627 

$40,905 

The City also borrowed $1,563,964 on two short-term loan programs with the Iowa Finance 
Authority during the year ended june 30, 2016. One short term loan with a balance of $1,180,057 
was paid off during the year ended June 30, 2016. The outstanding balance of this debt at June 30, 
2016 was $1,350,000. 

] 1 



~DRAFT 
Debt increased as a result of new debt incurred in excess of existing debts being retired. Several 
significant projects like the wastewater t reatment plant expansion project occurred in this fisca l 
year. 

The City of North Liberty continues to carry a Moody's bond rating of Aa3 assigned by national rating 
agencies to the City's debt. The constitution of the State of Iowa limits the amount of general 
obligation debt cities can issue to 5% of the assessed value of all taxable property within the City's 
corporate limits. The City's outstanding general obligation debt of $30,638,000 at June 30, 2016 is 
significantly below its constitutional debt limit of approximately $67 million. 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET AND RATES 

North Liberty City's elected and appointed officials considered many factors when setting the fiscal 
year 2017 budget, tax rates, and fees charged for various City activities. Economic indicators such 
as unemployment, tax base growth, rollback increase were taken into account when adopting the 
budget for fiscal year 2017. Fiscal year 2017 continues the trend of multiple, large capital projects. 
If all of the budget estimates are realized, the City's budgeted cash balance is expected to remain 
relatively steady in the upcoming fiscal year. 

CONTACTING THE CITY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City's finances and to show the 
City's accountability for the money it receives. lf you have questions about this report or need 
additional financial information, contact Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk, 3 Quail Creek Circle, P.O. Box 
77, North Liberty) lA 52317. 

12 



~DRAFT 

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 



CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA ~DRAFT 
Cash Basis Statement of Activities and Net Position 

(Page 1 of 2) 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2016 

Functions/Programs: 
Governmental activities: 

Public safety 
Public works 
Health and social services 
Culture and recreation 
Community and economic development 
General government 
Debt service 
Capital projects 

Total governmental activities 

Business type activities: 
Water 
Sewer 
Utility deposits 
Stormwater management 

Total business type activities 

Total 

General Receipts and Financing Sources (Uses): 
Property tax and other related levies for: 

General purposes 
Debt service 
Other purposes 

Tax increment financing 
Unrestricted interest on investments 
Bond and loan proceeds, net of refundings 
Miscellaneous 
Transfers 

Total general receipts and transfers 

Change in cash basis net position 

Cash basis net position, beginning of year 

Cash basis net position, end of year 

Disbursements 

$ 2,836,301 
1,626,565 

105,350 
3,593,454 
1,647,664 
1,591,679 
4,831,259 
8,023,964 

24,256,236 

4,783,381 
14,359,845 

198,167 
89,532 

19,430,925 

$ 43,687,161 

13 

Charges for 
Service 

$ 147,837 
582,343 

1,018,633 
41,476 

837,877 

181,305 

2,809,471 

3,11 5,795 
3,807,994 

170,440 
192,767 

7,286,996 

$ 10,096,467 

Program Receipts 
Operating 
Grants, 

Contributions, 
and Restricted 

Interest 

$ 306,066 
1,652,749 

35,444 
83,432 

597 

2,078,288 

$ 2,078,288 

Capital Grants, 
Contributions 

and Restricted 
Interest 

$ 

1,673,552 

1,673,552 

$ 1,673,552 



Net (Disbursements) Receipts and 
Changes in Cash Basis Net Position 

Governmental Business Type 
Activities Activities Total 

$ (2,382,398) $ - $ (2,382,398) 
608,527 608,527 

(105,350) (105,350) 
(2,539,377) (2,539,377) 
(1,522,756) (1,522,756) 

(753,205) (753,205) 
(4,831,259) (4,831,259) 
{6,169,107) {6,169,107~ 

{17,694,925) (17,694,925) 

(1,667,586) (1 ,667,586) 
(10,551,851) (1 0,551,851) 

(27,727) (27,727) 
103,235 103,235 

{12,143,929~ {12, 143,929~ 

(17,694,925) (12,143,929) (29,838,854) 

5,806,842 5,806,842 
971,002 971,002 

1,275,335 1,275,335 
4,509,489 4,509,489 

27,931 1,584 29,515 
3,723,426 16,492,701 20,216,127 

193,905 192,173 386,078 
1,177,674 {1,177,674~ 

17,685,604 15,508,784 33,194,388 

(9,321) 3,364,855 3,355,534 

8,255,766 1,649,315 9,905,081 

$ 8,246,445 $ 5,014,170 $ 13,260,615 

(Exhibit B) (Exhibit C) 

Exhibit A ~DRAFT 

14 



Cash Basis Net Position 
Restricted 

Expendable: 
Streets 
Urban renewal 
Capital equipment purchases 
Property improvements 
Trail projects 
Employee benefits 
Debt service 
Hotel/motel tax 
Tree purchases 
Police 
Housing rehabilitation 
Utility deposits 

Unrestricted 

Total cash basis net position 

CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA 

Cash Basis Statement of Activities and Net Position 
(Page 2 of 2) 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2016 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

15 

~DRAFT 



Exhibit A ~DRAFT 

Governmental Business Type 
Activities Activities Total 

$ 2,474,914 $ - $ 2,474,914 
2,116,361 2,116,361 

40,225 40,225 
69,778 69,778 

8,529 8,529 
2,545 2,545 

258,231 1,903,508 2,161,739 
76,384 76,384 
7,213 7,213 
1,931 1,931 

21,246 21,246 
397,780 397,780 

3,169,088 2,712,882 5,881,970 

$ 8,246,445 $ 5,014,170 $ 13,260,615 

16 



CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA ~DRAFT 
Statement of Cash Receipts, Disbursements 

and Changes in Cash Balances -
Governmental Funds 

(Page 1 of 2) 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 201 6 

Special Revenue 
Urban 

General Renewal Road Use 
Fund Tax Increment Tax 

Receipts: 
Property tax $ 5,468,019 $ - $ 
Tax increment financing 4,509,489 
Other city tax 332,077 
Licenses and permits 478,562 
Use of money and property 159,299 
Intergovernmental 582,654 1,652,749 
Charges for service 1,893,581 
Miscellaneous 447,235 

Total receipts 9,361 ,427 4,509,489 1,652,749 

Disbursements: 
Operating: 

Public safety 2,836,301 
Public worl<s 703,448 923,117 
Health and social services 105,350 
Culture and recreation 3,593,454 
Community and economic development 695,990 951,674 
General government 1,591,679 

Debt service 
Capital projects 2,079,674 

Total disbursements 11,605,896 951,674 923,117 

Excess (deficiency) of receipts over (under) disbursements (2,244,469) 3,557,815 729,632 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Proceeds from sale of general obligation bonds 700,000 
Refunding debt service - principal 
Operating transfers in 2,935,105 
Operating transfers (out) (629,304) ~2,946,972) ~41 6,455) 

Total other financing sources (uses) 3,005,801 ~2 ,946,972) (416,4551 

Net change in cash balances 761,332 610,843 313,177 

Cash and cash investments, beginning of year 5,584,922 910,607 798,649 

Cash and cash investments, end of year $ 6,346,254 $ 1,521,450 $ 1,111,826 

17 



Exhibit B 

~DRAFT 

Debt Service Capital Projects Other 
General Road Use Highway Nonmajor 

Obligation Tax- Bond 965 Governmental 
Debt Reserve Improvements Funds Total 

$ 915,503 $ $ $ 1,199,509 $ 7,583,031 
4,509,489 

10,857 17,558 360,492 
478,562 

54 159,353 
44,642 1,532,463 77,460 3,889,968 

1,893,581 
3,059 21,045 471,339 

971,002 1,535,522 1,315,626 19,345,815 

2,836,301 
1,626,565 

105,350 
3,593,454 
1,647,664 
1,591,679 

4,831,259 4,831,259 
2,594,557 3,349,733 8,023,964 

4,831,259 2,594,557 3,349,733 24,256,236 

(3,860,257) ( 1 ,059,035) (2,034,1 07) (4,910,421) 

1,193,426 1,885,000 795,000 4,573,426 
{850,000) {850,000) 

3,285,635 675,000 6,895,740 
~450,000~ p,275,335) (5,718,066) 

3,629,061 1,435,000 194,665 4,901,100 

{231,196) 375,965 {1,839,442) {9,321) 

339,687 149,740 981,435 {509,274~ 8,255,766 

$ 108,491 $ 149,740 $ 1,357,400 $ ~2.348,716) $ 8,246,445 

{Exhibit A) 

18 



Cash basis fund balances: 
Restricted for: 

Street operations 
Street capital projects 
Urban renewal purposes 
Urban renewal projects 
Capital equipment purchases 
Property improvements 
Trail projects 
Employee benefits 
Debt service 
Hotel/motel tax 
Tree purchases 
Police 
Housing rehabilitation 

Assigned for: 
Capital equipment purchases 
Street capita l projects 
Park development 
Stormwater capital projects 
Information technology upgrades 

CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA 

Statement of Cash Receipts, Disbursements 
and Changes in Cash Balances -

Governmenta l Funds 
(Page 2 of 2) 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2016 

General 
Fund 

$ $ 

76,384 
7,213 
1,931 

21,246 

778,591 
1,814,876 

Youth scholarships/recreation capital equipment 
Unassigned 

127,553 
42,999 
50,000 

56,115 
3,369,346 

~DRAFT 

Special Revenue 
Urban 

Renewal 
Tax Increment 

- $ 

1,521,450 

Road Use 
Tax 

1 '111 ,826 

Total cash basis fund balances $ 6,346,254 =$====1 =·5=21=,4=5=0 ===$ ==1=, 1=1=1,=82=6= 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

19 



Exhibit B 

~DRAFT 

Debt Service Capital Projects Other 

General Road Use Highway Non major 
Obligation Tax- Bond 965 Governmental 

Debt Reserve Improvements Funds Total 

$ - $ $ $ $ 1 '1 11 ,826 
1,357,400 5,688 1,363,088 

1,521,450 
594,911 594,911 

40,225 40,225 
69,778 69,778 

8,529 ' 8,529 
2,545 2,545 

108,491 149,740 258,231 
76,384 

7,213 
1,931 

21,246 

778,591 
40,993 1,855,869 

127,553 
42,999 
50,000 
56,115 

~3. 111 ,385} 257,961 

$ 108,491 $ 149,740 $ 1,357,400 $ ~2,348,716} $ 8,246,445 

20 



CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA Exhibit C 

Statement of Cash Receipts , Disbursements 

and Changes in Cash Balances -

~DRAFT Proprietary Funds 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2016 

Other 
Nonmajor 

Water Sewer Proprietary 
Enterprise Enterprise Funds Total 

Operating receipts: 
Charges for service $ 3,115,795 $ 3,807,994 $ 363,207 $ 7,286,996 
Miscellaneous 185,815 5,684 674 192,173 

Total operating receipts 3,301,610 3,813,678 363,881 7,479,169 

Operating disbursements: 
Business type activities 4,256,171 13,313,829 287,699 17,857,699 

Excess (deficiency) of operating receipts 
over (under) operating disbursements (954,561) {9,500,1 51) 76,182 (10,378,530) 

Non-operating receipts and 
(disbursements): 

Interest on cash investments 840 744 1,584 
Debt service {527,210) {1 ,046,016) (1 ,573,226) 

Total non-operating receipts 
and (disbursements) {526,370) (1 ,045,272) p ,571 ,642) 

Excess (deficiency) of receipts 
over (under) disbursements (1.480,931) (10,545,423) 76,182 (11,950,172) 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Proceeds from sale of general 

obligation bonds 2,651,000 2,875,000 5,526,000 
State Revolving Fund loan draws 

Water 1,302,872 1,302,872 
Sewer, net of Interim loan repayment of 

$1,180,057 and retained fee of $100,000 9,663,829 9,663,829 
Operating transfers: 

Operating transfers in 960,668 1,601,503 2,562,171 
Operating transfers (out) ~1,435,574) ~2,129,201 ) (175,070) p,739,845) 

Total other financing 
sources (uses) 3,478,966 12,011,131 (175,070) 15,315,027 

Net change In cash balances 1,998,035 1,465,708 (98,888) 3,364,855 

Cash and cash investments, 
beginning of year 1,655,030 ~624,455) 618,740 1,649,315 

Cash and cash investments, 
end of year $ 3,653,065 $ 841,253 $ 519,852 $ 5,014,170 

(Exhibit A) 

Cash basis fund balances: 
Restricted for: 

Debt service $ 1,257,609 $ 645,899 $ - $ 1,903,508 
Utility deposits 397,780 397,780 

Unrestricted: 
Unrestricted 2,395,456 195,354 122,072 2,712,882 

Total cash basis fund balances $ 3,653,065 $ 841,253 $ 519,852 $ 5,014,170 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

21 



CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA 

Notes to Financial Statements ~DRAFT 
June 30, 2016 

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The City of North Uberty, Iowa is a political subdivision of the State of Iowa located in Johnson County. It 
was first incorporated in 1913 and operates under the Home Rule provisions of the Constitution of Iowa. The 
City operates under the Mayor-Council form of government with the Mayor and Council Members elected on 
a nonpartisan basis. The City provides numerous services to citizens including public safety, public works, 
health and social services, culture and recreation, community and economic development, utilities and 
general government services. 

A. Reporting Entity and Jointly Governed Organizations 

For financial reporting purposes, the City of North Liberty, Iowa has included all funds, organizations, 
agencies, boards, commissions and authorities. The City has also considered all potential component 
units for which it is f inancially accountable and other organizations for which the nature and significance 
of their relationship with the City are such that exclusion would cause the City's financial statements to be 
misleading or incomplete. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board has set forth criteria to be 
considered In determining financial accountability. These criteria include appointing a voting majority of 
an organization's governing body, and 1) the ability of the City to impose its will on that organization or 2) 
the potential for the organization to provide specific benefits or impose specific financial burdens on the 
City. The City has no component units which meet the Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
criteria. 

The City also participates in several jointly governed organizations that provide goods or services to the 
citizenry of the City but do not meet the criteria of a joint venture since there is not ongoing financial 
interest or responsibility by the participating governments. The City and its officials are members of 
various jointly governed organizations, including the Johnson County Assessors Conference Board, 
Johnson County Joint E911 Service Board, Metropolitan Planning Organization of Johnson County, East 
Central Iowa Council of Governments, and the Johnson County Compensation Board. 

B. Basis of Presentation 

Government-wide Financial Statement - The Cash Basis Statement of Activities and Net Position reports 
information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the City. For the most part, the effect of interfund 
activity has been removed from this statement. Governmental activities, which are supported by tax and 
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business type activities, which rely to a 
significant extent on fees and charges for services. 

The Cash Basis Statement of Activities and Net Position presents the City's nonfiduciary net position. 
Net position is reported in the following categories/components: 

Nonexpendable restricted net position is subject to externally imposed stipulations which 
require the cash balance to be maintained permanently by the City. The City has no net 
position required to be reported in this category. 

Expendable restricted net position results when constraints placed on the use of cash 
balances are either externally imposed or imposed by law through constitutional provisions 
or enabling legislation. 

Unrestricted net position consists of cash balances that do not meet the definitions of the 
preceding categories. Unrestricted net position often has constraints on resources imposed 
by management, which can be removed or modified. 

22 



CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA ~DRAFT 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2016 

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

The Cash Basis Statement of Activities and Net Position demonstrates the degree to which the direct 
disbursements of a given function are offset by program receipts. Direct disbursements are those clearly 
identifiable with a specific function. Program receipts include 1) charges to customers or applicants who 
purchase, use or directly benefit from goods, services or privileges provided by a given function and 2) 
grants, contributions and interest on investments restricted to meeting the operational or capital 
requirements of a particular function. Property tax and other items not properly included among program 
receipts are reported instead as general receipts. 

Fund Financial Statements - Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and 
proprietary funds. Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are 
reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. All remaining governmental funds are 
aggregated and reported as nonmajor governmental funds. 

The City reports the following major governmental funds: 

The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. All general tax receipts and 
other receipts not allocated by law or contractual agreement to some other fund are 
accounted for in this fund. From the fund are paid the general operating disbursements, the 
fixed charges and the capital Improvement costs that are not paid from other funds. 

Special Revenue: 

The Urban Renewal Tax Increment Fund is used to account for urban renewal projects 
financed by tax increment financing. 

The Road Use Tax Fund is used to account for the road use tax allocation from the 
State of Iowa to be used for road construction and maintenance. 

Debt Service: 

The Debt Service Fund - General Obligation Debt Fund is utilized to account for the 
payment of interest and principal on the City's general long-term debt. 

The Debt Service Fund - Road Use Tax Bond Reserve Fund is utilized to account for the 
required reserve fund that must be maintained in accordance with the terms of the City's 
road use tax revenue bonds. 

Capital Projects: 

The Capital Projects Fund - Highway 965 Improvements Fund Is used to account for 
improvements to the main arterial highway through the City. 

The City reports the following major proprietary funds: 

The Water Enterprise Fund accounts for the operation and maintenance of the City's water 
system. 

The Sewer Enterprise Fund accounts for the operation and maintenance of the City's waste 
water treatment and sanitary sewer system. 

23 



CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA ~DRAFT 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2016 

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 

The City maintains its financial records on the basis of cash receipts and disbursements and the financial 
statements of the City are prepared on that basis. The cash basis of accounting does not give effect to 
accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued items. Accordingly, the financial statements do not 
present financial position and results of operations of the funds in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Under the terms of grant agreements, the City funds certain programs with a combination of specific cost
reimbursement grants, categorical block grants and general receipts. Thus, when program 
disbursements are paid, there are both restricted and unrestricted cash basis net position available to 
finance the programs. Generally, it is the City's policy to first apply cost-reimbursement grant resources 
to such programs, followed by categorical block grants and then with general receipts. 

When a disbursement In governmental funds can be paid using either restricted or unrestricted 
resources, the City's policy is generally to first apply the disbursement toward restricted fund balance and 
then to less-restrictive classifications - committed, assigned and then unassigned fund balances. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating receipts and disbursements from nonoperating items. Operating 
receipts and disbursements generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods 
in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. All receipts and disbursements not 
meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating receipts and disbursements. 

D. Governmental Cash Basis Fund Balances 

In the governmental fund financial statements, cash basis fund balances are classified as follows: 

Nonspendable - Amounts which cannot be spent because they are legally or contractually 
required to be maintained intact. 

Restricted - Amounts restricted to specific purposes when constraints placed on the use of 
the resources are either externally imposed by creditors, grantors, or state or federal laws or 
imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

Committed w Amounts restricted to use as a result of formal action of the Council and 
generally based on the occurrence of a specific event. 

Assigned -Amounts the Council intends to use for specific purposes. 

Unassigned -All amounts not included in the preceding classifications. 

E. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting 

The budgetary comparison and related disclosures are reported as Other Information. During the year 
ended June 30, 2016, disbursements for the health and social services function exceeded budgeted 
amounts. 

24 



CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA 

Notes to Financial Statements ~DRAFT 
June 30, 2016 

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

F. Property Tax Calendar 

The City's property taxes were extended against the assessed valuation of the City as of January 1, 
2014, to compute the amounts which became liens on property on July 1, 2015. These taxes were due 
and payable by the property owners in two installments on September 30, 2015 and March 31, 2016, at 
the Johnson County Treasurer's Office. These taxes are recognized as income to the City when they are 
received from the county. 

NOTE 2. CASH AND POOLED INVESTMENTS 

NOTE 3. 

The City's deposits in banks and credit unions at June 30, 2016 were entirely covered by federal depository 
insurance or by the State Sinking Fund in accordance with Chapter 12C of the Code of Iowa. This chapter 
provides for additional assessments against the depositories to insure there will be no loss of public funds. 

The City is authorized by statute to Invest public funds in obligations of the United States government, its 
agencies and instrumentalities; certificates of deposit or other evidences of deposit at federally insured 
depository institutions approved by the City Council; prime eligible bankers acceptances; certain high rated 
commercial paper; perfected repurchase agreements; certain registered open-end management investment 
companies; certain joint investment trusts; and warrants or improvement certificates of a drainage district. 

The City uses the fair value hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting principles based on the 
valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices In act ive 
marl<ets for identical assets, Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs and Level 3 inputs are 
significant unobservable inputs. 

Interest rate risk -The City's investment policy limits the investment of operating funds (funds expected to be 
expended in the current budget year or within 15 months of receipt) to instruments that mature within 397 
days. Funds not identified as operating funds may be invested in investments with maturities longer than 397 
days, but the maturities shall be consistent with the needs and uses of the City. 

BONDS AND NOTES PAYABLE 

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for general obligation, road use tax revenue and enterprise 
fund revenue bonds at June 30, 2016 are as follows: 

Year General Obligation Road Use Tax 
Ending Bonds Revenue Bonds 

June 30, PrinciEal Interest PrlnciEal Interest 

2017 $ 4,358,000 $ 662,653 $ 115,000 $ 33, 140 
2018 3,945,000 576,197 115,000 30,840 
2019 3,690,000 496,970 115,000 28,540 
2020 3,685,000 422,135 120,000 26,240 
2021 3,535,000 342,658 120,000 23,840 

2022-2026 11,425,000 707,735 660,000 76,300 
2027-2031 145,000 4,350 

Total $ 30,638,000 $ 3,208,348 $ 1,390,000 $ 223,250 

25 



NOTE 3. 

CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA 

~DRAFT Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2016 

BONDS AND NOTES PAYABLE (Continued} 

Year Enterprise Fund 
Ending Revenue Bonds Total 

June 30, Princieal Interest Princieal Interest 

2017 $ 1,175,000 $ 536,672 $ 5,648,000 $ 1,232,465 
2018 1,593,000 668,468 5,653,000 1,275,505 
2019 1,640,000 660,525 5,445,000 1,186,035 
2020 1,683,000 623,440 5,488,000 1,071,815 
2021 1,727,000 578,443 5,382,000 944,941 

2022-2026 7,696,000 2,224,460 19,781,000 3,008,495 
2027-2031 7,640,000 1,319,317 7,785,000 1,323,667 
2032-2036 8,453,000 606,532 8,453,000 606,532 
2037-2041 1,793,000 31,378 1,793,000 31,378 

Total $ 33,400,000 $ 7,249,235 $ 65,428,000 $ 10,680,833 

General Obligation Urban Renewal Corporate Purpose (Tax Increment Financing) Bonds 

The City has issued several general obligation urban renewal corporate purpose (tax Increment financing) 
bonds for the purpose of defraying a portion of the costs of various construction and refurbishment projects 
within the City's urban renewal districts. Portions of certain other issued general obligation bonds were for 
the same purposes. The bonds are payable solely from the tax increment financing (TIF) receipts generated 
by increased property values in the City's TIF districts and which are credited to the Special Revenue - Urban 
Renewal Tax Increment Fund in accordance with Chapter 403.19 of the Code of Iowa. T IF receipts are 
generally projected to produce 100 percent of the debt service requirements over the life of the bonds. The 
proceeds from the sales of the bonds shall be expended only for purposes which are consistent with the 
plans of the City's urban renewal areas. The bonds are not a general obligation of the City, however, the debt 
is subject to the constitutional debt limitation of the City. At June 30, 2016, the outstanding balances on these 
bonds totaled approximately $19,766, 100, which are payable through June 1, 2026. Total interest remaining 
payable on the bonds at June 30, 2016 was approximately $2,120,500. During the year, principal and 
interest paid on these bonds totaled approximately $3,097,300 and $471,440, respectively. Tax increment 
financing receipts during the year were $4,509,489. 

Revenue Bonds 

The City has pledged future water customer receipts, net of specified operating disbursements, to repay 
three outstanding water revenue bond issues totaling $5,135,000. The bonds were issued between 
September 2008 and April 2014. Proceeds from the sales of the bonds provided financing for the 
construction of several water system improvement projects in the City. The bonds are payable solely from 
water customer defined net receipts and are payable through June 2026. Annual principal and interest 
payments on the bonds are expected to require less than 40 percent of defined net receipts. At June 30, 
2016, total principal and interest remaining to be paid on the bonds was $3,729,445. Principal and interest 
paid on all bonds totaled $420,000 and $105,710, respectively. Total defined net receipts during the year 
were $1 ,494,654. 

The City has pledged future sewer customer receipts, net of specified operating disbursements, to repay 
seven sewer revenue bond Issues totaling $36,390,000. The bonds were issued between March 1998 and 
March 2016. Proceeds from the sales of the bonds provided financing for the construction of and 
improvements to the waste water treatment plant. The bonds are payable solely from sewer customer 
defined net receipts and are payable through June 2037. Annual principal and interest payments on the 
bonds are expected to require less than 45 percent of defined net receipts. At June 30, 2016, total principal 
and Interest remaining to be paid on the bonds was $36,919,791. Principal and interest paid on all bonds 
totaled $718,000 and $309,786, respectively. Total defined net receipts during the year were $2,604,599. 

26 



CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA 

Notes to Financial Statements ~DRAF 
June 30, 2016 

NOTE 3. BONDS AND NOTES PAYABLE (Continued) 

The resolutions providing for the issuance of the enterprise fund revenue notes and bonds include the 
following provisions: 

(a) The notes and bonds will only be redeemed from the future earnings of the enterprise activity and the 
note and bond holders hold a lien on the future earnings of the funds. 

(b) Sufficient monthly cash transfers shall be made to separate sewer and water revenue sinking accounts 
for the purpose of making the principal and Interest payments when due. 

(c) The provisions of the Water Revenue Refunding Bond Series 2014B require that $541,255 be set aside 
into the Water ReseNe Fund and maintained until all water revenue bonds of the City have been fully 
redeemed. 

The provisions of the Sewer Revenue Refunding Bond Series 2014A require that $307,105 be set aside 
into the Sewer Reserve Fund and maintained until all sewer revenue bonds of the City have been fully 
redeemed. 

(d) All funds remaining in the sewer rental and water utilities accounts after the payments of all maintenance 
and operating expenses and required transfers shall be placed in separate water and sewer revenue 
surplus accounts. These accounts are restricted for the purpose of paying any deficiency in the sinking 
funds. As long as the sinking funds have the full amount required to be deposited, any balance in the 
surplus funds may be made available to the City as the Council may from time to time direct. 

(e) User rates shall be established at a level which produces and maintains defined net receipts at the 
following levels: 
Water- equal to at least 120% of the average amount that will come due in any fiscal year during the life 
of the three water revenue bond issues. 
Sewer - equal to at least 125% of the average amount that will come due in any fiscal year during the life 
of the seven sewer revenue bond issues, and equal to at least 125% of the maximum amount that will 
come due in any fiscal year during the life of the seven sewer revenue bonds. On and after June 1, 
2026, these percentages decrease to 110% for all outstanding sewer revenue bond issues. 

The City has pledged future road use tax receipts to repay one road use tax revenue bond issue totaling 
$1,815,000. The bonds were issued in March 2012. Proceeds from the sale of the bonds provided financing 
to pay for a portion of the construction costs of the public works/streets department facility. The bonds are 
payable solely from future road use tax receipts and are payable through June 2027. At June 30, 2016, total 
principal and interest remaining to be paid on the bonds was $1,573,250. During the year, principal and 
interest paid on the bonds totaled $110,000 and $35,340, respectively. 

Rural Economic Development Loan 

During the year ended June 30, 2013, the City received a Rural Economic Development Loan of $360,000 
from Linn County Rural Electric Cooperative Association to provide funds for construction of a portion of the 
library expansion project. The loan is dated May 8, 2013 and has an interest rate of 0%. The loan is due in 
annual installments of $40,000 beginning May 8, 2015, and continuing annually thereafter until final payment 
on May 8, 2023. There is an annual administrative fee of 1% based on the outstanding principal balance. 
During the year ended June 30, 2016, $40,000 was paid on the loan and the balance of the loan at June 30, 
2016 was $280,000. 

27 



CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2016 

NOTE 3. BONDS AND NOTES PAYABLE (Continued) 

Annual maturities of the loan at June 30, 2015 are as follows: 

Year ending June 30, 2017 

Early Redemption of Bonds 

2018 
2019 
2020 
2021 
2022-2023 

$ 

$ 

~DRAFT 

40,000 
40,000 
40,000 
40,000 
40,000 
80,000 

280,000 

On October 8, 2015, the City called the Urban Renewal Corporate Purpose Series 2007A and the General 
Obligation Water Improvement Series 20078 bonds for early redemption. The bonds were redeemed with a 
po1tion of the proceeds of the sale of the General Obligation Corporate Purpose Series 2015A bonds. The 
2015A bonds have an interest rate of 2.00%. Interest rates on the 2007A and 20078 bond issues ranged 
from rates of 3.45% to 4.1 %. The refunding reduced total debt service payments through June 1, 2022 by 
approximately $65,536, and results in an economic gain (difference between present values of the debt 
service payments on the old and new debt) of approximately $63,837. 

NOTE 4. PENSION PLAN 

Plan Description - IPERS membership Is mandatory for employees of the City, except for those covered by 
another retirement system. Employees of the City are provided with pensions through a cost-sharing 
multiple employer defined benefit pension plan administered by Iowa Public Employees' Retirement System 
(IPERS). IPERS issues a stand-alone financial report which is available to the public by mail at 7401 
Register Drive, P.O. Box 9117, Des Moines, Iowa 50306-9117 or at www.ipers.org. 

IPERS benefits are established under Iowa Code Chapter 978 and the administrative rules thereunder. 
Chapter 978 and the administrative rules are the official plan documents. The following brief description is 
provided for general informational purposes only. Refer to the plan documents for more information. 

Pension Benefits - A regular member may retire at normal retirement age and receive monthly benefits 
without an early-retirement reduction. Normal retirement age is age 65, anytime after reaching age 62 with 
20 or more years of covered employment, or when the member's years of service plus the member's age at 
the last birthday equals or exceeds 88, whichever comes first. (These qualifications must be met on the 
member's first month of entitlement to benefits.) Members cannot begin receiving retirement benefits before 
age 55. The formula used to calculate a Regular member's monthly IPERS benefit includes: 

• A multiplier (based on years of service). 
• The member's highest five-year average salary. (For members with service before June 30, 2012, the 

highest three-year average salary as of that date will be used If it Is greater than the highest five-year 
average salary.) 

Protection occupation members may retire at normal retirement age, which is generally age 55. The formula 
used to calculate a protection occupation member's monthly IPERS benefit includes: 

28 



CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA 

Notes to Financial Statements ~DRAFT 
June 30, 2016 

NOTE 4. PENSION PLAN (Continued) 

• 60% of average salary after completion of 22 years of service, plus an additional 1.5% of average salary 
for more than 22 years of service but not more than 30 years of service. 

• The member's highest three-year average salary. 

If a member retires before normal retirement age, the member's monthly retirement benefit will be 
permanently reduced by an early-retirement reduction. The early-retirement reduction is calculated 
differently for service earned before and after July 1, 2012. For service earned before July 1, 2012, the 
reduction is 0.25 percent for each month that the member receives benefits before the member's earliest 
normal retirement age. For service earned starting July 1, 2012, the reduction is 0.50 percent for each 
month that the member receives benefits before age 65. 

Generally, once a member selects a benefit option, a monthly benefit is calculated and remains the same for 
the rest of the member's lifetime. However, to combat the effects of inflation, retirees who began receiving 
benefits prior to July 1990 receive a guaranteed dividend with their regular November benefit payment. 

Disability and Death Benefits - A vested member who is awarded federal Social Security disability or 
Railroad Retirement disability benefits is eligible to claim IPERS benefits regardless of age. Disability 
benefits are not reduced for early retirement. If a member dies before retirement, the member's beneficiary 
will receive a lifetime annuity or a lump-sum payment equal to the present actuarial value of the member's 
accrued benefit or recalculated with a set formula, whichever is greater. When a member dies after 
retirement, death benefits depend on the benefit option the member selected at retirement. 

Contributions - Contribution rates are established by IPERS following the annual actuarial valuation, which 
applies IPERS' Contribution Rate Funding Policy and Actuarial Amortization Method. State statute limits the 
amount rates can increase or decrease each year to 1 percentage point. IPERS Contribution Rate Funding 
Policy requires that the actuarial contribution rate be determined using the "entry age normal" actuarial cost 
method and the actuarial assumptions and methods approved by the IPERS Investment Board. The 
actuarial contribution rate covers normal cost plus the unfunded actuarial liability payment based on a 30-
year amortization period. The payment to amortize the unfunded actuarial liability is determined as a level 
percentage of payroll, based on the Actuarial Amortization Method adopted by the Investment Board. 

In fiscal year 2016, pursuant to the required rates, Regular members contributed 5.95% of covered payroll 
and the City contributed 8.93% of covered payroll, for a total rate of 14.88%, and Protection Occupation 
members contributed 6.56% of covered payroll and the City contributed 9.84% of covered payroll, for a total 
rate of 16.40%. 

The City's contributions to IPERS for the year ended June 30, 2016 were $478,367. 

Net Pension Liability, Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Related to Pensions - At June 30, 2016, the City's liability for its proportionate share of the net pension 
liability totaled $2,545,393. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2015, and the total 
pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that 
date. The City's proportion of the net pension liability was based on the City's share of contributions to 
IPERS relative to the contributions of all IPERS participating employers. At June 30, 2015, the City's 
proportion was 0.051521%, which was an increase of 0.004783% from its proportion measured as of June 
30, 2014. 

For the year ended June 30, 2016, the City's pension expense, deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources totaled $268,146,$651,723 and $859,103, respectively. 

29 



CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA 

~D AFT Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2016 

NOTE 4. PENSION PLAN (Continued) 

There were no non-employer contributing entities to IPERS. 

Actuarial Assumptions - The total pension liability in the June 30, 2015 actuarial valuation was determined 
using the fo llowing actuaria l assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement: 

Rate of Inflation (effective June 30, 2014) 3.00% per annum. 

Rates of salary increase (effective June 30, 2010) 4.00% to 17.00%, average, including 
Inflation. Rates vary by membership group. 

Long-term investment rate of return 
(effective June 30, 1996) 

Wage growth (effective June 30, 1990) 

7.50%, compounded annually, net of 
investment expense, including inflation. 

4.00% per annum, based in 3.00% inflation 
and 1.00% real wage inflation. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2015 valuation were based on the results of actuarial 
experience studies with dates corresponding to those listed above. 

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Mortality Table for Males or Females, as appropriate, with 
adjustments for mortality improvements based on Scale AA. 

The long-term expected rate of return on IPERS' investments was determined using a building-block method 
in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates (expected returns, net of pension plan 
Investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to 
produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighing the expected future real rates of return by the 
target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates 
of geometric real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized In the following table: 

Long-Term 
Asset Expected 

Allocation Real Rate 
Asset Class Percentage of Return 

Core plus fixed income 28% 2.04% 
Domestic equity 24 6.29 
International equity 16 6.75 
Private equity/debt 11 11.32 
Real estate 8 3.48 
Credit opportunities 5 3.63 
U.S. TIPS 5 1.91 
Other real assets 2 6.24 
Cash 1 (0.71) 

Total 100% 

30 



CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA 

Notes to Financial Statements ~ORA T 
June 30, 2016 

NOTE 4. PENSION PLAN (Continued) 

Discount Rate - The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.50%. The projection of 
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed employee contributions will be made at the 
contractually required rate and contributions from the City will be made at contractually required rates, 
actuarially determined. Based on those assumptions, IPERS' f iduciary net position was projected to be 
available to mal<e all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, 
the long-term expected rate of return on IPERS' investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit 
payments to determine the total pension liability. 

Sensitivity of the City's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate -
The following presents the City's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount 
rate of 7.5%, as well as what the City's proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were 
calculated using a discount rate that is 1% lower (6.50 percent) or 1% higher (8.50 percent) than the current 
rate: 

City's proportionate share of the net pension liability: 

1% decrease (6.5%) 
Discount rate (7.5%) 
1% increase (8.5%) 

$ 5,164,895 
2,545,393 

335,247 

IPERS' Fiduciary Net Position - Detailed information about IPERS' fiduciary net position is available in the 
separately issued IPERS financial report which is available on IPERS' website at www.ipers.org. 

NOTE 5. COMPENSATED ABSENCES 

City employees accumulate a limited amount of earned but unused vacation and compensatory hours for 
subsequent use or for payment upon retirement, termination or death. These accumulations are not 
recognized as disbursements by the City until used or paid. The City's approximate liability for earned 
vacation and compensatory time payments payable to employees at June 30, 2016, primarily relating to the 
General Fund, Is as follows: 

Type of Benefit 

Compensatory time 
Vacation 

Total 

Amount 

$ 45,624 
288,452 

$ 334,076 

This liability has been computed based on rates of pay as of June 30, 2016. 

Sick leave is payable when used. It is not paid upon termination, retirement or death. The approximate 
liability for unused sick leave at June 30, 2016, based on rates of pay as of June 30, 2016, is $1,074,542. 

31 



CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA ~DRAFT 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2016 

NOTE 6. SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL CONTRACT 

An agreement between the City and Johnson County Refuse for the period July 1, 2014 through June 30, 
2019, provides the City and its citizens with solid waste collection and disposal services. The agreement 
providing for the services includes the following provisions: 

(a) The City shall pay the contractor a monthly charge of $4.25 per month for each single and two-family 
dwelling unit. These fees are for recyclables. 

(b) The fees for non-recyclable wastes are based on the current Iowa City Landfill tipping fee schedule and 
are subject to change In the event landfill fees increase or decrease. 

NOTE 7. TRANSIT SERVICES CONTRACT 

An agreement for the period July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014, between the City and the City of Coralville, 
provides the City and its citizens with limited transit services. The agreement providing for these services 
includes the following provisions: 

(a) The City shall pay the City of Coralville a monthly charge for the operating cost per hour for the number 
of hours of transit services provided each month. 

(b) The City shall pay the City of Coralville for the amount the City of Coralville pays to Johnson County 
SEATS for paratransit services provided to citizens of the City of North Liberty. 

(c) All fares collected shall be kept by the City of Coralville. 

(d) The agreement will automatically be renewed on a year-to-year basis unless one party gives notice to the 
other party no later than November 1 in a given year of its intent to terminate the agreement. 

NOTE 8. CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS 

The City has entered Into various contracts with construction and engineering services companies totaling 
approximately $44,220,000. The unpaid balances at June 30, 2016 totaled approximately $17,800,000, 
which will be paid as work on the projects progresses. 

NOTE 9. RISK MANAGEMENT 

The City of North Liberty is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft, damage to and destruction 
of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. These risks are covered by 
the purchase of commercial insurance. The City assumes liability for any deductibles and claims in excess 
of coverage limitations. Settled claims from these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage 
in any of the past three fiscal years. 

NOTE 10. DEFICIT BALANCES 

The following capital projects funds had deficit balances at June 30, 2016, because the project and 
construction costs were incurred prior to availability of funds: 

Capital Projects- Penn Street Improvements 
Capital Projects - Street Capital Projects 
Capital Projects - Land and Facilities 

32 

$ 1,185,535 
1,864,581 

61,269 



CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA ill DRAFT 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2016 

NOTE 10. DEFICIT BALANCES (Continued) 

The following capital reserve account within the General Fund had a deficit balance at June 30, 2016 
because project costs were incurred prior to availability of funds: 

General Fund - Park Development $ 45,751 

The following capital projects account within the Sewer Enterprise Fund had a deficit balance at June 30, 
2016 because project and construction costs were incurred prior to availability of funds: 

Sewer Capital Projects $ 4,137,161 

The deficit balances In these capital projects funds and accounts arose because project and construction 
costs were incurred prior to the availability of funds. These deficits will be eliminated with several sources of 
funds, but not limited to, proceeds from debt financing, grants, future tax increment financing collections and 
available funds in the water and sewer enterprise funds and other general City funds. 

NOTE 11. LEASE COMMITMENTS 

The City entered into a lease agreement effective May 1, 2014 to lease commercial space for the City 
administration offices and Council chambers for the period May 1, 201 4 to December 31, 2018. This 
agreement supersedes a lease agreement for similar facilities for the period from April 1, 2011 to December 
31, 201 5. The current lease agreement provides for the option to exercise up to four additional extensions of 
six months each at a rate not to exceed the previous year's rate plus three percent increase per annum. The 
current lease also provides for additional rent based on the excess of the assessed value of the property 
over $1,480,510. 

Lease payments are due in six month intervals each January 15 and July 15. Lease expense for the year 
ended June 30, 2016 was $175,203, which included additional rent of $9,452 based on the assessed value 
of the property. 

Future minimum commitments under this lease as of June 30, 2016 are as follows: 

Year ending June 30, 2017 
2018 
201 9 

NOTE 12. STATE REVOLVING FUND INTERIM LOANS 

$ 170,743 
175,836 
90,564 

$ 437,143 

The City obtained two interim financing loans from the Iowa Finance Authority's State Revolving Fund to 
provide funding for the planning and design phases of the water and sewer improvement and expansion 
projects. These interim loans will be paid off when the revenue bond issues are sold as these projects are 
completed in the future. No interest is being charged on these loans. 

The Water Revenue Loan and Disbursement Agreement Anticipation Project Note was issued April11, 2014 
in the maximum amount of $1,350,000 and is due April 11, 2017. The City has drawn $1,350,000 on this 
loan as of June 30, 201 6. 

The Sewer Revenue Loan and Disbursement Agreement Anticipation Project Note was issued July 25, 2014 
in the maximum amount of $1,450,000 and was due July 25, 201 7. The City drew $1,180,057 on this loan 
and the loan was paid off with proceeds of the sewer revenue bonds that were sold on March 4, 2016. 

33 



CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA ~D AFT 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2016 

NOTE 13. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPES) 

The City maintains a fully-insured single-employer health insurance plan for employees, retirees and their 
qualified beneficiaries. Retirees and their qualified beneficiaries are provided the opportunity to continue 
health insurance coverage under rules established by law. Employees are eligible to continue coverage 
when a "qualifying event" would normally result in the loss of eligibility. "Qualifying events" are defined In the 
City's employee manual. Employees and their beneficiaries are required to pay the full cost for the continuing 
coverage. Continuing coverage is available until the employees and their beneficiaries attain age 65. The 
cost of the continuing coverage is the same as the cost for active employees. 

The City finances the health insurance plan with Wellmark on a pay-as-you-go basis. The most recent 
monthly premium costs are $402.38 for single coverage, $725.98 for employee/dependent coverage, 
$782.15 for employee/spouse coverage and $1,152.13 for family coverage. The same monthly premiums 
apply to retirees. There are 74 active employees and 2 former employees participating in the plan as of June 
30, 2016. During the year ended June 30, 2016, the City contributed $638,565 and plan members 
contributed $103,792 to the plan. 

NOTE 14. CONDUIT DEBT OBLIGATIONS 

During the year ended June 30, 2011, the City issued a total of $2,032,000 of Midwest Disaster Area 
Revenue Bonds to provide financial assistance to private-sector entities for the acquisition and construction 
of commercial facilities in the community. The outstanding principal amount on the bonds at June 30, 2016 
totaled $775,000. The bonds are secured by property purchased with the bond proceeds and are payable 
solely from payments received on the underlying mortgage loans, derived from rents payable by the tenants. 
The bond principal and interest do not constitute liabilities of the City, and neither the City, the State, nor any 
political subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for repayment of the bonds. 

NOTE 15. ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT LOANS 

The City entered into two economic development loan agreements with two local business entities during the 
year ended June 30, 2015. The loan proceeds to these entities are to be used to increase permanent 
employment opportunities in the City, increase the local property tax base and diversify the City's economic 
composition. Details of the loan agreements are as follows: 

Agreement dated August 26, 2014, with BlendCard, Inc., in the amount of $25,000. 
Monthly repayment of $460.42 beginning on November 26, 2014, and continuing on the 
26th day of each month thereafter until October 26, 2019, on which date the remaining 
unpaid indebtedness is due in full. Interest at a rate of four percent (4%) per annum is 
due on the unpaid balance throughout the term of the note. During the year ended June 
30, 2016, the City received repayments of $1,381 , of which $149 was applied to interest 
on the note and $1,232 was applied to principal. The balance due on the loan at June 
30, 2016 was $21,271. 

Agreement dated November 25, 2014, with Moxie Solar LLC, in the amount of $25,000. 
Monthly repayment of $465.06 beginning on February 25, 2015, and continuing on the 
25th day of each month thereafter until January 25, 2020, on which date the remaining 
unpaid indebtedness is due in full. Interest at a rate of four percent (4%) per annum is 
due on the unpaid balance throughout the term of the note. During the year ended June 
30, 2016, the City received repayments of $5,143, of which $781 was applied to interest 
on the note and $4,362 was applied to principal. The balance due on the loan at June 
30, 2016 was $18,916. 

34 



CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA 

Notes to Financial Statements RAFT 
June 30, 2016 

NOTE 16. INTERFUND AND INTRAFUND TRANSFERS 

Transfers generally move resources from the fund statutorily required to collect the resources to the fund 
statutorily required to disburse the resources, move resources to facilitate the payment of principal and 
interest on bonds and notes payable, and move resources for the acquisition of major equipment purchases 
and capital projects. 

The detail of interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2016 is as follows: 

Transfer To Transfer From Amount 

General Fund Water Enterprise-
Water Operating $ 327,698 

Sewer Enterprise -
Sewer Operating 327,698 
Stormwater Management 
Enterprise 35,070 

Special Revenue -
Employee Benefits 1,275,335 

1,965,801 

Debt Service Fund - Special Revenue -
General Obligation Debt Urban Renewal Tax Increment 2,946,972 

Special Revenue -
Road Use Tax 191,455 

Water Enterprise -
Water Revenue Sinking 147,208 

3,285,635 

General Fund - Special Revenue -
Equipment Revolving Road Use Tax 225,000 

Sewer Enterprise -
Sewer Rental -
Capital Reserve 200,000 

Stormwater Management 
Enterprise 140,000 

565,000 

Capital Projects-
TIF Projects General Fund 100,000 

Capital Projects -
Penn Street Improvements General Fund 125,000 

Capital Projects - Capital Projects • 
Land and Facilities Highway 965 Improvements 450,000 

$ 6,491,436 

35 



CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA 

Notes to Financial Statements ~ORA T 
June 30, 2016 

NOTE 16. INTERFUND AND INTRAFUND TRANSFERS (Continued) 

The detail of intrafund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2016 is as follows: 

Transfer To Transfer From Amount 

General Fund - Fire 
Equipment Reserve General Fund $ 99,404 

General Fund -
Recreation Equipment 70,000 

General Fund -
Park Development 12,000 
General Fund -
Equipment Revolving 207,900 

General Fund -
Telecommunications 
Equipment 15,000 

404,304 

Water Enterprise- Water Enterprise-
Water Revenue Sinking Water Operating 675,168 
Water Enterprise -
Water Capital Projects 85,500 

760,668 

Water Enterprise- Water Enterprise-
Water Capital Projects Water Utilities-

Capital Reserve 200,000 

Sewer Enterprise - Sewer Enterprise -
Sewer Capital Projects Sewer Operating 193,646 

Sewer Enterprise -
Sewer Rental - Sewer Enterprise -
Capital Reserve Sewer Operating 387,000 

Sewer Enterprise - Sewer Enterprise -
Sewer Revenue Sinking Sewer Operating 1,020,857 

$ 2,966,475 

Total transfers during the year ended June 30, 2016 were as follows: 

lnterfund transfers $ 6,491,436 
lntrafund transfers 

Reconciliation to the financial statements: 

Governmental funds (Exhibit B) 
Proprietary funds (Exhibit C) 

36 

2,966,475 

$ 9,457,911 

Transfers In Transfers Out 

$ 6,895,740 $ 
2,562,171 

5,718,066 
3,739,845 

$ 9,457,911 $ 9,457,911 



CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA 

Notes to Financial Statements ~D AFT 
June 30, 2016 

NOTE 17. LITIGATION 

The City was the defendant in a case brought by a citizen seeking damages in connection with an incident 
that occurred in 2011 involving City police officers. The case was tried after June 30, 2016 and the court 
ruled in favor of the City. The plaintiff has appealed the decision. The City believes it will prevail in the 
appeal and does not anticipate any possible loss. 

The City was the defendant in a case brought by a property owner in November 2014 challenging the 
sanitary sewer easement needed for the construction of a new high school and development of the area. 
The case was tried during the year ended June 30. 2016, and the court ruled in favor of the City. The 
plaintiff has appealed the court's decision. The City expects to prevail in the appeal and no estimate of any 
possible loss to the City can be determined at this time. 

The City was one of six defendants in a case brought by four citizens seeking damages in connection with 
flooding damages to their properties, which were alleged to be the result of negligence in installing sewer tile 
line. The case was settled after June 30, 2016 and the City's insurance carrier paid $33,332 to the plaintiffs 
for it's share of the joint settlement. 

NOTE 18. NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENT 

The City adopted fair value guidance as set forth in Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement 
No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application . The Statement sets forth guidance for determining and 
disclosing the fair value of assets and liabilities reported in the financial statements. Adoption of the 
guidance did not have a significant impact on amounts reported or disclosed in the financial statements. 

NOTE19. SUBSEQUENTEVENTS 

The City sold the following bond issue after June 30, 2016: 

Sewer Revenue Improvement and Refunding 

The following construction projects were approved after June 30, 2016: 

Water Systems Improvements Phase I (Building) 
Water Systems Improvements Phase I (Wells) 

The following grants were approved after June 30, 2016: 

Penn Street PCC Pavement: STP-U-5557[620]--70-52 
Highway 965 PCC Pavement: STP-U-5557[618]--70-52 

37 

$ 22,337,000 

13,449,000 
2,880,094 

837,000 
1,986,000 



~DRAFT 

OTHER INFORMATION 



CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA ~DRAFT 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule 

of Receipts, Disbursements, and Changes in Balances -
Budget and Actual (Cash Basis)- All Governmental Funds and Proprietary Funds 

Other Information 

Year Ended June 30, 2016 

Governmental Proprietary 
Funds Funds 
Actual Actual 

Receipts: 
Property tax $ 7,583,031 $ -
Tax increment financing 4,509,489 
Other city tax 360,492 
Licenses and permits 478,562 
Use of money and property 159,353 1,584 
Intergovernmental 3,889,968 
Charges for service 1,893,581 7,1 16,556 
Miscellaneous 471,339 362,613 

Total receipts 19,345,815 7,480,753 

Disbursements: 
Public safety 2,836,301 
Public works 1,626,565 
Health and social services 105,350 
Culture and recreation 3,593,454 
Community and economic development 1,647,664 
General government 1,591,679 
Debt service 4,831,259 
Capital projects 8,023,964 
Business type activities 19,430,925 

Total disbursements 24,256,236 19,430,925 

Excess (deficiency) of receipts over under disbursements ( 4,910,421) (11 ,950,172) 

Other financing sources, net 4,901,100 15,315,027 

Excess (deficiency) of receipts and other financing sources 
over (under) disbursements and other f inancing uses (9,321) 3,364,855 

Balances, beginning of year 8,255,766 1,649,315 

Balances, end of year $ 8,246,445 $ 5,014,170 

There were no funds of the City not required to be budgeted during the year ended June 30, 2016. 

See accompanying Independent auditor's report and 
accompanying Notes to Other Information. 

38 

Net 

$ 7,583,031 
4,509,489 

360,492 
478,562 
160,937 

3,889,968 
9,010,137 

833,952 

26,826,568 

2,836,301 
1,626,565 

105,350 
3,593,454 
1,647,664 
1,591,679 
4,831,259 
8,023,964 

19,430,925 

43,687,161 

(16,860,593) 

20,216,127 

3,355,534 

9,905,081 

$ 13,260,615 



~D AFT 

Budgeted Amounts 

Final to 
Original Final Net Variance 

$ 7,634,142 $ 7,634,142 $ (51,111) 
4,269,967 4,269,967 239,522 

108,571 108,571 251,921 
687,135 687,135 (208,573) 
149,100 149,100 11,837 

2,276,356 3,630,906 259,062 
9,103,677 9,143,677 (133,540) 
1,649,106 1,668,306 {834,354} 

25,878,054 27,291,804 (465,236} 

3,316,438 3,350,090 513,789 
1,608,820 1,783,931 157,366 

105,000 105,000 (350) 
3,890,424 3,983,628 390,174 
1,937,226 1,977,226 329,562 
1,412,099 1,942,299 350,620 
4,254,222 5,294,222 462,963 
7,739,900 12,448,400 4,424,436 

20,542,735 26,763,735 7,332,810 

44,806,864 57,648,531 13,961,370 

(18,928,81 0) (30,356, 727) 13,496,134 

19,982,000 28,251,200 {8,035,073) 

1,053,190 (2,105,527) 5,461,061 

12,581 ,296 9,905,081 

$ 13,634,486 $ 7,799,554 $ 5,461,061 

39 



CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA ~DRAFT 
Notes to Other Information - Budgetary Reporting 

June 30, 2016 

The budgetary comparison is presented in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement 
No. 41 for governments with significant budgetary perspective differences resulting from not being able to present 
budgetary comparisons for the General Fund and each major fund. 

In accordance with the Code of Iowa, the City Council annually adopts a budget on the cash basis following 
required public notice and hearing for all funds. The annual budget may be amended during the year utilizing 
similar statutorily prescribed procedures. 

Formal and legal budgetary control is based upon nine major classes of disbursements known as functions, not by 
fund or fund type. These nine functions are: public safety, public works, health and social services, culture and 
recreation, community and economic development, general government, debt service, capital projects and 
business type activities. Function disbursements are required to be budgeted for all funds. Although the budget 
document presents function disbursements by fund, the legal level of control is at the aggregated function level, not 
by fund. During the year, one budget amendment Increased budgeted disbursements by $12,841,667. The budget 
amendment is reflected in the final budgeted amounts. 

During the year ended June 30, 2016, disbursements for the health and social services function exceeded 
budgeted amounts. 

40 



CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA 

Schedule of the City's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 
Iowa Public Employees' Retirement System 

For the Last Two Years * 

Other Information 

City's proportion of the net pension liability 

City's proportionate share of the net pension liability 

City's total covered-employee payroll 
Regular 
Protection occupation 

City's proportionate share of the net pension liability 
as a percentage of its covered-employee payroll 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the 
total pension liability 

2016 

0.051521% 

$ 2,545,393 

$ 3,741,181 
1,143,31 1 

$ 4,884,492 

52.111724% 

85.19% 

2015 

0.046738% 

$ 1,853,576 

$ 3,462,507 
997,332 

$ 4,459,839 

41.561500% 

87.61% 

A 

* In accordance with GASB Statement No. 68, the amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined 
as of June 30 of the preceding fiscal year. 

GASB Statement No. 68 requires ten years of information to be presented in this table. However, until a 
full ten year trend is compiled, the City will present information for those years for which information is 
available. 

See accompanying Independent Auditor's Report and 
accompanying Notes to Other Information. 

41 



CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA 

Schedule of City Contributions 
Iowa Public Employees' Retirement System 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Other Information 

2016 
Statutorily required contribution: 

Regular $ 354,553 
Protection occupation 124,309 

$ 478,862 
Contributions in relation to the statutorily 
required contribution: 
Regular $ 354,553 
Protection occupation 124,309 

$ 478,862 

Contribution deficiency (excess) $ 

City's covered-employee payroll: 
Regular $ 3,970,354 
Protection occupation 1,263,298 

$ 5,233,652 

Contributions as a percentage of 
covered-employee payroll: 
Regular 8.93% 
Protection occupation 9.84% 

See accompanying Independent Auditor's Report and 
accompanying Notes to Other Information. 

42 

~DRAF 

2015 2014 

$ 334,088 $ 309,202 
115,932 101,129 

$ 450,020 $ 410,331 

$ 334,088 $ 309,202 
11 5,932 101 ,129 

$ 450,020 $ 410,331 

$ $ 

$ 3,741,181 $ 3,462,507 
1,143,31 1 997,332 

$ 4,884,492 $ 4,459,839 

8.93% 8.93% 
10.14% 10.14% 



2013 

$ 285,504 
95,933 

$ 381,437 

$ 285,504 
95,933 

$ 381,437 

$ 

$ 3,293,006 
934,112 

$4,227,11 8 

8.67% 
10.27% 

2012 

$ 257,699 
82,283 

$ 339,982 

$ 257,699 
82,283 

$ 339,982 

$ 

$ 3,193,298 
825,306 

$ 4,01 8,604 

8.07% 
9.97% 

2011 

$ 201,757 
67,379 

$ 269,136 

$ 201,757 
67,379 

$ 269,136 

$ 

$ 2,902,976 
677,179 

$ 3,580,155 

6.95% 
9.95% 

2010 

$ 178,743 
59,361 

$ 238,104 

$ 178,743 
59,361 

$ 238,104 

$ 

$ 2,687,862 
645,230 

$ 3,333,092 

6.65% 
9.20% 

43 

2009 

$ 162,451 
47,957 

$ 210,408 

$ 162,451 
47,957 

$ 210,408 

$ 

$ 2,558,279 
567,536 

$ 3,125,815 

6.35% 
8.45% 

2008 

$ 139,246 
38,787 

$ 178,033 

$ 139,246 
38,787 

$ 178,033 

$ 

$ 2,301,592 
457,929 

$ 2,759,521 

6.05% 
8.47% 

2007 

$ 110,358 
26,321 

$ 136,679 

$ 110,358 
26,321 

$ 136,679 

$ 

$ 1,919,276 
288,607 

$ 2,207,883 

5.75% 
9.12% 



CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA Af 
Notes to Other Information- Pension Liability 

June 30, 2016 

Changes of Benefit Terms 

Legislation passed in 2010 modified benefit terms for current Regular members. The definition of final 
average salary changed from the highest three to the highest five years of covered wages. The early 
retirement reduction increased from 3 percent per year measured from the member's first unreduced 
retirement age to a 6 percent reduction for each year of retirement before age 65. 

In 2008, legislative action transferred four groups - emergency medical service providers, county jailers, 
county attorney investigators, and National Guard installation security officers - from Regular membership to 
the protection occupation group for future service only. 

Benefit provisions for sheriffs and deputies were changed in the 2004 legislative session. The eligibility for 
unreduced retirement benefits was lowered from age 55 by one year each July 1 (beginning in 2004) until it 
reached age 50 on July 1, 2008. The years of service requirement remained at 22 or more. Their 
contribution rates were also changed to be shared 50-50 by the employee and employer, Instead of the 
previous 40-60 split. 

Changes of Assumptions 

The 2014 valuation implemented the following refinements as a result of a quadrennial experience study: 

Decreased the inflation assumption from 3.25 percent to 3.00 percent. 
Decreased the assumed rate of interest on member accounts from 4.00 percent to 3.75 percent per 
year. 
Adjusted male mortality rates for retirees in the Regular membership group. 
Reduced retirement rates for sheriffs and deputies between the ages of 55 and 64. 
Moved from an open 30 year amortization period to a closed 30 year amortization period for the UAL 
beginning June 30, 2014. Each year thereafter, changes in the UAL from plan experience will be 
amortized on a separate closed 20 year period. 

The 201 0 valuation implemented the following refinements as a result of a quadrennial experience study: 

Adjusted retiree mortality assumptions. 
Modified retirement rates to reflect fewer retirements. 
Lowered disability rates at most ages. 
Lowered employment termination rates. 
Generally increased the probability of termination members receiving a deferred retirement benefit. 
Modified salary increase assumptions based on various service duration. 

The 2007 valuation adjusted the application of the entry age normal cost method to better match projected 
contributions to the projected salary stream in the future years. It also included in the calculation of the UAL 
amortization payments the one year lag between the valuation date and the effective date of the annual 
actuarial contribution rate. 

44 



SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 



Receipts: 
Property tax $ 

Other city tax: 
Mobile home tax 
Utility tax replacement excise tax 
Hotel/motel tax 
Utility franchise fees 

Licenses and permits: 
Beer and liquor 
Cigarette 
Business/building trades 
Pet and other 
Building 

Use of money and property: 
Interest on cash investments 
Rent 

Intergovernmental: 
Disaster mitigation grants 

Commercial and industrial 
property tax replacement 

Pollee grants 
Fire department SAFER grant 
Township fire protection 
County library contribution 
Library grants and open access 

Charges for seN ice: 
Inspection fees 
Library fees 
Police seNice fees 
Fire department seNice fees 
Zoning and subdivision 
Garbage and recycling fees 
Recreation charges 
Rain barrels and compost bins 
Impact fees 
Mowing and snow removal 
Cemetery plot location fees 
Animal control 
Maps and photocopy fees 
Administrative charges 
Transit 

CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA 

Schedule of Cash Receipts, Disbursements 
and Changes in Cash Balances -

Governmental Funds - General Fund Detail 
(Page 1 of 3) 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2016 

Youth 
Recreation Park Sports 

General Equipment Development Scholarship 

5,468,019 $ - $ - $ 

17,861 
60,626 
79,732 

173,858 
332,077 

10,855 
794 

2,325 
1,550 

463,038 
478,562 

27,877 
131,422 
159,299 

1,832 

260,336 
69,037 
50,982 

165,023 
27,011 

8,433 
582,654 

105,656 
4,819 
5,11 5 

25,623 
25,964 

577,027 
912,411 

725 

4,586 
105 
553 
117 

38,680 
5 

1,701 ,386 

45 

Telecomm
unications 
Equipment 

- $ - $ 

T 

Tree 
Program 



Schedule 1 

I!J RAFT 

lmeact Fees 
Fire Police Police 

Library Equipment Equipment Equipment Seized Trans- Storm 
Reserve Reserve Revolving Reserve Funds portation Water Total 

$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 5,468,019 

17,861 
60,626 
79,732 

173,858 
332,077 

10,855 
794 

2,325 
1,550 

463,038 
478,562 

27,877 
131,422 
159,299 

1,832 

260,336 
69,037 
50,982 

165,023 
27,011 

8,433 
582,654 

105,656 
4,819 

10,890 16,005 
25,623 
25,964 

577,027 
912,411 

725 
181,305 181,305 

4,586 
105 
553 
117 

38,680 
5 

10,890 181,305 1,893,581 

46 



CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA 

Schedule of Cash Receipts, Disbursements ~ RA and Changes in Cash Balances -
.. 

Governmental Funds - General Fund Detail 
(Page 2 of 3) 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 201 6 

Youth Telecomm-
Recreation Park Sports unications Tree 

General Equipment Development Scholarship Equipment Program 

Receipts: (continued) 

Miscellaneous: 
Refunds and reimbursements 34,485 
Fines and fees 42,222 
Donations/contributions 597 650 33,735 3,700 

Miscellaneous 98,626 1,731 16,631 15,512 

Penalties 99,905 
275,835 2,381 33,735 16,631 19.212 

Total receipts 8,997,832 2,381 33,735 16,631 19,212 

Disbursements: 
Public Safely: 

Police 1,866,604 
Emergency management 19,693 
Fire 465,224 
Building Inspections/safety 467,995 

Animal control 13,395 

Total public safety 2,832,911 

Public Works: 
Traffic control and safety 27,967 

Streets 43,111 
Sanitation 560,144 
Transit 72,226 

Total public works 703,448 

Health and social services: 
Social services 105,350 

Culture and recreation: 
Library 824,961 
Parks 676,708 
Recreation center 1,208,758 11,641 
Community center 198,384 
Aquat ic center 658,078 
Cemetery 14,924 

Total culture and recreation 3,581,813 11,641 

Community and economic 
development: 

Community beautification 15,487 
Economic development 67,949 
Tourism promotion 35,823 
Planning and zoning 336,560 
Telecommunications 240,171 

total community and 
economic development 680,503 15,487 

47 



Fire Police Police 
Library Equipment Equipment Equipment Seized 

ReseNe ReseNe Revolving ReseNe Funds 

8,426 10,146 

18,359 37,500 100 
24,910 

18,359 45,92.6 35,056 100 

18,359 45,926 35,056 10,990 

3,390 

3,390 

48 

lmeact Fees 

Trans- Storm 
portation Water 

181,305 

Schedule 1 

~ RAFT 

Total 

53,057 
42,222. 
94,641 

157,410 
99,905 

447,235 

9,361,427 

1,869,994 
19,693 

465,224 
467,995 

13,395 

2,836,301 

27,967 
43,111 

560,144 
72,226 

703,448 

105,350 

824,961 
676,708 

1,220,399 
198,384 
658,078 

14,924 

3,593,454 

15,487 
67,949 
35,823 

336,560 
240,171 

695,990 



CITY OF NORTH L IBERTY, IOWA 

Schedule of Cash Receipts, Disbursements 

~D and Changes in Cash Balances - AFT Governmental Funds - General Fund Detail 
(Page 3 of 3) 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2016 

Youth Telecomm-
Recreation Park Sports unications Tree 

General Equipment Development Scholarship Equipment Program 

Disbursements: (continued} 
General government: 

Mayor and council 31,002 
City administration 1,322,143 
Legal seNices 217,388 
Other general government 21 '146 

Total general government 1,591,679 

Capital projects: 
Capital projects 85,504 104,666 997,961 29,041 

Total disbursements 9,581,208 104,666 997,961 11,641 29,041 15,487 

Excess (deficiency) of receipts 
over (under) disbursements {583,376~ (102,285) (964,226) 4,990 (29,041) 3,725 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Proceeds from sale of 
general obligation bonds 700,000 

Operating transfers In 1,965,801 70,000 12,000 15,000 
Operating transfers (out) (629,304) 

Total other financing 
sources (uses) 1,336,497 70,000 712,000 15,000 

Net change in cash balances 753,121 (32,285) (252,226) 4,990 (14,041) 3,725 

Cash and cash investments, 
beginning of year 3,091,933 166,610 206,475 51,125 55,341 11,307 

Cash and cash investments, 
end of year $ 3,845,054 $ 134,325 $ (45,751) $ 56,115 $ 41,300 $ 15,032 

Cash basis fund balances: 
Restricted for: 

Hotel/motel tax $ 76,384 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 
Tree purchases 7,213 
Police 
Housing rehabilitation 21,246 

Assigned for: 
Capital equipment purchases 134,325 41,300 
Street capital projects 
Park development 127,553 
Stormwater capital projects 
Information technology upgrades 50,000 

Youth scholarships/ 
recreation capital equipment 56,115 

Unassigned 3,697,424 (173,304~ 7,819 

Total cash basis fund 
balances $ 3,845,054 $ 134,325 $ (45,751) $ 56,115 $ 41,300 $ 15,032 

See accompanying Independent auditor's report. 

49 



Schedule 1 

~DRA 
Impact Fees 

Fire Police Police 
Library Equipment Equipment Equipment Seized Trans- Storm 

Reserve Reserve Revolving Reserve Funds porta lion Water Total 

31 ,002 
1,322,143 

217,388 
21 '146 

1,591,679 

7,568 37,500 817,434 2,079,674 

7,568 37,500 817,434 3,390 11,605,896 

10,791 8,426 (782,378) 7,600 181,305 (2,244,469) 

700,000 
99,404 772,900 2,935,105 

(629,304) 

99,404 772,900 3,005,801 

10,791 107,830 (9,478) 7,600 181,305 761,332 

7,152 370,449 176,993 30,820 1,931 1,371,787 42,999 5,584,922 

$ 17,943 $ 478,279 $ 167,515 $ 38,420 $ 1,931 $ 1,553,092 $ 42,999 $ 6,346,254 

$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 76,384 
7,213 

1,931 1,931 
21,246 

17,943 478,279 68,324 38,420 778,591 
1,814,876 1,814,876 

127,553 
42,999 42,999 

50,000 

56,115 
99,191 (261 ,784) 3,369,346 

$ 17,943 $ 478,279 $ 167,515 $ 38,420 $ 1,931 $ 1,553,092 $ 42,999 $ 6,346,254 

50 



CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA Schedule 2 

Schedule of Cash Receipts, Disbursements 
and Changes in Cash Balances~ 

@1U Nonmajor Governmental Funds AFT 
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2016 

S~ecial Revenue Other 
Employee Drug Task Capital 
Benefits Force Projects Total 

Receipts: 
Property tax $ 1,199,509 $ ~ $ ~ $ 1,199,509 
Other city tax 17,558 17,558 
Use of money and property 48 6 54 
Intergovernmental 58,268 19,192 77,460 
Miscellaneous 21,045 21,045 

Total receipts 1,275,335 19,240 21,051 1,315,626 

Disbursements: 
Capital projects 3,373 3,346,360 3,349,733 

Excess (deficiency) of receipts 
over (under) disbursements 1,275,335 15,867 {3,325,309} {2,034,1 07i 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Proceeds from sale of general 

obligation bonds 795,000 795,000 
Operating transfers in 675,000 675,000 
Operating transfers (out) (1,275,335} {1 ,275,335l 

Total other financing sources (uses) {1,275,335) 1,470,000 194,665 

Net change in cash balances 15,867 (1 ,855,309) (1,839,442) 

Cash and cash investments, 
beginning of year 2,545 24,358 (536, 177) (509,274) 

Cash and cash investments, 
end of year $ 2,545 $ 40,225 $ (2,391 ,486) $ {2,348,716) 

Cash basis fund balances: 
Restricted for: 

Street capital projects $ - $ - $ 5,688 $ 5,688 
Urban renewal projects 594,91 1 594,911 
Police capital equipment purchases 40,225 40,225 
Property improvements 69,778 69,778 
Trail projects 8,529 8,529 
Employee benefits 2,545 2,545 

Assigned for: 
Street capital projects 40,993 40,993 

Unassigned {3,1 11 ,385l {3, 111,385l 

Total cash basis fund balances $ 2,545 $ 40,225 $ {2,391 ,486} $ {2,348,716} 

See accompanying independent auditor's report. 

51 



CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA 

Schedule of Cash Receipts, Disbursements 
and Changes in Cash Balances -
Nonmajor Governmental Funds -

Other Capital Projects Funds 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2016 

Receipts: 
Use of money and property: 

Interest on cash investments 
Miscellaneous: 

Donations/contributions 
Miscellaneous 

Total receipts 

Disbursements: 
Capital projects 

Excess (deficiency) of receipts over (under) 
disbursements 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Proceeds from sale of general obligation bonds 
Operating transfers in 
Operating transfers (out) 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net change in cash balances 

Cash and cash investments, beginning of year 

Cash and cash Investments, end of year 

Cash basis fund balances: 
Restricted for: 

Ranshaw 
House TIF 
Project Projects 

$ - $ -

1,100 

1,100 

200 

900 

100,000 

100,000 

900 100,000 

8,734 416,252 

$ 9,634 $ 516,252 

~D Af 

Library Penn Street 
Expansion Improvements 

$ 6 $ 

14,265 
5,180 

14,271 5,180 

1,146,293 

14,271 p ,141 ' 11 3~ 

125,000 

125,000 

14,271 (1,016,113) 

45,873 !169,422~ 

$ 60,144 $ {1. 1 85,535~ 

Street capital projects 
Urban renewal projects 
Property improvements 
Trail projects 

$ -$ -$ -$ 

Assigned for: 
Street capital projects 

Unassigned 

Total cash basis fund balances 

516,252 
9,634 60,144 

(1 ,185,535) 

$ 9,634 $ 516,252 $ 60,144 $ (1,185,535) 

.See accompanying Independent auditor's report. 

52 



Schedule 3 

~ RAFT 

I-JOBS Street Economic 
Street Capital Trail Entryway Development Land and 

Projects Projects Projects Development Projects Facilities Total 

$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 6 

15,365 
500 5,680 

500 21,051 

1,877,748 313,028 9,091 3,346,360 

(1 ,877,248) (313,028) (9,091) (3,325,309) 

445,000 350,000 795,000 
450,000 675,000 

445,000 350,000 450,000 1,470,000 

(1 ,432,248) 36,972 440,909 (1 ,855,309) 

5,688 ~432,333~ ~28,443~ 40,993 78,659 ~502, 178~ ~536, 1 77~ 

$ 5,688 $ {1,864,581~ $ 8,529 $ 40,993 $ 78,659 $ {61 ,269} $ {2,391 ,486~ 

$ 5,688 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 5,688 
78,659 594,911 

69,778 
8,529 8,529 

40,993 40,993 
(1,864,581) (61 ,269) (3, 111 ,385) 

$ 5,688 $ p,864,581~ $ 8,529 $ 40,993 $ 78,659 $ (61 ,269) $ (2,391 ,486} 

53 



CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA 

Schedule of Cash Receipts, Disbursements 
and Changes in Cash Balances - Proprietary Funds-

~D AF Water Enterprise and Sewer Enterprise Funds Detail 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2016 

Water Enterprise 

Water 
Water Utilities- Water 

Water Revenue Water Capital Capital 
Operating Sinking Reserve Reserve Projects Total 

Operating receipts: 
Charges for service $ 3,11 5,795 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 3,115,795 
Miscellaneous 185,815 185,815 

Total operating receipts 3,301,610 3,301,610 

Operating disbursements: 
Business type activities 1,806,956 90,202 2,359,013 4,256,171 

Excess (deficiency) of operating 
receipts over (under) operating 
disbursements 1,494,654 (90,202) (2,359,013~ {954,561) 

Non-operating receipts and 
(disbursements): 

Interest on cash investments 840 840 
Debt service (527,210) (527,210) 

Total non-operating receipts 
and (disbursements) 840 {527,210~ (526,370) 

Excess (deficiency) of receipts 
over (under) disbursements 1,495,494 {527,210} {90,202) {2.359,013) (1 ,480,931) 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Proceeds from sale of general 

obligation bonds 490,000 2,161,000 2,651,000 
State Revolving Fund loan draws, net 1,302,872 1,302,872 
Operating transfers: 

Operating transfers in 675,168 85,500 20o,oop 960,668 
Operating transfers (out) (1,088,366) {147,208~ {200,000} {1 ,435,574} 

Total other financing 
sources (uses) (1 ,088,366) 1,017,960 (114,5002 3,663,872 3,478,966 

Net change in cash balances 407,128 490,750 (204,702) 1,304,859 1,998,035 

Cash and cash investments, 

beginning of year 1,183,1 53 225,604 541,255 246,429 {541 ,411) 1,655,030 

Cash and cash investments, 
end of year $ 1,590,281 $ 716,354 $ 541,255 $ 41,727 $ 763,448 $ 3,653,065 

Cash basis fund balances: 
Restricted for: 

Debt service $ - $ 716,354 $ 541,255 $ - $ - $ 1,257,609 
Unrestricted: 

Unrestricted 1,590,281 41,727 763,448 2,395,456 

$ 1,590,281 $ 716,354 $ 541,255 $ 41,727 $ 763,448 $ 3,653,065 

See accompanying independent auditor's report. 

54 



Sewer 
Sewer Revenue 

Operating Sinking 

$ 3,806,150 $ - $ 
5,684 

3,811 ,834 

1,207,235 

2,604,599 

744 
(1 ,046,016) 

744 (1,046,01 6) 

2,605,343 (1 ,046,016) 

1,020,857 
(1,929,201) 

~1.929,201) 1,020,857 

676,142 (25,159) 

2,411,997 363,953 

$ 3,088, 139 $ 338,794 $ 

Sewer Enterprise 

Sewer 
Reserve 

- $ 

307,105 

307,105 $ 

Sewer 
Rental- Sewer 
Capita l Capital 

Reserve Projects Total 

1,844 $ - $ 3,807,994 
5,684 

1,844 3,813,678 

12,106,594 13,313,829 

1,844 (12,106,594) (9,500,151) 

744 
(1,046,016) 

(1 ,045,272) 

1,844 (12,106,594) (10,545,423) 

2,875,000 2,875,000 
9,663,829 9,663,829 

387,000 193,646 1,601,503 
(200,000) (2, 129,201) 

187,000 12,732,475 12,011 '131 

188,844 625,881 1,465,708 

1,055,532 {4,763,042) (624,455) 

1,244,376 $ {4.137,161~ $ 841,253 

$ - $ 338,794 $ 307,105 $ - $ - $ 645,899 

3,088,139 1,244,376 {4,137,161) 195,354 
$ 3,088,139 $ 338,794 $ 307,105 $ 1,244,376 $ (4,137,161) $ 841,253 

55 

Schedule 4 

!@DRAFT 



CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA Schedule 5 

Schedule of Cash Receipts, Disbursements 
and Changes in Cash Balances ~ 

~D AFT Nonmajor Proprietary Funds 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2016 

Utility Stormwater 
De~osits Management Total 

Operating receipts: 
Charges for service $ 170,440 $ 192,767 $ 363,207 
Miscellaneous 674 674 

Total operating receipts 170,440 193,441 363,881 

Operating disbursements: 
Business type activities 198,167 89,532 287,699 

Excess (deficiency) of operating receipts over (under) 
operating disbursements (27,727) 103,909 76,182 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Operating transfers: 

Operating transfers (out) {175,070} {175,070} 

Net change in cash balances (27,727) (71,161) (98,888) 

Cash and cash Investments, beginning of year 425,507 193,233 618,740 

Cash and cash investments, end of year $ 397,780 $ 122,072 $ 519,852 

Cash basis fund balances: 
Restricted for: 

Utility deposits $ 397,780 $ - $ 397,780 
Unrestricted: 

Unrestricted 122,072 122,072 

$ 397,780 $ 122,072 $ 519,852 

See accompanying independent auditor's report. 

56 



CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA 

Schedule of Indebtedness 

YearEndedJune30,2016 

Obligation 

General Obligation Bonds: 
General Obligation Sewer Improvement 
Corporate Purpose 
Urban Renewal Corporate Purpose 
General Obligation Water Improvement 
Corporate Purpose 
Corporate Purpose 
Corporate Purpose 
Urban Renewal Corporate Purpose 
Corporate Purpose and Refunding 
Urban Renewal Corporate Purpose 
Urban Renewal Library Improvement 
General Obligation Refunding 
Corporate Purpose 
Urban Renewal Corporate Purpose 
Corporate Purpose 
Corporate Purpose 

Total 

Rural Economic Development Loan and Grant Program: 
Rural Economic Development Loan 

Road Use Tax Revenue Bonds: 
Road Use Tax Series 2012A 

Utility Revenue Bonds: 
Sewer Revenue Bond Series 1998A 
Sewer Revenue Bond Series 1998B 
Sewer Revenue Bond Series 2007 
Sewer Revenue Bond Series 2008A 
Sewer Revenue Bond Series 2008C 
Water Revenue Bond Series 20080 
Water Revenue Refunding Bond Series 2012C 
Sewer Revenue Refunding Bond Series 2014A 
Water Revenue Refunding Bond Series 20148 
Sewer Revenue Bond Series 2016 

Total 

State Revolving Fund Anticipation Project Notes: 
Water Revenue Planning and Design Loan PDDW1432 
Sewer Revenue Planning and Design Loan PDCW1503 

** 

Date of 
Issue 

1/6/98 
11/15/06 

8/1/07 
12/15/07 
6/30/08 
5/27/09 

10/25/10 
10/25/10 
9/28/11 
9/28/11 

11/12/12 
7/1/13 

11/5/13 
11/5/13 

10/30/14 
10/8/15 

5/8/13 

3/29/12 

3/23/98 
3/23/98 
8/23/07 
7/30/08 
9/15/08 
9/15/08 

11/12/12 
4/23/14 
4/23/14 

3/4/16 

4/11/14 
7/25/14 

~ORA T 

Amount 
Interest Originally 
Rates Issued 

1.75 % $ 1,000,000 
3.60-3.85 570,000 

4.00 3,515,000 
3.45-4.10 855,000 
2.50-3.95 1,940,000 
1.50-4.15 2,425,000 
1.00-2.60 1,730,000 
2.00-2.75 6,765,000 
1.00-2.00 790,000 
1.50-3.10 5,810,000 
0.35-1.70 1,815,000 
0.35-2.15 2,540,000 
2.00-2.40 1,425,000 
2.00-2.40 3,540,000 

2.00 3,090,000 
2.00 9,965,000 

0% $ 360,000 

2.00-3.00 % $ 1,815,000 

1.75 % 
1.75 
3.00 
3.00 

2.75-4.40 
2.75-4.40 
0.50-2.00 
2.00-3.00 
2.00-3.05 

1.75 

$ 323,957 
3,769,043 
5,271,000 
3,250,000 
1,550,000 
2,350,000 
1,575,000 
1,315,000 
1,210,000 

20,911,000 

0 % $ 1,350,000 
0 1,450,000 

.... At June 30, 2016, $10,682,794 had been drawn on this bond through the Iowa Finance Authority. 

See accompanying independent auditor's report. 

57 



Schedule 6 

~ AFT 
Balance Issued Redeemed Balance Interest 

Beginning During During End of Interest Due and 
of Year Year Year Year Paid Unpaid 

$ 203,000 $ - $ 65,000 $ 138,000 $ 2,984 $ 
135,000 65,000 70,000 5,165 
820,000 820,000 12,938 
490,000 490,000 7,601 
730,000 235,000 495,000 27,522 

1,665,000 160,000 1,505,000 60,965 
1,000,000 190,000 810,000 21,525 
4,215,000 660,000 3,555,000 95,350 

355,000 85,000 270,000 5,568 
4,715,000 375,000 4,340,000 108,817 
1,465,000 175,000 1,290,000 16,405 
2,065,000 250,000 1,815,000 29,160 
1,295,000 135,000 1,160,000 27,077 
3,215,000 330,000 2,885,000 67,238 
3,090,000 290,000 2,800,000 61,800 

9,965,000 460,000 9,505,000 128,991 

$ 25,458,000 $ 9,965,000 $ 4,785,000 $ 30,638,000 $ 679,106 $ 

$ 320,000 $ - $ 40,000 $ 280,000 $ - $ 

$ 1,500,000 $ - $ 110,000 $ 1,390,000 $ 35,340 $ 

$ 90,000 $ - $ 21,000 $ 69,000 $ 1,391 $ 
991,000 234,000 757,000 15,295 

4,502,000 111,000 4,391,000 135,060 
2,174,000 137,000 2,037,000 65,220 

950,000 105,000 845,000 39,925 
1,495,000 160,000 1,335,000 62,845 
1,090,000 170,000 920,000 16,500 
1,210,000 110,000 1,100,000 27,335 
1,125,000 90,000 1,035,000 26,365 

20,91 1,000 20,911 ,000 25,560 

$ 13,627,000 $ 20,91 1 ,000 $ 1,138,000 $ 33,400,000 $ 415,496 $ 

47,128 1,302,872 1,350,000 
918,965 261,092 1,180,057 

$ 966,093 $ 1,563,964 $ 1,180,057 $ 1,350,000 $ - $ 

58 



Year 
Ending 
June 30 

2017 
2018 
2019 
2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 
2025 
2026 

Total 

Year 
Ending 

June 30, 

2017 
2018 
2019 
2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 
2025 
2026 

Total 

Sewer Improvement 
Issued Jan. 6, 1998 

Interest 
Rates Amount 

1.75% $ 68,000 
1.75 70,000 

$ 138,000 

Corporate Purpose 
Issued Sept. 28, 2011 

Interest 
Rates Amount 

1.50% $ 380,000 
1.60 390,000 
1.85 400,000 
2.10 410,000 
2.30 420,000 
2.45 435,000 
2.60 450,000 
2.80 465,000 
3.00 485,000 
3.10 505,000 

$ 4,340,000 

CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA 

Bond and Note Maturities 
(Page 1 of 4) 

June 30, 2016 

General Obligation Bonds 
Corporate Purpose Corporate Purpose 

Issued Nov. 15, 2006 Issued June 30, 2008 

Interest 
Rates Amount 

3.85 % $ 70,000 

$ 70,000 

Interest 
Rates Amount 

3.75 % $ 245,000 
3.95 250,000 

$ 495,000 

General Obligation Bonds 
Librar)! Improvement General Obligation Refundins 
Issued Nov. 12, 2012 Issued Jul)! 1, 2013 

Interest Interest 
Rates Amount Rates Amount 

0.70% $ 175,000 0.85 % $ 250,000 
0.80 180,000 1.10 255,000 
1.00 180,000 1.30 255,000 
1.20 185,000 1.50 260,000 
1.35 185,000 1.75 260,000 
1.55 190,000 1.90 265,000 
1.70 195,000 2.15 270,000 

$ 1,290,000 $ 1,8151000 

See accompanying Independent auditor's report. 

59 

AFT 

Corporate Purpose 
Issued May 27, 2009 

Interest 
Rates Amount 

3.00% $ 165,000 
3.25 170,000 
3.50 175,000 
3.75 185,000 
4.00 190,000 
4.05 200,000 
4.10 205,000 
4.15 215,000 

$ 1,505,000 

Corporate Purpose 
Issued Nov. 5, 2013 

Interest 
Rates Amount 

2.00% $ 135,000 
2.00 135,000 
2.00 140,000 
2.00 140,000 
2.00 145,000 
2.10 150,000 
2.25 155,000 
2.40 160,000 

$ 1,160,000 



Schedule 7 

General Obligation Bonds 
Coreorate Pureose Corporate Purpose Corporate Purpose 

Issued Oct. 25, 2010 Issued Oct. 25, 2010 Issued Seet. 28, 2011 

Interest Interest Interest 
Rates Amount Rates Amount Rates Amount 

1.90% $ 195,000 2.00% $ 675,000 1.40% $ 90,000 
2.20 200,000 2.00 690,000 1.70 90,000 
2.40 205,000 2.25 710,000 2.00 90,000 
2.60 210,000 2.50 730,000 

2.75 750,000 

$ 810,000 $ 3,555,000 $ 270,000 

General Obligation Bonds 
Coreorate Pureose Corporate Pureose Coreorate Pureose 
Issued Nov. 5, 2013 Issued Oct. 30, 2014 Issued Oct. 8, 2015 

Interest Interest Interest 
Rates Amount Rates Amount Rates Amount Total 

2.00% $ 330,000 2.00% $ 295,000 2.00 % $ 1 ,285,000 $ 4,358,000 
2.00 340,000 2.00 295,000 2.00 880,000 3,945,000 
2.00 345,000 2.00 300,000 2.00 890,000 3,690,000 
2.00 350,000 2.00 305,000 2.00 910,000 3,685,000 
2.00 360,000 2.00 305,000 2.00 920,000 3,535,000 
2.10 375,000 2.00 310,000 2.00 935,000 2,860,000 
2.25 385,000 2.00 325,000 2.00 890,000 2,875,000 
2.40 400,000 2.00 330,000 2.00 910,000 2,480,000 

2.00 335,000 2.00 930,000 1,750,000 
2.00 955,000 1,460,000 

$ 2,885,000 $ 2,800,000 $ 9,505,000 $ 30,638,000 

60 



CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA 

Bond and Note Maturities 
(Page 2 of 4) ilD ~A June 30, 2016 

Enter~rise Fund Revenue Bonds 
Sewer Revenue Series 1998A Sewer Revenue Series 19988 Sewer Revenue Series 2007 

Issued March 23, 1998 Issued March 23, 1998 Issued Aug. 23, 2007 
Year 

Ending Interest Interest Interest 
June 30, Rates Amount Rates Amount Rates Amount 

2017 1.75% $ 22,000 1.75 % $ 243,000 3.00% $ 114,000 
2018 1.75 23,000 1.75 252,000 3.00 117,000 
2019 1.75 24,000 1.75 262,000 3.00 121,000 
2020 3.00 416,000 
2021 3.00 430,000 
2022 3.00 444,000 
2023 3.00 459,000 
2024 3.00 475,000 
2025 3.00 486,000 
2026 3.00 654,000 
2027 3.00 675,000 
2028 
2029 
2030 
2031 
2032 
2033 
2034 
2035 
2036 
2037 

Total $ 69,000 $ 757,000 $ 4,391,000 

See accompanying independent auditor's report. 

61 



Schedule 7 

~D AF 
EnterQrise Fund Revenue Bonds 

Sewer Revenue Series 2008A Sewer Revenue Series 2008C Water Revenue Series 20080 
Issued Jul~ 30, 2008 Issued SeQt. 15, 2008 Issued Seet. 15, 2008 

Interest Interest Interest 
Rates Amount Rates Amount Rates Amount 

3.00% $ 141,000 4.00% $ 105,000 4.00% $ 165,000 
3.00 146,000 4.10 110,000 4.10 175,000 
3.00 151,000 4.20 115,000 4.20 180,000 
3.00 156,000 4.25 120,000 4.25 190,000 
3.00 161,000 4.30 125,000 4.30 200,000 
3.00 166,000 4.35 130,000 4.35 210,000 
3.00 171,000 4.40 140,000 4.40 215,000 
3.00 177,000 
3.00 183,000 
3.00 189,000 
3.00 195,000 
3.00 201,000 

$ 2,037,000 $ 845,000 $ 1,335,000 

62 



Year 
Ending 

June 30, 

2017 
2018 
2019 
2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 
2025 
2026 
2027 
2028 
2029 
2030 
2031 
2032 
2033 
2034 
2035 
2036 
2037 

Total 

CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA 

Bond and Note Maturities 
(Page 3 of 4) 
June 30, 2016 

Enterprise Fund Revenue Bonds 
Water Refunding Series 2012C Sewer Refundin[i! Series 2014A 

Issued Nov. 12, 2012 Issued April 23. 2014 

Interest Interest 
Rates Amount Rates Amount 

1.20% $ 175,000 2.00% $ 115,000 
1.40 180,000 2.00 115,000 
1.60 185,000 2.00 115,000 
1.80 190,000 2.00 120,000 
2.00 190,000 2.00 120,000 

2.25 125,000 
2.45 125,000 
2.70 130,000 
3.00 135,000 

$ 920,000 $ 1.100,000 

See accompanying independent auditor's report. 

63 

AFT 

Water Refundina Series 20148 
Issued April 23, 2014 

Interest 
Rates Amount 

2.00% $ 95,000 
2.00 95,000 
2.00 100,000 
2.00 100,000 
2.00 100,000 
2.25 105,000 
2.50 105,000 
2.70 110,000 
3.00 110,000 
3.05 115,000 

$ 1,035,000 



Schedule 7 

~ T 
Water Refunding Series 20148 

Issued A~ril 23, 2014 

Interest 
Rates Amount Total 

1.75% $ $ 1,175,000 
1.75 380,000 1,593,000 
1.75 387,000 1,640,000 
1.75 391,000 1,683,000 
1.75 401,000 1,727,000 
1.75 406,000 1,586,000 
1.75 413,000 1,628,000 
1.75 564,000 1,456,000 
1.75 578,000 1,492,000 
1.75 576,000 1,534,000 
1.75 588,000 1,458,000 
1.75 1,297,000 1,498,000 
1.75 1,531,000 1,531 ,000 

1.75 1,561,000 1,561,000 
1.75 1,592,000 1,592,000 
1.75 1,624,000 1,624,000 

1.75 1,657,000 1,657,000 
1.75 1,690,000 1,690,000 
1.75 1,724,000 1,724,000 
1.75 1,758,000 1,758,000 

1.75 1,793,000 1,793,000 

$ 20,911,000 $ 33,400,000 

64 



CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA 

Bond and Note Maturities 

~ T (Page 4 of 4) 
June 30, 2016 

Road Use Tax Rural Economic Development 
Revenue Bonds Loan and Grant Program 

Road Use Tax Rev. Ser. 2012A Rural Econ. Develoement Loan 
Issued March 29, 2012 Issued Ma~ 8, 2013 

Year 
Ending Interest Interest 

June 30, Rates Amount Rates Amount 

2017 2.00% $ 115,000 0.00% $ 40,000 
2018 2.00 115,000 0.00 40,000 
2019 2.00 115,000 0.00 40,000 
2020 2.00 120,000 0.00 40,000 
2021 2.00 120,000 0.00 40,000 
2022 2.20 125,000 0.00 40,000 
2023 2.40 130,000 0.00 40,000 
2024 2.60 130,000 
2025 2.80 135,000 
2026 2.90 140,000 
2027 3.00 145,000 
2028 
Total $ 1,390,000 $ 280,000 

See accompanying independent auditor's report. 

65 



Schedule 7 

F 

66 



CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA 

Schedule of Receipts By Source and Disbursements By Function ~ 
All Governmental Funds 

Last Ten Years 

2016 2015 2014 

Receipts: 
Property tax $ 7,583,031 $ 6,861,247 $ 6,127,781 
Tax increment financing 4,509,489 3,918,081 3,518,713 
Other city tax 360,492 341,057 31 1,708 
Licenses and permits 478,562 552,067 507,326 
Use of money and property 159,353 149,029 143,887 
lntergovern menta I 3,889,968 2,136,378 2,152,197 
Charges for service 1,893,581 2,219,792 1,674,579 
Special assessments 1,067 
Miscellaneous 471,339 390,306 647,785 

Total $ 19,345,815 $ 16,567,957 $ 15,085,043 

Disbursements: 
Public safety $ 2,836,301 $ 2,563,426 $ 2,315,057 
Public works 1,626,565 1,511,077 1,424,544 
Health and social services 105,350 98,207 97,000 
Culture and recreation 3,593,454 3,458,203 3,208,940 
Community and economic 

development 1,647,664 1, 166,131 898,262 
General government 1,591,679 1,537,711 1,293,854 
Debt service 4,831,259 4,528,242 4,168,095 
Capital projects 8,023,964 4,181,863 5,468,736 

Total $ 24,256,236 $ 19,044,860 $ 18,874,488 

See accompanying independent auditor's report. 

67 

A 

2013 

$ 6,107,502 
3,228,972 

292,566 
565,465 
140,675 

1,767,090 
1,698,909 

1,660 
302,042 

$ 14,104,881 

$ 2,144,553 
1,367,808 

135,150 
2,862,412 

1,097,172 
1,250,373 
3,952,064 
7,091,862 

$ 19,901,394 



Schedule 8 

~D AT 

2012 201 1 2010 2009 2008 2007 

$ 5,502,489 $ 5,314,263 $ 4,914,385 $ 3,863,587 $ 3,093,326 $ 2,430,379 
3,301,297 2,737,069 1,389,368 2,822,497 2,660,586 2,470,154 

291,492 287,105 269,844 267,057 196,571 161,686 
560,046 475,789 501,169 517,615 482,903 617,217 
164,087 177,521 162,861 189,544 180,001 190,964 

2,264,687 1,617,962 883,561 1,078,608 800,564 1,460,925 
1,457,531 1,547,314 1,437,878 1,240,283 1,228,972 982,868 

5,051 6,285 9,620 10,383 24,347 26,182 
545,227 598,909 299,628 205,944 313,332 141,640 

$ 14,091,907 $ 12,762,217 $ 9,868,314 $ 10,195,518 $ 8,980,602 $ 8,482,015 

$ 1,984,061 $ 1,779,435 $ 1,682,165 $ 1,560,255 $ 1,424,463 $ 1,806,083 
1,163,999 1 t 102,168 1,001,921 1,1 48,712 1,143,600 967,256 

86,000 90,446 56,050 70,600 35,020 36,500 
2,825,660 2,692,700 2,466,178 2,578,532 2,281 '120 2,445,972 

1,033,597 927,060 861 ,398 619,737 576,163 520,060 
1 '133,334 1,048,025 875,271 739,891 842,771 739,627 
3,844,731 2,956,440 3,050,069 2,823,582 4,219,859 2,074,465 
7,854,575 8,901 ,225 2,891,519 2,058,032 2,797,451 2,470,613 

$ 19,925,957 $ 19,497,499 $ 12,884,571 $ 11,599,341 $ 13,320,447 $ 11 ,060,576 

68 



CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

~ For the Year Ended June 30, 2016 

Federal Agency or Program/ 
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through CFDA Pass-Through Award 
Grantor/Program Title Number Number Amount 

U.S. DeQartment of TransQortation 

Indirect Programs: 

Passed Through Iowa Department of 
Transportation: 

Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 STP-U-5557(617}--70-52 $1,859,000 

Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 STP-A-5557(619)--86-52 408,000 

Passed Through Governor's Traffic 
Safety Bureau: 

Alcohol Impaired Driving Countermeasures 
Incentive Grants I 20.601 PAP 15-405d-M60T 6,000 

20.601 PAP 16-402-MOPT 9,950 

Total U.S. Department of Transportation 

U.S. DeQartment of Homeland Securit~ 

Direct Programs: 
Assistance to Firefighters Grant 97.044 EMW-2011-FF-00580 163,318 

U.S. DeQartment of Justice 

Direct Programs: 

Bulletproof Vest Partnership Program 16.607 2015BUBX15077810 2,512 
16.607 2016BUBX16082269 4,544 

ARRA - Public Safety Partnership and 
Community Policing Grants 16.710 2014UMWX0153 125,000 

Total U.S. Department of Justice 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

See accompanying independent auditor's report and the accompanying 
notes to the schedule of expenditures of federal awards. 

69 

Schedule 9 

FT 
Federal 
Award 

Expended 

$ 1,212,846 
298,737 

1,511,583 

1,892 
6,170 
8,062 

1,519,645 

51 ,677 

1,403 

1,403 

42,047 

43,450 

$ 1,614,772 



CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA 

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2016 

NOTE A. BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards ("the Schedule") includes the federal 
award activity of the City of North Liberty, Iowa, under programs of the federal government for the year 
ended June 30, 2016. The information in the Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements 
of Title 2, U.S. Code of Federal Regulations, Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 
Principles and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule 
presents only a selected portion of the operations of the City of North Liberty, Iowa, it is not intended to 
and does not present the financial position, changes in financial position or cash flows of the City of North 
Liberty, Iowa. 

NOTE B. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is a summary of the City's federal award 
programs during the year ended June 30, 2016 and is prepared on the basis of cash receipts and 
disbursements, which is a basis of accounting other than accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. Expenditures are recognized following, as applicable, either the cost principles 
in OMB Circular A-87, Cost Principles for State, Local and Indian Tribal Governments, or the cost 
principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or 
are limited as to reimbursement. The City has not elected to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate 
as allowed under the Uniform Guidance. 

NOTE C. RISK-BASED AUDIT APPROACH 

The dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs is $750,000. The City 
does not qualify as a low-risk auditee. 

NOTE D. SUBRECIPIENTS OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

There were no subrecipients of federal awards received by the City during the year ended June 30, 2016. 

NOTE E. NONCASH ASSISTANCE 

The City did not receive any federal noncash assistance during the year ended June 30, 2016. 

70 



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Honorable Mayor and 
Members of the City Council 
City of North Liberty, Iowa 

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in the Government Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business type 
activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of North Liberty, Iowa, as of 
and for the year ended June 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise the City's basic financial statements, and have Issued our report thereon dated January 1 0, 2017. Our 
report expressed unmodified opinions on the financial statements which were prepared on the basis of cash 
receipts and disbursements, a basis of accounting other than accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City of North Liberty, Iowa's 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of North Liberty, Iowa's internal control. Accordingly, we 
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of North Liberty, Iowa's Internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect and correct 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in Internal 
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the City's financial statements will 
not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough 
to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and 
was not designed to Identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we 
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

130 1 19th Avenue NW 
Cl inton, Iowa 52732 
tel: 563.242.3440 
j(IX: 563.242.5555 

5 19 Kirkwood Avenue 
Iowa City, Iowa 52240 
tel: 319.351.0231 
fax: 319.351.7720 

71 

www. wpl'-cpu.com 



Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of North Liberty, Iowa's financial statements are 
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions 
was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests 
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government 
Auditing Standards. However, we noted certain immaterial instances of noncompliance and other matters which 
are described in Part IV of the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. 

Comments involving statutory and other legal matters about the City of North Liberty, Iowa's operations for the year 
ended June 30, 2016 are based exclusively on knowledge obtained from procedures during our audit of the 
financial statements of the City of North Liberty, Iowa. Since our audit was based on tests and samples, not all 
transactions that might have an impact on the comments were necessarily audited. The comments involving 
statutory and other legal matters are not intended to constitute legal interpretations of those statutes. 

City of North Liberty, Iowa's Responses to Findings 

The City of North Liberty, Iowa's responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. The City of North Liberty, Iowa's responses were not subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on 
them. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control or on 
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the City's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not 
suitable for any other purpose. 

We would like to acknowledge the many courtesies and assistance extended to us by personnel of the City of 
North Liberty, Iowa during the course of our audit. Should you have any questions concerning any of the above 
matters, we shall be pleased to discuss them with you at your convenience. 

Iowa City, Iowa 
January 10, 2017 

72 



P A Winkel, Parker 
t# & Foster, CPA PC 

Certified Pul,lic i\ccoun lnnll & Consultanh 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE 
FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL 

OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

To the Honorable Mayor and 
Members of the City Council 

City of North Liberty, Iowa 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

AF 

We have audited the City of North Liberty, Iowa's compliance with the types of compliance requirements described 
in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material 
effect on the City of North Liberty, Iowa's major federal program for the year ended June 30, 2016. The City of 
North Liberty, Iowa's major federal program is identified in the Part I of the accompanying Schedule of Findings and 
Questioned Costs. 

Management's Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants 
applicable to its federal programs. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for the City of North Liberty, Iowa's major federal program 
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of 
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2, U.S. Code of Federal Regulations, Part 200, 
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform 
Guidance) . Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above 
that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on 
a test basis, evidence about the City of North Uberty, Iowa's compliance with those requirements and performing 
such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for the major federal program. 
However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the City of North Liberty, Iowa's compliance. 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

In our opinion, the City of North Liberty, Iowa complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal program for the year ended June 
30, 2016. 

130 1 19th Avenue NW 
Clinton, Iowa .'52732 
1ef: 563.242.3440 
ja.1: 563.242.5555 

.'5 19 Kirkwood Avenue 
!own City, Iowa 52240 
ud: J f 9.351.02J I 
fox: 3/9.351.7720 

73 

www. wpf-cpa.com 



~ORA 
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management of the City of North Liberty, Iowa is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal 
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing 
our audit of compliance, we considered the City of North Liberty, Iowa's internal control over compliance with the 
types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the 
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in 
accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of 
North Liberty, Iowa's internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance 
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, 
or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. 
A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A 
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a 
material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of 
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be 
material weakness or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not 
been identified. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance Is solely to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. 
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Iowa City, Iowa 
January 10, 2017 

74 



CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Year Ended June 30, 2016 

Part I. Summary of the Independent Auditor's Results: 

Financial Statements 

Type of auditor's report Issued: 

Internal control over financial reporting: 
Material weakness identified? 
Significant deficiency identified not considered to be 
material weaknesses? 

Noncompliance material to financia l statements noted? 

Federal Awards 

Internal control over major programs: 
Material weakness identified? 
Significant deficiency Identified not considered to be 
material weaknesses? 

Type of auditor's report Issued on compliance for major 
programs: 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported 
in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, Section 200.515? 

Identification of major program: 

Unmodified 

yes 

yes 

yes 

yes 

yes 

Unmodified 

yes 

CFDANumber Name of Federal Program or Cluster 

20.205 Highway Planning and Construction 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and 
Type B programs: 

Auditee qualified as low-risl< auditee? 

75 

$750,000 

yes 

X no 

X none reported 

X no 

X no 

X none reported 

X no 

X no 



Part II. 

CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Year Ended June 30, 2016 

Current Year Findings Related to the Financial Statements 

Internal Control Deficiencies 

No matters were noted. 

Instances of Noncompliance 

No matters were noted. 

Part Ill. Current Year Findings and Questioned Costs for Federal Awards 

Instances of Noncompliance 

No matters were noted. 

Internal Control Deficiencies 

No matters were noted. 

76 



CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

YearEndedJune30,2016 

Part IV. Other Findings Related to Required Statutory Reporting 

2016-001 Certified Budget - Disbursements during the year ended June 30, 2016 for the health and social 
services function exceeded the budgeted amount. 

Recommendation - The budget should have been amended in accordance with Chapter 384. 18 of the 
Code of Iowa before disbursements were allowed to exceed the budget. 

Response - The City will amend the budget and will monitor expenditures to ensure that overages do 
not occur. 

Conclusion - Response accepted. 

2016-002 Questionable Disbursements - We noted no disbursements that may not meet the requirements of 
public purpose as defined in an Attorney General's opinion dated April 25, 1979. 

2016-003 Travel Expenses - No disbursements of City money for travel expenses of spouses of City officials or 
employees were noted. 

2016-004 Business Transactions with City Officials and Employees - We noted no business transactions 
between the City and City officials or employees during the year ended June 30, 2016. 

2016-005 Bond Coverage- Surety bond coverage of City officials and employees is in accordance with statutory 
provisions. The amount of coverage should be reviewed annually to ensure that the coverage is 
adequate for current operations. 

2016-006 Publication of Council Minutes - No transactions were noted from the minutes of the Council 
meetings that we believe should have been approved by the Council but were not. The minutes of all 
Council meetings tested for compliance with publication were made within fifteen days as required by 
Chapter 372. 13(6) of the Code of Iowa. 

2016-007 Deposits and Investments 

Comment - The maximum depository amount at one of the banks the City is authorized to bank with 
was exceeded for two days in April 2016. It appears that the maximum depository amount was 
exceeded due to the significant property tax receipts during the month. Transfers to accounts at other 
banks in amounts that exceeded the excess amount were noted to have cleared in two days. 

Recommendation- Total deposits on hand at the banks the City is authorized to bank with should be 
reviewed on a regular basis by appropriate City staff in order to minimize the time that balances at any 
of the authorized depositories exceed, or are expected to exceed, the maximum depository amounts. 

Response - City staff have reminders to check amounts on hand in September and April when 
property tax revenues are received to ensure funds on deposit do not exceed the depository limit. The 
Hills Bank and Trust Company deposit limit Is set at $13,000,000 to allow for adequate bond payment 
funds on June 1. 

Conclusion - Response accepted. 

77 



CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Year Ended June 30, 2016 

Part IV. Other Findings Related to Required Statutory Reporting (Continued) 

2016-008 Revenue Bonds - No instances of noncompliance with the revenue bond resolutions or other 
requirements of those bonds were noted. 

2016-009 Financial Condition 

Comment - The City had deficit balances at June 30, 2016 in three capital projects funds, the Park 
Development capital reserve account within the General Fund and the Sewer Capital Projects capital 
projects account within the Sewer Enterprise Fund that arose because project and construction costs 
were incurred prior to the availability of funds. 

Recommendation - In many situations common to governmental entities, the costs of construction 
projects and activities are expended prior to the availability of certain funds. The City has followed the 
practice of using available City funds to pay for project and construction costs and then seek grant 
reimbursements or authorize the sale of bonds to replenish the fund balances. The City should make 
sure that there are adequate revenues, grants, proceeds from sales of bonds and available City funds 
to cover the costs of these projects and construction activities. 

Response - The City plans borrowing on a regular basis to ensure that negative fund balances are 
eliminated, but the most cost-effective borrowing plan is implemented. Funds that historically had 
negative balances are being remedied through annual regular transfers to eliminate the deficits. 

Conclusion - Response accepted. 

2016-010 Annual Urban Renewal Report - The annual urban renewal report was properly approved and certified 
to the Iowa Department of Management on or before December 1 and no exceptions were noted. 

78 



North Liberty – 2017  Resolution Number 2017-01 
Page 1 

Resolution No. 2017-01 
 

RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE AUDIT REPORT FOR FISCAL YEAR 
2016 AS COMPLETED BY WINKEL, PARKER & FOSTER CPA, PC 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, 

IOWA: 
 
WHEREAS, Winkel, Parker & Foster CPA, PC has completed the Audit Report for 

Fiscal Year 2016;  
 

WHEREAS, the City Council has received the City’s Audit Report; and 
 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of North Liberty, Iowa, 
that the Audit Report for Fiscal Year 2016 as completed by Winkel, Parker & Foster CPA, PC 
is accepted 

 
 APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 10th day of January, 2017. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY:    ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________________________  _______________________________________ 
TERRY L. DONAHUE, MAYOR PRO TEM  TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 
 



 

 
 

O’Reilly’s Auto Parts Site 
Plan 

 



October 26, 2016 

 

Memo 
 
To: North Liberty Planning Commission 
From: Dean Wheatley, Planning Director 
Subject: Site Plan Approval Request 
(Lot A, Wallace First Subdivision) 
 
Your North Liberty city staff has reviewed the subject submission, and offer comments presented in this 
memo. The staff review team includes the following personnel: 
Ryan Heiar, City Administrator 
Tracey Mulcahey, Assistant City Administrator 
Tom Palmer, City Building Official 
Scott Peterson, City Attorney 
Kevin Trom, City Engineer 
Dean Wheatley, Planning Director 
 
This request from O’Reilly Automotive Stores to approve a site plan for a new auto parts store located 
on the west side of Highway 965 just north of the Zeller Street Hills Bank location. The zoning is C-2-A, 
commercial, and property north and south is also zoned commercial. Property to the rear of the site is 
zoned RM-21, multi-family residential, and is developed with condominiums. 
 
This plan proposes a single building and large parking lot containing many more parking spaces than 
required by code. A draft plan was provided to staff ahead of the application to allow for early review 
comments, but a number of those comments, including code requirements, were not followed up on 
and cordial but repeated restatements of code items have been required.  
 
The building design is corporate in nature and meets masonry requirements but is not consistent with 
design qualities expected by the City and developed over time working with other corporate 
establishments such as McDonalds and Arby’s, nor is it compatible with the high quality design in 
buildings on either side of the applicant’s lot. It is basically a rectangular block building with only front 
windows. In working with the architect for the applicant, several changes were made to the original 
submission in response to staff comments, including: 

o Adding column offsets at the corners of the building. 
o Adding a stone wainscoting on the front and sides of the building. 
o Adding a metal canopy over the front door. 

However, while all of these changes are positive, the lack of windows on the building, whether real or 
faux, still gives the appearance of a more industrial bunker-style building. Development as proposed 
would be incompatible with lots on either side and with the general level of design quality the City has 
worked hard to attain. 
 
In addition, the building is set in a sea of concrete, with minimal landscaping shown at the front of the 

dwheatley
Text Box
Recommended by Planning Commission for approval 11/1/2016, subject to conditions in this report plus upgrading the building with additional windows. Since that time the applicant has worked with staff to address those issues.



lot. Required pedestrian-oriented feature(s) are minimal, including a colored sidewalk extension up to 
the front door, a relatively small landscaped area, and the addition of the metal canopy over the front 
door as noted above.  
 
Overall, the site plan and building are utilitarian and functional, but not consistent with North Liberty 
design expectations and established norms despite some improvements from the original submission, 
and staff recommends denial of the site plan. 
 

Ordinance submission/design standard provisions.  

1. Add undulating berming to the east frontage. 

2. Provide accessible means of egress by removing the curb barrier between the north egress door and 
sidewalk. 

 

 

Notes:  

A BMP maintenance agreement is required. The City Attorney will draft the agreement, but the 
applicant must supply the proposed BMP maintenance requirements for the agreement.  As part of the 
Stormwater Rules/BMP Agreement, the owner will be required to inspect the BMP as constructed, 
provide as-built drawings of the BMP, and certify (by the Engineer of Record) upon completion that the 
BMP was installed and is functioning in compliance with the design intent. 

Coordinate the building sewer connection with the Building Inspection Dept.  

Provide either an assessment release or one-time cash payment for future installation of sidewalk along 
Highway 965. 

 







PA
RT

S
AU

TO

3
8
5
5
 S

. 
J
e
f
f
e
r
s
o
n
 A

v
e
.

S
p
r
in

g
f
ie

l
d
, 
M

O
 6

5
8
0
7

P
: 
4
1
7
-8

8
2
-2

2
0
0

F
: 
4
1
7
-8

8
2
-1

1
8
8

w
w
w
.s

m
it

h
g
o
t
h
.c

o
m

S
m
it

h
-G

o
t
h
 E

n
g
in

e
e
r
s
,
In

c
.

S
G
E

NORMAN
E. GOTH

13794

IOWA

10/12/16

LIC
EN

SE
D

RE
ENI

GN
ELANOI

PROFESS

57'-0"

58'-6"

DOOR DOOR
DEALER EGRESS

TRASH
PAD

BUILDING TYPE: BLOCK
SQ. FT. = 7,885
86'-4" X 91'-4"

O'Reilly Auto Parts

PORTAL: 50'-8"
FLOOR ELEVATION: 774.00' (F.F.E. ON
SUCCEEDING SHEETS TO BE 100.00')

811

SCALE:  1" = 20'

N

77
3

775 775

77
5

768

770

77
5

775

CAUTION: PERMIT REQUIRED











dwheatley
Text Box
Original elevations - tabled by Council. See next page for revisions.



dwheatley
Text Box
Revised elevations for Council consideration.



dwheatley
Text Box
This page will change if elevations are approved by Council.



SCALE:  1"=20'

PA
RT

S
AU

TO

3
8
5
5
 S

. 
J
e
f
f
e
r
s
o
n
 A

v
e
.

S
p
r
in

g
f
ie

l
d
, 
M

O
 6

5
8
0
7

P
: 
4
1
7
-8

8
2
-2

2
0
0

F
: 
4
1
7
-8

8
2
-1

1
8
8

w
w
w
.s

m
it

h
g
o
t
h
.c

o
m

S
m
it

h
-G

o
t
h
 E

n
g
in

e
e
r
s
,
In

c
.

S
G
E

NORMAN

E. GOTH

13794

I

O

W
A

08/05/16

L
I
C

E

N

S

E

D

R
E

E

N
I

G

N

E

L

A

N

OI

P

R

O

F

E
SS

S89°36'12"W 334.85'

N
0
1
°
1
7
'
2
5
"
W

 
1
5
9
.
9
0
'

N89°36'44"E 335.01'

S
0
1
°
1
4
'
0
5
"
E

 
1
5
9
.
8
5
'

DOOR

EGRESS

DOOR

DEALER

TRASH

PAD

BUILDING TYPE: BLOCK

SQ. FT. = 7,885

86'-4" X 91'-4"

O'Reilly Auto Parts

5
7
'
-
0
"

58'-6"

PORTAL: 50'-8"

FLOOR ELEVATION: 774.00' (F.F.E. ON

SUCCEEDING SHEETS TO BE 100.00')

1.55

2.00

1.47

1.13

0.59

2.42

2.36

2.47

1.46

0.72

2.45

2.60

1.91

0.97

0.66

1.24

1.22

1.43

1.20

0.81

0.63

2.63

2.01

0.98

6.83

3.52

1.13

11.45

4.46

1.27

8.63

4.85

1.39

7.75

4.09

1.17

6.28

2.87

0.93

3.12

3.90

3.58

2.44

3.60

3.97

4.91

2.58

0.95

3.65

5.99

3.25

2.84

3.53

5.70

3.70

2.48

1.20

2.51

3.63

2.86

2.45

2.42

2.93

3.39

2.18

0.84

2.67

2.67

3.16

1.96

1.91

3.11

2.61

2.70

1.27

1.70

2.59

2.92

1.81

1.78

2.54

1.76

2.88

2.05

2.00

1.45

0.02 0.06 0.14 0.26
0.38 0.43 0.47 0.49 0.44 0.41 0.41 0.38 0.33 0.32 0.32 0.36 0.12 0.10 0.08 0.12 0.23 0.17 0.10

0.12

0.22

0.31

0.38

0.45

0.47

0.41

0.34

0.25

0.16

0.08

0.160.240.370.140.220.260.350.620.430.110.050.020.010.080.110.140.130.110.090.060.030.01

0.02

0.02

0.02

0.01

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.01

0.02

N



City of North Liberty – 2017  Resolution Number 2017-02 
Page: 1 

Resolution No. 2017-02 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE DEVELOPMENT SITE PLAN 
FOR LOT A, WALLACE FIRST SUBDIVISION, NORTH 
LIBERTY, IOWA 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, 

IOWA: 
  
 WHEREAS, the owner, O’Reilly Auto Parts, has filed with the City Clerk a 
development site plan;  
 
 WHEREAS, the property is legally described as:  
 

Lot A, Wallace First Subdivision, and subject to easements and restrictions of 
record;     

 WHEREAS, said site plan is found to conform with the Comprehensive Plan and the 
Zoning Ordinance of the City of North Liberty; and 
 
 WHEREAS, said site plan has been examined by the North Liberty Planning and 
Zoning Commission, which recommended that the site plan be approved.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of North Liberty, Iowa, 
does hereby approve the development site plan for O’Reilly Auto Parts North Liberty, Iowa. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 10th day of January, 2017. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY:    ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________________________  _______________________________________ 
TERRY L. DONAHUE, MAYOR PRO TEM  TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 
 



 

 
 

Ogden Agreement 
 







North Liberty – 2017  Resolution Number 2017-03 
Page 1 

Resolution No. 2017-03 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
LARRY H. OGDEN AND MARY JO OGDEN AND THE CITY OF 
NORTH LIBERTY, JOHNSON COUNTY IOWA 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, 

IOWA:  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council desires to enter into an agreement with Larry H. Ogden 

and Mary Jo Ogden regarding the Temporary Easement Agreement entered into on April 
30, 2015, and  

 
WHEREAS, circumstances have arisen entitling the Grantor to additional 

compensation in the amount of $2,800, $1,750 from Langman Construction and $1,050 
from the City of North Liberty, and  

 
WHEREAS, Langman Construction previously accepted responsibility for removal of 

rock in the staging area that has not been completed, 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that that the attached agreement between 

the City of North Liberty and Larry H. Ogden and Mary Jo Ogden are approved. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized to 

execute said agreement.  
  

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 10th day of January, 2017. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY:    ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________________________  _______________________________________ 
TERRY L. DONAHUE, MAYOR PRO TEM  TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 
 



 

 
 

North Liberty Road 
Project  

 



R
.O

.W
.

10062
750.31
TS

10361
753.34
TS

O
AK

RI
DG

E 
RD

. N
E

1+00 2+00 3+00 4+00 5+00 6+00 7+00 8+00 9+00 10+00 11+00 12+00 13+00 14+00 15+00 16+00 17+00 18+00 19+00 20+00 21+00 22+00 23+00 24+00
25+00

26+00

27+00

28+00

29+00

30+00

31+00

32+00

33+00

34+00

35+00

36+00

37
+0

0

38
+0

0

39
+0

0
40

+0
0

41
+0

0
42

+0
0

43
+0

0
44

+0
0

45
+0

0
46

+0
0

47
+0

0
48

+0
0

49
+0

0
50

+0
0

51
+0

0
52

+0
0

53
+0

0
54

+0
0

55
+0

0
56

+0
0

21+00 22+00 23+00 24+00
25+00

26+00

27+00

28+00

29+00

30+00

31+00

32+00

33+00

34+00

35+00

36+00

37
+0

0

38
+0

0

21+00 22+00 23+00 24+00
25+00

26+00

27+00

28+00

29+00

30+00

31+00

32+00

33+00

34+00

35+00

36+00

37
+0

0

38
+0

0

Scanlon
Family Farm

Scanlon
Family Farm

Scanlon
Family Farm

Bill
Simmons Jim Jedlicka

(2562 NL Rd)

Scanlon Family Farm
(2572 NL Rd)

Scanlon
Family Farm

Gerdin Family
Investments

Larry Hofman
(2530 NL Rd)

Charles Waters
(2536 NL Rd)

Robins Peters
(2544 NL Rd)

Joan Liddell
(2550 NL Rd)

Arlington Height
Homeowner Association

Life Church
Assembly of God

Linn
County
REC

Randall Belknap
(2551 NL Rd)

PROPOSED
ROW

EXISTING
ROW

EXISTING
ROW

EXISTING
EASEMENT

PROPOSED
ROW

EXISTING
ROW

PROPOSED
ROAD CL

EXISTING
ROAD CL

PROPERTY
LINE

PROPOSED
ROAD CL

EXISTING
ROAD CL

PROPERTY
LINE

PROPOSED
ROAD CL

EXISTING
ROAD CL PROPERTY

LINE

EXISTING
ROW

PROPOSED
ROAD CL

EXISTING
ROAD CL

PROPOSED
ROW

ROW TO BE
VACATED
(COUNTY)

Bill
Simmons Jim Jedlicka

(2562 NL Rd)

Scanlon
Family Farm

Scanlon
Family Farm

ROW TO BE
VACATED

(CITY)

PROPOSED
ROAD CL

SIMMONS
ADDITIONAL
PROPERTY

NEW ROAD
ROW LIMITS

(CITY)

JEDLICKA
ADDITIONAL
PROPERTY

Bill
Simmons

Jim Jedlicka
(2562 NL Rd)

Scanlon
Family Farm

Scanlon
Family Farm

SCANLON
ADDITIONAL
PROPERTY

NEW ROAD
ROW LIMITS
(COUNTY)

EXISTING RIGHT-OF-WAY/PROPERTY LIMITS
WITH PROPOSED RIGHT-OF-WAY

PROPOSED PROPERTY LINES/LIMITS/AREA

ALL PROPERTY/RIGHT-OF-WAY
NORTH AND EAST OF EXISTING
ROADWAY CENTER LINE IS IN
JOHNSOHN COUNTY JURISDICTION

ALL PROPERTY/RIGHT-OF-WAY
SOUTH AND WEST OF EXISTING
ROADWAY CENTER LINE IS IN
NORTH LIBERTY JURISDICTION

ROW/Property Quantity Table

ROW/Property Summary                        Approx SF         Approx AC
Liddell ROW needed:                                14700 SF           0.34 AC
Simmons ROW needed:                           10200 SF           0.23 AC
Scanlon ROW needed:                           105800 SF           2.43 AC

Vacated ROW:                                          42750 SF           0.98 AC

Simmons Additional Property:                   15400 SF           0.35 AC
Jedlicka Additional Property                        6400 SF           0.15 AC
Scanlon Additional Property:                     20930 SF           0.48 AC

*Includes the transfer of 2360 SF to Jedlicka and 1440 SF to Simmons.

NORTH LIBERTY ROAD - RIGHT-OF-WAY AND PROPERTY ACQUSITION EJM - 8-24-2016

SCALE: 1" = 80'

SCALE: 1" = 80'

SCALE: 1" = 80'

EXISTING
ROW LINE

ejmunch
Rectangle

atjohns
Text Box
EXISTING ROW

atjohns
Text Box
EXISTING ROW

atjohns
Text Box
EXISTING ROW

atjohns
Text Box
SIMMONS ADDITIONAL PROPERTY

atjohns
Text Box
EXISTING ROW

atjohns
Text Box
PROPERTY LINE

atjohns
Text Box
PROPERTY LINE

atjohns
Text Box
PROPERTY LINE

atjohns
Text Box
JEDLICKA ADDITIONAL PROPERTY

atjohns
Text Box
Jim Jedlicka (2562 NL Rd)

atjohns
Text Box
EXISTING ROW LINE

atjohns
Text Box
ROW TO BE VACATED (COUNTY)

atjohns
Text Box
ROW TO BE VACATED (CITY)

atjohns
Text Box
Jim Jedlicka (2562 NL Rd)

atjohns
Text Box
ACQUISITION



North Liberty – 2017  Resolution Number 2017-04 
Page 1 

Resolution No. 2017-04 
 
RESOLUTION FINALLY APPROVING AND CONFIRMING PLANS, 
SPECIFICATIONS, FORM OF CONTRACT AND ESTIMATE OF COST FOR 
THE NORTH LIBERTY ROAD IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of North Liberty, Iowa, has heretofore given 

preliminary approval to the plans, specifications, form of contract and estimate of cost (the 
“Contract Documents”) for the proposed North Liberty Road Improvements Project (the 
“Project”), as described in the notice of hearing on the Contract Documents for the Project 
and the taking of bids therefor; and 

WHEREAS, a hearing has been held on the Contract Documents on January 10, 
2017; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of North 
Liberty, Iowa, as follows: 

Section 1. The City Council hereby delegates to the City Clerk and/or the Project Engineer the 
duty of receiving bids for the Project until 10:00 o’clock a.m. on January 16, 2017 at the City 
Administration Building in the City.  At such time and place the City Clerk and/or the Project 
Engineer open such bids received and announce the results thereof.  The City Council will 
consider bids received at the City Council meeting to be held on January 24, 2017 at 6:30 p.m. at 
City Council Chambers in the City. 
 
Section 2. The City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to give notice of the hearing and 
taking of bids by publication as required by law, which publication shall be made not less than 4 
and not more than 45 days prior to the date for receipt of bids and not less than 4 and not more 
than 20 days prior to the date of the said hearing.  The said notice shall be in the form 
substantially as attached to this resolution. 
 
Section 3. “Pursuant to Section 1.150-2 of the Income Tax Regulations (the “Regulations”) of 
the Internal Revenue Service, the City declares (a) that it intends to undertake the Project, (b) 
that other than (i) expenditures to be paid or reimbursed from sources other than the issuance of 
bonds, notes or other obligations (the “Bonds”), or (ii) expenditures made not earlier than 60 
days prior to the date of this Resolution or a previous intent resolution of the City, or (iii) 
expenditures amounting to the lesser of $100,000 or 5% of the proceeds of the Bonds, or (iv) 
expenditures constituting preliminary expenditures as defined in Section 1.150-2(f)(2) of the 
Regulations, no expenditures for the Project have heretofore been made by the City and no 
expenditures will be made by the City until after the date of this Resolution or a prior intent 
resolution of the City, and (c) that the City reasonably expects to reimburse the expenditures 
made for costs of the City out of the proceeds of the Bonds.  This declaration is a declaration of 
official intent adopted pursuant to Section 1.150-2 of the Regulations. 
 



North Liberty – 2017  Resolution Number 2017-04 
Page 2 

Section 4. The Contract Documents referred to in the preamble hereof are hereby finally 
approved, and the prior action of the City Council giving preliminary approval is hereby 
finally confirmed, and the Project, as provided for in the Contract Documents, is necessary 
and desirable. 
 
Section 5. All resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby repealed to 
the extent of such conflict. 
 
 APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 10th day of January, 2017. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY:    ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________________  _______________________________________ 
TERRY L. DONAHUE, MAYOR PRO TEM  TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 
 



 

 
 

Telecommunications 
Commission Ordinance 

 



City of North Liberty – 2016   Ordinance Number 2016-18 
Page: 1 

ORDINANCE NO. 2016-18 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 25, “TELECOMMUNICATIONS COMMISSION” 
OF THE NORTH LIBERTY CODE OF ORDINANCES BY REPEALING CURRENT 
CHAPTER 25 AND ADOPTING NEW CHAPTER 25, “COMMUNICATIONS ADVISORY 
COMMISSION” 
 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA: 
 
SECTION 1.  AMENDMENT.  Chapter 25, "Telecommunications Commission," of the North Liberty Code of 
Ordinances (2015) is hereby amended by repealing Chapter 27 and adopting in lieu thereof a new Chapter 25 to 
read as follows: 

 
CHAPTER 25 

COMMUNICATIONS ADVISORY COMMISSION 
 

25.01  Purpose 25.05  Compensation 
25.02  Commission Established 25.06  Election of Officers 
25.03  Appointment and Terms 25.07  Meetings 
25.04  Duties 25.08  Rules and Regulations 
 
 
25.01  PURPOSE.  The purpose of this chapter is to establish a Communications Advisory Commission for the 
purpose of advising, assisting and overseeing the communications efforts of the City.  
 
25.02  COMMISSION ESTABLISHED.  There is established a Communications Advisory Commission for the 
City.  
 
25.03  APPOINTMENT AND TERMS.  The Communications Advisory Commission shall consist of five 
members appointed by the Mayor, subject to the approval of the Council.  The Commission members shall be at 
least eighteen years of age and legal residents of the City,.  The five members shall be appointed for staggered 
terms, with no more than two members having their appointment end in a single year.  All appointments shall 
be for terms of three years.  In the event of a vacancy, a successor shall be appointed to fill the unexpired term 
for which such former member was originally appointed. 

 
25.04  DUTIES.  The duties of the Communications Advisory Commission are as follows: 
 

1. Recommend and review policies, rules, regulations, ordinances, and budgets relating to 
communications and engagement initiatives of the City and make such reports to the Council as the 
Commission deems in the public interest. 
 
   2. Assure that the operation of the public access channel be as free of program censorship and 
control as legally possible. 
 
   3. Perform such other duties and functions relative to the communications department as may be 
appropriate in order to maximize their use among the widest range of individuals, institutions, and other 
organizations within the City.   

  
25.05  COMPENSATION.  Members of the Communications Advisory Commission shall serve without 
compensation. 
  
25.06  ELECTION OF OFFICERS.  The Commission shall elect from its own membership at its regular meeting 
in July its Chairperson and Vice Chair, each to serve for a term of one year.  The Commission shall also appoint a 
Secretary at its regular July meeting, who may be (but need not be) a member of the Commission.  
 
25.07  MEETINGS. 



City of North Liberty – 2016   Ordinance Number 2016-18 
Page: 2 

 
1. The Commission shall hold at least one regular meeting during each calendar quarter, or as 
needed, the time and place to be determined by its rules. 
 
2.    The Chairperson, Vice Chair or any three of the members of the Commission may call a special 
meeting. 
 
3.    A quorum of the Commission shall be three members.  
 
4.    The Chairperson shall vote as a member of the Commission. 
 
5.    The Commission shall submit minutes of any meeting to the City Clerk within a reasonable time 
after the meeting, but the submission shall be prior to the next regularly scheduled City Council meeting 
following said Commission meeting. 

 
25.08 RULES AND REGULATIONS.  The Commission shall adopt such rules and regulations as it deems 
necessary to carry out its functions and conduct its meetings.  
 
SECTION 2.  REPEALER.  All Ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this 
Ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 
SECTION 3.  SEVERABILITY.  If any section, provision or part of this Ordinance shall be adjudged invalid or 
unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of the Ordinance as a whole or any section, 
provision or part thereof not adjudged invalid or unconstitutional. 
 
SECTION 4. WHEN EFFECTIVE. This ordinance shall be in effect from and after its final passage, approval and 
publication as provided by law.  
 
First reading on December 13, 2016. 
Second reading on December 27, 2016. 
Third and final reading on ____________________, 2017. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY:   ATTEST: 
 
______________________________________________ _______________________________ 
TERRY L. DONAHUE, MAYOR PRO TEM TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 
 
 
I certify that the forgoing was published as Ordinance No.                    in the North Liberty 
Leader on the _____ day of _________________, 2017.   
 
___________________________________________      
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 
 
 



 

 
 

Mayoral Vacancy 
 









 

 
 

Additional Information 
 



 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
December Permit Report: 
 
Thirty-nine permits were issued in December with estimated construction value of $2,024,738.16. Eight 
permits were issued for single family dwelling units with a value of over 1.8 million dollars.    Staff completed 
339 inspections.   
 

 
Certificate of Occupancy: 
 
Nine occupancy certificates were issued for single-family dwelling units, one for residential remodel project 
and two for commercial remodel projects.  Three businesses obtained zoning certificates. Spotix, BeerBurger 
and C & R Motors.  
 
  
Rental/Code Enforcement: 
 
Fourteen new rental permit applications were received in December.  Seventeen rental inspections were 
completed along with twenty-six code enforcement complaints were handled in December.   
 
 
 
2016 Year End Permit Report: 
 
One-hundred twenty-one permits were issued for residential units in 2016 with a construction value of over 32 
million dollars. For second year in a row no permits were issued for townhouse projects. One permit was 
issued for 28 unit multi-family project. Total construction valuation $60,529,356.12.  Inspection staff 
completed 5,604 inspections.    

To: Mayor and City Council 

From: Tom Palmer, Building Official 
CC: City Administrator 

Date: 1/4/2017 
Re: Monthly Report 



December 2016
Monthly Permit Report

Department of Building Safety
319-626-5713

www.northlibertyiowa.org

Code Permit Purpose Permits Construction Value Permit Fees Bldgs. Units Notes
1 New Single Family Dwelling 4 $909,535.00 $8,828.39 4 4
2 New Single Family Dwelling Attached 4 $960,000.00 $8,811.00 2 4
3 New Townhouse 0 $0.00 $0.00 0 0
4 New Multi-Family Housing 0 $0.00 $0.00 0 0
5 New Commercial 0 $0.00 $0.00 0 0
6 New Industrial 0 $0.00 $0.00 0 0
7 School 0 $0.00 $0.00   
8 Residential Alteration 4 $53,680.00 $891.14   
9 Residential Addition 0 $0.00 $0.00   

10 Commercial Alteration 6 $90,430.00 $719.52   
11 Commercial Addition 0 $0.00 $0.00   
12 Industrial Alteration 0 $0.00 $0.00   
13 Industrial Addition 0 $0.00 $0.00   
14 Other 21 $11,093.16 $1,232.50    
15 Public 0 $0.00 $0.00

Totals 39 $2,024,738.16 $20,482.55 6 8

SFD Attached are zero lot line units
Townhouse are 3 or more units with shared side walls and have a rear yard area



2016
Year End Permit Tally Report

Department of Building Safety
319-626-5713

www.northlibertyiowa.org

Code Permit Purpose Permits Construction Value Permit Fees Bldgs. Units Notes
1 New Single Family Dwelling 106 $25,862,267.00 $315,293.40 106 106
2 New Single Family Dwelling Attached 14 $2,491,368.00 $25,692.18 7 14
3 New Townhouse 0 $0.00 $0.00 0 0
4 New Multi-Family Housing 1 $3,978,720.00 $26,284.08 1 28
5 New Commercial 7 $9,556,178.00 $59,005.43 9 113
6 New Industrial 0 $0.00 $14,692.91 0 0
7 School 0 $0.00 $0.00   
8 Residential Alteration 95 $735,970.64 $13,383.81   
9 Residential Addition 7 $196,800.00 $2,669.16   

10 Commercial Alteration 53 $2,716,118.44 $25,544.58   
11 Commercial Addition 2 $130,000.00 $1,435.50   
12 Industrial Alteration 0 $0.00 $0.00   
13 Industrial Addition 0 $0.00 $0.00   
14 Other 724 $1,412,934.04 $86,268.47   
15 Public 1 $13,449,000.00 $0.00   

1010 $60,529,356.12 $570,269.52 123 261

SFD Attached are zero lot line units
Townhouse are 3 or more units with shared side walls and have a rear yard area



Inspections for the Month of Dcember

Total Inspections 336

0 20 40 60 80 100 120

Water Heater

Temporary Electrical Service

Stormwater Quality

Sump Pump discharge Line

Subdivision

Sewer & Water

Residentail Rough‐in

Residentail Final

Rental

Re‐inspection

Public Sidewalk

Post Footings

Plumbing Below Concrete Floor Slab

Permanent Electric Service Release

Other

MS4 Quarterly Erosion Control

Grading

Gas Service Release

Foundation Wall

Foundation Footings

Foundation Dampproffing

Final

Erosion Non‐Compliance Notice

CSR Notice of Termination

Commercial Rough‐In

Commercial Final

1st SWPPP



HOUSING UNITS

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

SDF

Duplex

Townhouse

MFD



$0.00

$20,000,000.00

$40,000,000.00

$60,000,000.00

$80,000,000.00

$100,000,000.00

$120,000,000.00

$140,000,000.00

$160,000,000.00

$180,000,000.00

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Construction Valuation 



Year Percent
January February March April May June July August September October November December To Date To Date

North Liberty 80 75 80 80 57 65 58 73 71 86 84 102 911 80.12%
Madison Township 3 6 9 6 6 7 9 5 6 6 10 7 80 7.04%
Penn Township 13 5 10 10 6 9 8 6 10 14 10 13 114 10.03%
Mutual Aid 2 1 2 1 3 3 10 2 5 0 2 1 32 2.81%
Total Responses 98 87 101 97 72 84 85 86 92 106 106 123 1137

Year Percent
January February March April May June July August September October November December To Date To Date

100 - Fire 1 3 2 4 1 1 6 5 2 1 2 1 29 2.55%
200 - Over Pressure, Overheat 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 3 0.26%
300 - EMS 54 53 55 55 39 47 36 34 44 61 64 70 612 53.83%
400 - Hazardous Condition 2 0 0 3 2 2 3 4 0 2 1 0 19 1.67%
500 - Service Call 7 5 7 5 5 4 1 7 3 7 5 12 68 5.98%
600 - Good Intent Call 12 11 16 20 14 16 25 25 20 18 24 21 222 19.53%
700 - False Alarm & False Call 21 14 20 10 11 14 13 11 23 17 10 18 182 16.01%
800 - Severe Weather 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00%
900 - Special Incident Type 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 2 0.18%
Total Responses 98 87 101 97 72 84 85 86 92 106 106 123 1137

North Liberty Fire Department
2016 Monthly/YTD Hour & Response Report

2016 North Liberty Fire Department Responses By Type of Incident

2016 North Liberty Fire Department Responses By Fire District



Jan Feb Mar April May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
111 Building Fire 0 1 1 0 0 0 1 2 1 0 0 1 7 0.62%
113 Cooking Fire, Confined to Container 0 2 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 4 0.35%
131 Passenger Vehicle Fire 1 0 1 0 0 1 3 1 0 0 0 0 7 0.62%
132 Road freight or transport vehicle fire 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 0.09%
142 Brush or Brush/Grass Fire 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 4 0.35%
143 Grass Fire 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0.09%
151 Outside Rubbish Fire 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 0.09%
162 Outside Equipment Fire 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0.09%

1621 Utility Pole Fire 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 2 0.18%
163 Outside gas or vapor combustion explostion 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 0.09%
251 Excessive Heat/Scorch Burns - No Fire 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 3 0.26% 0.26%
311 Medical Response - Assist JCAS 22 26 19 27 24 21 17 17 21 29 34 36 293 25.77%
321 Medical Response - Provide Pt. Care 27 25 31 24 11 23 16 16 22 30 26 28 279 24.54%
322 Motor Vehicle Accident - With Injuries 1 1 2 2 1 2 0 0 0 0 1 1 11 0.97%
323 Motor Vehicle/Pedestrian Accident 0 0 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 2 0.18%
324 Motor Vehicle Accident - No Injuries 2 1 0 1 2 1 1 1 1 2 3 4 19 1.67%
342 Search for person in water 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0.18%
352 Extrication from Vehicle 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0.09%
361 Swimming Water Rescue 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 0.09%
365 Watercraft Rescue 0 0 2 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 0.35%
411 Flammable Liquid Spill 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0.18%
412 Gas Leak (Natural Gas or LPG) 0 0 0 1 0 1 1 2 0 0 1 0 6 0.53%
413 Oil or other Combustible Liquid Spill 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 3 0.26%
424 Carbon Monoxide Incident 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0.09%
442 Overheated Motor 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 2 0 0 0 0 3 0.26%
463 Accident Clean-up 0 0 0 1 1 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 4 0.35%
550 Public Service Assistance - Other 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0.18%

5501 Install Smoke Alarm/Detector 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0.09%
5502 Replace Smoke Alarm/Detector Batteries 0 1 0 0 2 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 4 0.35%
5503 Check Smoke Alarm/Detector 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0.09%
511 Lock-Out 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0.09%
531 Smoke or Odor Removal 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0.18%
551 Assist Police or Other Gov. Agency 2 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 1 1 0 1 7 0.62%
553 Public Service 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0.09%
554 Assist Invalid 3 3 5 3 0 0 0 3 1 6 5 8 37 3.25%
561 Unauthorized Burning 1 1 2 2 0 2 0 3 0 0 0 1 12 1.06%
611 Cancelled Enroute 10 9 11 15 13 16 23 20 18 13 19 13 180 15.83%
622 No Incident Found upon Arrival 1 2 0 2 0 0 1 4 2 2 4 6 24 2.11%
631 Authorized Controlled Burning 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 4 0.35%
651 Smoke Scare, Odor Smoke 0 0 2 2 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 5 0.44%
653 Smoke for BBQ, Tar Kettle 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0.09%
671 Hazmat Release with No Hazmat 1 0 2 0 1 0 0 1 0 2 0 1 8 0.70%
710 Malicious, Mischievous False Call 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 2 0.18%

7101 Fire Alarm Pull Station by Child 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 2 0.18%
731 Sprinkler Activation - Malfunction 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 4 0.35%
733 Smoke Detector Activation - Malfunction 3 0 3 1 1 3 0 1 2 4 1 5 24 2.11%
735 Alarm Activation - Malfunction 2 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 4 0.35%

7401 Unintentional Transmission of Medical Alarm 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0.09%
7402 Unintentional Transmission of Fire Alarm 0 0 0 1 0 1 1 3 4 1 1 1 13 1.14%
741 Sprinkler Activation - Unintentional 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 2 0.18%
743 Smoke Detector Activation - Unintentional 10 10 16 4 8 6 4 5 13 8 3 8 95 8.36%
744 Detector Activation - Unintentional 1 0 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 4 0.35%
745 Alarm Activation - Unintentional 1 1 0 2 0 3 3 0 3 2 2 0 17 1.50%
746 Carbon Monoxide Detector - No CO 1 2 0 2 1 0 2 1 1 1 2 1 14 1.23%

9001 Fireworks Display Standby 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 0.09%
9004 Special Event Standby 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0.09%

98 87 101 97 72 84 85 86 92 106 106 123 1137
* Partial percentages are rounded up

Total Responses

5.98%

0.18%

53.83%

1.67%

16.01%

19.53%

Year to 
Date

Percent 
to Date

2016 North Liberty Fire Department Responses Incident Type Report Series %

2.55%



Total
January February March April May June July August September October November December

2016 98 87 101 97 72 84 85 86 92 106 106 123 1137
2015 84 77 85 74 85 91 87 93 100 78 91 76 1021
2014 81 61 72 90 79 93 86 100 84 84 82 71 983
2013 73 66 80 71 95 75 84 84 77 83 80 92 960
2012 58 59 66 76 70 81 111 87 62 69 71 75 885
2011 64 57 45 52 52 70 71 63 52 62 54 70 712
2010 72 53 63 45 67 67 55 52 59 53 63 49 698
2009 79 48 60 53 74 71 65 71 46 45 50 61 723
2008 50 68 50 52 53 53 65 60 48 64 50 84 697
2007 47 84 68 59 54 63 66 65 54 41 57 87 745
2006 41 33 35 46 59 59 58 40 40 62 56 56 585

Total
January Jan-Feb Jan-Mar Jan-Apr Jan-May Jan-Jun Jan-July Jan-Aug Jan-Sep Jan-Oct Jan-Nov Jan-Dec

2016 98 185 286 383 455 539 624 710 802 908 1014 1037 1037
2015 84 161 246 320 405 496 583 677 776 854 945 1021 1021
2014 81 142 214 304 383 476 562 662 746 830 912 983 983
2013 73 139 219 290 385 460 544 628 705 788 868 960 960
2012 58 117 183 259 329 410 521 608 670 739 810 885 885
2011 64 121 166 218 270 340 411 474 526 588 642 712 712
2010 72 125 188 233 300 367 422 474 533 586 649 698 698
2009 79 127 187 240 314 385 450 521 567 612 662 723 723
2008 50 118 168 220 273 326 391 451 499 563 613 697 697
2007 47 131 199 258 312 375 441 506 560 601 658 745 745
2006 41 74 109 155 214 273 331 371 411 473 529 585 585

YTD Monthly Incident Comparison (2006-2016)

Monthly Incident Comparison (2006-2016)



Year Percent
January February March April May June July August September October November December To Date To Date

Sunday 20 12 12 15 9 14 13 9 15 21 11 11 162 14.25%
Monday 21 11 20 14 8 5 6 7 8 15 17 21 153 13.46%
Tuesday 11 17 19 9 16 9 15 9 13 9 15 16 158 13.90%
Wednesday 10 13 18 12 9 16 13 17 10 19 13 12 162 14.25%
Thursday 10 11 10 17 12 8 11 14 15 11 16 17 152 13.37%
Friday 12 15 13 18 9 18 16 18 24 15 22 23 203 17.85%
Saturday 14 8 9 12 9 14 11 12 7 16 12 23 147 12.93%
Total Responses 98 87 101 97 72 84 85 86 92 106 106 123 1137

Year Percent
January February March April May June July August September October November December To Date To Date

12:00 AM 1 4 1 3 1 4 1 2 1 0 6 8 32 2.81%
1:00 AM 3 4 2 2 1 0 5 3 5 1 2 0 28 2.46%
2:00 AM 3 6 3 2 1 3 2 4 2 3 3 3 35 3.08%
3:00 AM 0 3 3 3 3 2 4 3 3 2 1 3 30 2.64%
4:00 AM 3 0 2 2 0 3 1 1 2 3 2 4 23 2.02%
5:00 AM 3 2 2 2 1 3 3 2 2 3 3 3 29 2.55%
6:00 AM 3 2 1 5 1 1 4 2 4 1 2 6 32 2.81%
7:00 AM 4 1 5 3 4 4 5 3 4 5 2 4 44 3.87%
8:00 AM 6 5 5 2 8 3 3 1 3 4 5 3 48 4.22%
9:00 AM 5 5 7 6 5 5 3 3 4 2 6 2 53 4.66%

10:00 AM 3 4 8 6 5 3 1 3 9 5 7 5 59 5.19%
11:00 AM 5 1 8 2 3 6 1 4 3 8 7 7 55 4.84%
12:00 PM 2 2 1 3 1 5 4 2 2 6 5 8 41 3.61%
1:00 PM 5 4 5 6 5 2 2 6 2 9 10 6 62 5.45%
2:00 PM 6 4 1 7 1 5 6 6 5 1 4 7 53 4.66%
3:00 PM 6 6 10 10 5 4 6 4 6 10 4 9 80 7.04%
4:00 PM 11 4 5 7 3 5 9 2 9 6 7 7 75 6.60%
5:00 PM 5 3 6 3 2 3 2 1 5 5 11 10 56 4.93%
6:00 PM 2 5 3 4 10 3 3 10 6 11 5 9 71 6.24%
7:00 PM 10 4 4 5 5 4 4 6 7 5 1 6 61 5.36%
8:00 PM 6 2 3 4 2 6 5 4 1 5 3 6 47 4.13%
9:00 PM 4 3 9 3 0 2 1 5 3 4 2 4 40 3.52%

10:00 PM 2 4 4 4 3 4 5 7 3 4 3 2 45 3.96%
11:00 PM 0 9 3 3 2 4 5 2 1 3 5 1 38 3.34%

Total Responses 98 87 101 97 72 84 85 86 92 106 106 123 1137

2016 North Liberty Fire Department Responses By Day of Week

2016 North Liberty Fire Department Responses By Hour of Day



YTD Hourly
January February March April May June July August September October November December Average

12:00 AM 8 6 6 8 5 6 5 3 3 No Incidents 4 5 5
1:00 AM 5 6 3 8 3 No Incidents 5 4 3 1 4 No Incidents 5
2:00 AM 3 4 4 3 4 3 3 4 4 3 4 4 4
3:00 AM No Incidents 4 4 6 4 5 4 3 3 4 3 3 4
4:00 AM 7 No Incidents 4 5 No Incidents 5 5 5 3 4 3 3 5
5:00 AM 5 3 3 3 5 6 4 3 4 5 5 4 4
6:00 AM 6 3 No Incidents 4 3 4 4 5 5 3 5 4 4
7:00 AM 6 4 6 5 6 5 6 9 3 6 3 5 6
8:00 AM 6 4 7 9 8 7 9 10 6 7 5 6 7
9:00 AM 10 7 10 8 7 5 4 3 5 8 10 9 8

10:00 AM 9 9 8 10 7 8 4 6 6 6 7 7 7
11:00 AM 9 8 7 6 4 9 6 8 5 8 7 8 7
12:00 PM 6 5 12 12 7 7 5 6 7 7 7 8 7
1:00 PM 7 5 4 7 6 7 9 6 6 7 6 8 7
2:00 PM 11 8 7 8 10 8 5 5 5 7 6 6 7
3:00 PM 11 8 6 8 7 9 6 6 4 8 7 8 7
4:00 PM 10 8 10 7 9 8 8 5 6 7 7 9 8
5:00 PM 10 8 9 8 7 8 8 3 9 6 8 9 8
6:00 PM 12 12 13 8 9 9 10 9 6 14 11 8 10
7:00 PM 11 9 15 15 9 8 10 8 9 10 3 9 10
8:00 PM 10 8 11 11 9 10 7 8 9 8 9 9 9
9:00 PM 8 11 11 11 No Incidents 7 9 11 8 7 6 8 9

10:00 PM 8 10 12 9 9 8 7 6 5 5 8 6 8
11:00 PM No Incidents 7 10 6 11 6 6 7 3 6 7 3 7

Monthly Average 9 7 8 8 7 7 6 7 6 8 7 7 7

2016 North Liberty Fire Department Average Turnout per Incident - Time of Day

* Partial percentages are rounded up



Year Percent
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec To Date To Date

Responses for Month 98 87 101 97 72 84 85 86 92 106 106 123 1137
Barney, Mallory 39 18 16 23 17 25 18 35 25 25 28 38 307 27.00%
Bolte, Ty 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6 5 7 18 1.58%
Brumm, Ryan 11 13 9 17 8 9 9 11 7 15 12 12 133 11.70%
Burleson, Lynn 22 15 8 24 17 16 14 26 31 35 17 23 248 21.81%
Chiles, Branden 14 11 20 13 19 13 9 10 13 19 20 24 185 16.27%
Coyle, Jim* 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 2 0.18%
Dickerson, Matt 18 5 6 8 1 2 0 0 14 11 24 17 106 9.32%
Dolezal, Dan 19 13 22 18 11 12 16 6 3 3 0 21 144 12.66%
DuBay, Rob 23 17 29 25 20 26 21 9 0 0 0 0 170 14.95%
Duncan, Robert 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 15 9 12 36 3.17%
English, Joseph 7 5 8 17 9 21 9 1 1 6 26 36 146 12.84%
Hardin, Bryan 14 7 15 11 9 10 6 4 9 12 13 12 122 10.73%
Hofsommer, Greg 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 7 6 26 39 3.43%
Hubler, David 31 23 11 6 34 64 62 62 44 64 40 48 489 43.01%
Jaeger, Jeff 34 12 27 31 14 17 22 23 27 38 32 30 307 27.00%
Johnston, Mike 16 12 17 9 10 6 7 22 4 12 8 18 141 12.40%
Kaduce, Michael 2 9 11 17 11 12 17 10 16 22 17 16 160 14.07%
Keitel, Brad 41 41 36 35 22 28 12 10 17 14 12 12 280 24.63%
Kelchen, Jessica 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 38 23 41 102 8.97%
Kochanny, Chris 35 16 24 31 23 13 17 30 31 28 39 20 307 27.00%
Kramer, Adam 13 4 9 10 11 6 3 8 11 12 14 21 122 10.73%
Lundquist, Jonathan 2 6 12 15 15 18 15 20 14 15 20 25 177 15.57%
McDonald, James 29 29 28 35 20 27 20 25 28 42 23 24 330 29.02%
Messinger, Matt 17 15 15 13 6 12 11 6 15 16 18 29 173 15.22%
Miller, Jordan 25 23 35 30 9 17 17 22 32 41 36 34 321 28.23%
Moliterno, Brad 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 15 16 21 52 4.57%
Newkirk, Richard 25 17 21 22 12 4 9 15 16 10 16 23 190 16.71%
Place, Alexander 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 7 1 5 13 1.14%
Ransom, Eric 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 13 11 27 2.37%
Reasner, Richard 24 15 21 19 18 24 18 13 11 25 7 25 220 19.35%
Rennekamp, Bryan 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 14 13 20 47 4.13%
Rigdon, Zach 11 14 16 15 1 8 9 9 7 13 4 0 107 9.41%
Rocca, Ben 23 19 38 36 10 19 24 9 0 1 2 3 184 16.18%
Ropp, Brian 29 14 20 24 11 22 15 21 13 24 23 42 258 22.69%
Schmooke, Bill 10 3 14 12 10 8 9 13 3 14 19 12 127 11.17%
Schoening, Austin 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 36 28 11 75 6.60%
Schultz, Christine 24 15 32 16 17 15 15 14 11 15 9 10 193 16.97%
Taylor, Ryan 29 13 17 22 12 14 7 12 19 20 4 12 181 15.92%
Voparil, Craig 31 14 28 13 10 16 18 13 14 20 13 21 211 18.56%
White, Geoffery 25 20 25 0 8 9 27 25 23 24 36 26 248 21.81%
Wichmann, Megan 4 12 15 11 9 10 7 10 4 0 11 11 104 9.15%
Williams, Justin 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 13 5 9 27 2.37%
* Fire Dept. Chaplain

2016 North Liberty Fire Department Member Responses By Month



1 Ogden 49 Ogden 52 Ogden 55 Vandewater T 38 Hubler 34 Hubler 64

2 Keitel 41 Keitel 41 Rocca 38 Mashek 36 Ogden 26 Vandewater T 31
Rocca

3 Mallory 39 Mashek 29 Keitel 36 Keitel 35 Kochanny 23 Keitel 28
McDonald McDonald

4 Kochanny 35 Hubler 23 Miller 35 Jaeger 31 Keitel 22 McDonald 27
Mashek Miller Kochanny

5 Jaeger 34 White 20 Mashek 34 Miller 30 DuBay 20 DuBay 26
Ogden McDonald

1 Hubler 64 Hubler 62 Hubler 44 Hubler 64 Hubler 40 Hubler 48

2 Vandewater T 31 Barney 35 Miller 32 McDonald 42 Kochanny 39 Ropp 42

3 Keitel 28 Kochanny 30 Burleson 31 Miller 41 Miller 36 Kelchen 41
Kochanny White

4 McDonald 27 Burleson 26 McDonald 28 Jaeger 38 Jaeger 32 Barney 38
Kelchen

5 DuBay 26 McDonald 25 Jaeger 27 Schoening 36 Barney 28 English 36
White Schoening

1 Hubler
2 McDonald
3 Miller
4 Barney

Jaeger
Kochanny

5 Keitel

2016 - Top 5 Calls Made by Year-To-Date

July

2016 - Top 5 Calls Made by Month
JunMayAprMarJan Feb

DecAug Sep Oct Nov

280 24.63%

43.01%
29.02%
28.23%

489
330
321

27.00%307



Date of
Last Name First Name Hire Years Months Days

1 Hubler Dave 11/06/91 25 1 28
2 Burleson Lynn 03/05/03 13 9 29
3 Hardin Bryan 08/01/03 13 5 2
4 Schmooke Bill 04/01/06 10 9 2
5 Brumm Ryan 09/01/07 9 4 2
6 Dolezal Dan 09/01/07 9 4 2
7 Dubay Rob 09/01/07 9 4 2
8 Kramer Adam 09/01/07 9 4 2
9 Voparil Craig 06/01/08 8 7 2

10 Coyle Jim 05/01/09 7 8 2
11 Jaeger Jeff 08/30/09 7 4 4
12 Johnston Mike 08/30/09 7 4 4
13 Kochanny Chris 08/01/10 6 5 2
14 Newkirk Richard 08/01/10 6 5 2
15 Rigdon Zach 08/01/10 6 5 2
16 Ransom Eric 04/14/11 5 8 20
17 Wichmann Megan 06/27/11 5 6 7
18 White Geoffery 02/04/13 3 10 30
19 Dickerson Matt 04/10/13 3 8 24
20 Messinger Matt 04/10/13 3 8 24
21 English Joseph 12/07/13 3 0 27
22 Miller Jordan 12/07/13 3 0 27
23 Reasner Richard 12/07/13 3 0 27
24 Rocca Ben 04/17/14 2 8 17
25 Lundquist Jonathan 10/12/14 2 2 22
26 Keitel Brad 01/17/15 1 11 17
27 McDonald James 01/17/15 1 11 17
28 Taylor Ryan 01/17/15 1 11 17
29 Barney Mallory 11/01/15 1 2 2
30 Chiles Branden 11/01/15 1 2 2
31 Schultz Christine 11/01/15 1 2 2 Years Months Days
32 Ropp Brian 11/01/15 1 2 2 4 9 16
33 Kaduce Michael 01/24/16 0 11 10
34 Bolte Ty 10/02/16 0 3 1
35 Duncan Robert 10/02/16 0 3 1
36 Hofsommer Gregory 10/02/16 0 3 1
37 Kelchen Jessica 10/02/16 0 3 1
38 Moliterno Brad 10/02/16 0 3 1
39 Place Alexander 10/02/16 0 3 1
40 Rennekamp Bryan 10/02/16 0 3 1
41 Schoening Austin 10/02/16 0 3 1
42 Williams Justin 10/02/16 0 3 1

Average Length of Service

2016 Member Length of Service
Length of Service



2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Total Total Total Total Total Total
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Average Average Average Average Average Average

North Liberty 8:41 9:19 8:35 8:56 10:15 8:50 10:27 9:36 10:43 9:03 9:40 9:58 9:31 9:45 9:52 10:14 9:44 9:29
Madison Township 11:04 9:45 13:47 13:46 12:21 14:57 16:42 16:44 7:57 13:54 11:54 15:39 13:12 14:38 13:22 13:21 12:35 13:11
Penn Township 13:19 13:32 13:57 11:07 14:06 15:27 12:40 12:45 11:44 12:39 8:06 11:57 11:55 13:08 12:40 12:32 12:24 12:39

Year
Jan Feb March April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec To Date

Coralville 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 1 5
Hills 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Iowa City 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Lone Tree 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Oxford 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Riverside 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Solon 0 0 0 1 2 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 4
Swisher 0 0 0 2 4 2 5 0 0 0 0 0 13
Tiffin 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
W. Branch 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total 0 1 0 3 6 3 5 0 1 3 0 1 23

Year
Jan Feb March April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec To Date

Coralville 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Hills 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Iowa City 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Lone Tree 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Oxford 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1
Riverside 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Solon 2 0 1 0 0 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 9
Swisher 0 1 1 1 3 3 8 2 2 0 0 0 21
Tiffin 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
W. Branch 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total 2 1 2 1 3 3 10 2 4 0 2 1 31

2016 North Liberty Fire Department Provided Aid
Johnson County MABAS

2016 North Liberty Fire Department Average Response Time By District
(Dispatch Time to First Apparatus Arrival Time, Code 2 & 3 Responses)

(Excludes Mutual Aid and Cancelled Enroute Responses)

2016 North Liberty Fire Department Received Aid
Johnson County MABAS



North 
Liberty 
80% 

Madison 
Township 

7% 

Penn 
Township 

10% 

Mutual 
Aid 
3% 

2016 District Responses YTD 
 (Rounded Percentage) 

911 

80 114 
32 

0

200

400

600

800

1000

North Liberty Madison
Township

Penn
Township

Mutual Aid

2016 District Responses YTD 
(Number) 

29 
3 

612 
19 

68 
222 

182 
0 
2 

0 200 400 600 800

100 - Fire

200 - Over Pressure, Overheat

300 - EMS

400 - Hazardous Condition

500 - Service Call

600 - Good Intent Call

700 - False Alarm & False Call

800 - Severe Weather

900 - Special Incident Type

2016 Type of Incidents YTD (Number) 

100 - Fire 
3% 

200 - Over 
Pressure, 
Overheat 

0% 300 - EMS 
54% 

400 - Hazardous 
Condition 

2% 

500 - Service 
Call 
6% 

600 - Good 
Intent Call 

19% 

700 - False 
Alarm & False 

Call 
16% 

800 - Severe 
Weather 

0% 

900 - Special 
Incident Type 

0% 

2016 Type of Incidents YTD  
(Rounded Percentage) 



0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

0:00

1:00

2:00

3:00

4:00

5:00

6:00

7:00

8:00

9:00

10:00

11:00

12:00

13:00

14:00

15:00

16:00

17:00

18:00

19:00

20:00

21:00

22:00

23:00
2016 Calls Per Hour - Year To Date 



0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

0:00

1:00

2:00

3:00

4:00

5:00

6:00

7:00

8:00

9:00

10:00

11:00

12:00

13:00

14:00

15:00

16:00

17:00

18:00

19:00

20:00

21:00

22:00

23:00
2016 YTD Average Turnout per Incident - Time of Day 



162 
153 158 162 

152 

203 

147 

0

50

100

150

200

250

Day of Week

2016 Responses by Day of Week 

Sunday

Monday

Tuesday

Wednesday

Thursday

Friday

Saturday



98 

87 

101 
97 

72 

84 85 86 

92 

106 106 

123 

81 

61 

72 

90 

79 

93 

86 

100 

84 84 
82 

71 
73 

66 

80 

71 

95 

75 

84 84 

77 

83 
80 

92 

58 59 

66 

76 

70 

81 

111 

87 

62 

69 
71 

75 

64 

57 

45 

52 52 

70 71 

63 

52 

62 

54 

70 

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

January February March April May June July August September October November December

2012 - 2016 Monthly Comparison 

2016

2014

2013

2012

2011



# of
Month/Year Incidents

1) 12/2016 123
2) 07/2012 111
3) 10/2016 106
4) 03/2016 101
5) 09/2015 100

08/2014
6) 01/2016 98
7) 04/2016 97
8) 05/2013 95
9) 08/2015 93

06/2014
10) 09/2016 92

12/2013

North Liberty Top Ten # of Incidents / Month



January February March April May June July August September October November December Total
2012 58 59 66 76 70 81 111 87 62 69 71 75 885
2013 73 66 80 71 95 75 84 84 77 83 80 92 960
2014 81 61 72 90 79 93 86 100 84 84 82 71 983
2015 84 77 85 74 85 91 87 93 100 78 91 76 1021
2016 98 87 101 97 72 84 85 86 92 106 106 123 1137

January February March April May June July August September October November December Total
2012 44 47 54 64 52 58 80 71 53 56 58 64 701
2013 56 54 69 57 82 61 61 65 67 74 58 69 773
2014 74 49 63 64 52 65 64 78 70 69 71 61 780
2015 69 61 66 53 62 72 64 77 79 65 73 62 803
2016 80 75 80 80 57 65 58 73 71 86 84 102 911

January February March April May June July August September October November December Total
2012 7 5 6 7 4 9 14 7 4 6 7 9 85
2013 9 6 4 8 7 7 18 14 6 4 11 9 103
2014 2 6 5 11 14 19 8 17 10 10 4 7 113
2015 5 11 11 9 12 8 11 7 9 5 13 8 109
2016 13 5 10 10 6 9 8 6 10 14 10 13 114

January February March April May June July August September October November December Total
2012 7 7 4 5 7 9 7 4 5 6 4 0 65
2013 7 6 5 2 5 6 5 4 4 4 9 13 70
2014 5 6 3 10 9 9 12 3 4 5 7 3 76
2015 9 4 5 9 11 10 12 5 10 4 4 6 89
2016 3 6 9 6 6 7 9 5 6 6 10 7 80

January February March April May June July August September October November December Total
2012 0 0 2 0 7 5 10 5 0 1 2 2 34
2013 1 0 2 4 1 1 0 1 0 1 2 1 14
2014 1 0 1 5 4 0 2 2 0 0 0 0 15
2015 1 1 3 3 0 1 0 4 2 4 1 0 20
2016 2 1 2 1 3 3 10 2 5 0 2 1 32

2012 - 2016 Mutual Aid Responses

2012 - 2016 Total Incidents Per Month

2012 - 2016 City of North Liberty Responses

2012 - 2016 Penn Township Responses

2012 - 2016 Madison Township Responses



TO: City Administrator and City Council 
FROM: Jennie Garner, Library Director  

DATE: Jan. 5, 2017 

SUBJECT: December 2016 Library Monthly Report 
 

November At a Glance  
Door Count 11775 
Computer Usage  2399 
Database Use 1749 
Meeting Room Use 548 

Average Daily Library Visits 

 

Programming, Events and News 
December was a quieter month with holidays and three days closed for City Holidays but the 
there was still plenty happening in the library. Our second Autism Browsing Night was well 
attended with over 30 people. A thank you to North Liberty Police and Fire Departments for 
coming out to visit.  

Our Adult Services Librarian, Elaine, has been working with local agencies who serve special 
needs adults to implement some programming at the library. We see several groups a week 
using the library and felt that this was an opportunity to expand services for this population. The 
new program, Integration in Motion, will offer gaming, crafts, and social interaction for adults in 
our community with special needs.  

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

N
um

be
r o

f V
is

ito
rs

 

Sunday

Monday

Tuesday

Wednesday

Thursday

Friday

Saturday



The family services and youth and teen services librarians offered the first family Noon Year’s 
Eve program on December 30. They had a huge turnout with over 260 people attending. There 
are already plans in the works to offer this again next year but we’ll need to find a larger space! 
Luckily our patrons are very patient and seemed to enjoy the activities, which included a visit 
from Queen Elsa, noisemaker craft, and a balloon drop. 

The City is again participating in the Severson Challenge with other area organizations. Our 
Technology Services Librarian, Janet Lubben, agreed to take the lead on the challenge for City 
of North Liberty staff to encourage different city departments to participate and coming up with 
some small weekly contests to make for friendly competition. 

The annual report that is sent to the State Library of Iowa is complete and library administration 
will be working this month on a community report that should be released soon. In the 
meantime, here’s a comparison snapshot of statistics with you from North Liberty. We were just 
discussing some trends in libraries with local leaders at our Johnson County Legislative 
Reception, many are seeing a rise in program attendance and library visits but a slight decline in 
circulation from FY15 to FY16. As you can see, FY17 is surpassing the numbers from last year. 
We are at over 50 percent of the statistics in the first six months of our totals last year: 

 

 

Totals July 
Through 
December 
2016 

Last Year’s 
Totals 

Percentage 

Audio 2315 4342 53.32 

DVD 16045 27810 57.70 

Total 
Adult 

14589 21522 67.79 

Total 
Primary 

19495 30969 62.95 

Total 
Juvenile 

8336 13670 60.98 

Total 
Teen 

2371 4306 55.06 

Cakepans 383 762 50.26 

 

! 



December Highlights: 
Some pictures of the fun we’ve had on the next 
two pages. 

 
 

  

Some of the Annual Family 
Gingerbread House Contest 
entrees and the winners 
(bottom left) 

Progress on the lactation room 



 

Noon Year’s Eve Fun 



 
 
 
To: Mayor and City Council 
 Parks and Recreation Commission 
 City Administrator 
 
From: Guy Goldsmith, Director of Parks, Building and Grounds  
 
Date: January 3, 2017 
 
Re:    Monthly Report 
 
 
We performed building maintenance as needed this month.  The Ranshaw House 
at 515 Penn Street required boiler preventative maintenance by the Parks 
Department.  
 
 
We removed snow and ice from City parking lots, sidewalks and trails this past 
month. 
  
 
We picked up trash and pet waste stations as needed.  With the mild weather this 
past month there was considerable usage of the trash and dog stations.   

 
 
We maintained equipment as needed this month.  We performed preventative 
maintenance and repaired winter equipment as time permitted.  We continue to 
prepare for the upcoming growing season by performing preventative maintenance 
and repairs to ball field maintenance, mowing, trimming and landscaping 
equipment.  
 
 
The Tree City USA recertification application was received and approved by the 
State Forestry Department.  We have received this award as a Tree City USA for 
the past 22 years. This helps us obtain other tree grant funding.  
 
 
We were selected to receive a $1000 Trees Please Grant from MidAmerican 
Energy to plant additional trees at the Fox Valley subdivision common area next 
season. 
 
 
We continue to organize and clean-up our shop and pesticide storage area. 
 
 
We continue to review the Parks FY1718 budget and capital projects items to 
prepare for the next fiscal year. 
 



North Liberty Police 
Monthly Report 
December 2016 

 
 

Training: 
 

• Two officers attended the OC instructor re-
certification school at ILEA  (16 hours) 

• Supervisors assisted in the planning for next 
month’s county wide mandatory training.(MATS) 

 
Public Relations: 
 
• The department participated in the City Wide 

Severson Challenge to collect and donate food to 
the NL Food Pantry.  Our participation increases 
every year.    

• Held the 2nd Annual Shop with a cop.  We had 7 
North Liberty families that shopped with officers 
for their immediate family members and a couple 
of surprise gifts from Santa. The funds used are 
from fingerprints, donations, and $800 grant from 
Wal-Mart.  

• Chief was on a panel of police officers at Kirkwood 
Community College.  

• Several officers attended the annual City Holiday Party.   
• Holiday Spirit- 24 $3 Jimmy John Gift Cards were donated to the PD.  The officers wanted to 

pay it forward and sent out to find people doing things right to earn a gift card.  The patrol 
officers handed out the gift cards.  

• Blue Hearts of Johnson County hosted a breakfast with Santa fundraiser at Hills bank and 
officers working stopped in for the event. This group is made up of area law enforcements 
wives, girlfriends and significant others. 

• Received donations for the K9 program from the Colony Pumpkin Patch ($2300), Fox 
Engineering ($2500), William and Mary Ann Dorst ($200), and Terry and Roberta Donahue 
($100).  SYNcere printing also donated money ($250) from the proceeds of their sales. We 
have received donations in the total amount of $6550 since October.     

• Travis Clubb completed one child safety seat inspection.     
• Planning continues for the Polar Plunge in February with Beat the Bitter events. Officer Ben 

Campbell did a test plunge this month and it was posted on social media sites.  
• The chief agreed to be a part of an online Career Spotlight Opportunity for Girl Scouts of 

America in Eastern Iowa.  This will be an ongoing effort to be available for answers about 
planning and recommendations in a career in policing for young girls.  

• Sgt. Regenwether taught a prevention and alcohol compliance class to 18 employees at the 
request of J&A tap. Employees also got to test and try on beer goggles. Part of this training 
is to feel the effects of being impaired and seeing the clues of being impaired.       

 
Equipment:                                                                                                       
 
• We have inventoried evidence collection equipment and purchased replacement for expired 

testing kits.    

  
Traffic Contacts 381 

Parking Contacts 64 
Vehicle Inspections 21 

Vehicle Unlocks 32 
Crash Investigations 23 

Public Assists 310 
Assist Other Agency 117 

    Crimes Against Persons Report 10 
      Crimes Against Property Report 20 
                                   Other Reports 25 
                                              Arrests 36 
                                           Warrants  1 

Alcohol/Narcotics Charges 18 
Crimes Against Persons Charges 4 
Crimes Against Property Charges 9 

Other Charges 14 
Animal Calls 27 

Total Calls for Service 1908 
*Total Calls for Service for the year 21276 



 
 
 
North Liberty Police Monthly Report Continuation --- December 2016 

 

• We had a patrol car that was damaged in a rear/side collision. The officer was not at fault 
and insurance for the other driver has approved the repair. Total repair for the patrol car 
$1480.   

• Officers will be receiving a second full size badge that identifies themselves as a North 
Liberty Police Officer. This will be for their ID and badge lanyard that can be used on or off 
duty, if the need should arise for immediate identification.   

• Continue testing, planning and preparing for the integration model for the body worn 
cameral upgrade that will be happening in the next few months from the federal grant. We 
have completed our wear test and will be selecting L3 as the vendor. This is currently who 
we have for all in car video and some past body camera systems.    
 
 

Enforcement: 
 
• Officers followed up on the first snow emergency declaration.  52 parking tickets were 

issued. December had the highest number of parking tickets for the year. 
• We continued to receive complaints of multiple identity theft, credit card fraud, or thefts from 

during this time of the year.  Officers apprehended and charge some individuals associated 
with these types of crime this month.       
 
 

Department Admin:     
 

• For officers received a letter of commendation for outstanding police work in identifying and 
capturing robbery suspects last month.  

• Officer Travis Clubb was selected as the 2016 Officer of the year for attention to detail, 
guardian mentality, locating felony suspects, being a role model and trainer for new officers, 
positive attitude and the time he has taken on his off duty time to make sure kids ride in 
properly installed car seats. 

• Continue to work with the ongoing policy migration with Lexipol. Several officers and the 
chief are involved in this project. 

• Bid shifts were sent out to all union employees for changes that would happen January 1st.  
• New forms are being developed for new requirements and reporting in in domestic assault 

investigations, travel per diems, and operation planning for serving high risk warrants.  
• Annual evaluations were completed for all employees by the end of the month.   We did this 

because shifts and supervisor were changed starting January 1st.    
 

 
Respectfully Submitted by Chief Diane Venenga and Alisha Ruffcorn 1/5/2017 
 
 
 
 



To:  Mayor and City Council 

From:  Michael Pentecost, Street Superintendent 

Re:  December 2016 Monthly Report 

January 4, 2016 

The following items took place in the month of December that involved the Streets Department. 

• Locating of City Utilities (218 job tickets) ongoing 
• Cemetery plot locates ( 3 in total) 
• Continued animal control services (responded to 12 animal issues) 
• Prioritized and mapped out streets for clearing of snow and sanding 

a. Separated city into  
i. Primary Arterials 
ii. Collector 

iii. Neighborhood Collector 
iv. Local Streets 

b. Divided city into zones for each snow plow driver (Goal to expedite clearing of streets)  
• Total of 4 December snow events that where mainly on the weekends lasting multiple days 

a. Cleared streets and snow blowed drifting areas back to make room for more snow 
b. Tested the use of pre-wetting roads with brine in areas of the city 
c. Hauled sand to bunker to replace material used 
d. Put rock chip on gravel roads (for added traction when icy and not melting) 

• Continued departmental equipment maintenance, service and repair  (snow season is hard on 
equipment) 

• Continued meetings with IDOT and city staff in regards to I380 and Forevergreen Rd overpass 
a. Traffic signal collaboration meeting with IDOT, North Liberty, Coralville and Iowa City 
b. Emergency communication meeting with involved Corridor agencies 

• Continued meetings with Shive-Hattery on upcoming 2017 projects 
a. Salt brine production building (on the Public Works campus) 
b. Penn Street 

i. Alliant Energy is currently boring electric underground 
ii. Mediacom is doing the same for fiber 

c. North Liberty Road  
i. Meet with Johnson County Board of Supervisors in efforts to secure partial 

funding for project 
ii. Project opened up for bids 

• New full time employee Michael Werle started mid-month 
• Training for all departmental employees “Defensive Driving” at North Liberty Recreation Center 
• Street light repair  

a. Cherry Street  
b. Liberty Way (LED bulb change over in some fixtures to be more energy efficient) 

 



• Jetted sewer mains in problematic restaurant areas to avoid sewer backups 
• Installed street signs 

a.  Dahnovan Estates (10 street IDs and 2 stop signs) 
b. Rachael Street (6 No Parking) 
c. Repaired 3 signs damaged by vehicles 

• North Liberty Rd activity 
a. Fiber optics conduit and cable being installed on S. Dubuque St. and N. Liberty Rd. 
b. Inspected/videoed sewer mains for mud on N. Liberty Rd. using City of North Liberty 

camera trailer unit 
c. Continued work with contractors at N. Liberty Rd. lift station 

• Continued FY 2018 budget planning 

 



Communications Department Report  
Submitted to the North Liberty City Council 
Jan. 4, 2017 for the month of December 2016 

Beat the Bitter 
Registration for the second annual Beat the Bitter opened on Dec. 5, 2016. Events include an 
adult program at the library, fireworks and other family activities Friday night, a 5K-ish obstacle 
run, snow volleyball, bags and kickball tournaments, a Snuggie crawl and a plunge into icy West 
Lake to support the NLPD’s K9 program. Staff hosted a promotional booth on Dec. 3, and spent 
time in December finalizing details and producing marketing, including a “Teach Me How to 
Snuggie” promo parody and test run of the NLPD’s polar jump on video for social media as well 
as radio appearances and interviews. Registration is on pace through December, and prices for 
registration increase on Jan. 10, 2017. Information and registration is available on 
beatthebitter.com. The event is scheduled for Feb. 3 and 4, 2017. 

City Administrator with the NLPD 
As part of the city’s employee campaign for the United Way, Ryan Heiar vowed to work a half 
shift in the department with the most votes (employees donated money for each vote). The police 
department won and Megan spent the overnight shift documenting Ryan’s work into the morning 
of Dec. 1, producing the video (on a tight turnaround) to show at the employee holiday potluck as 
well as on social media. The video is viewable here: https://vimeo.com/195024799 

Carousel and Digital Signage 
Megan has grown comfortable with our new Carousel server and staff is preparing to implement 
the indoor digital signage in the coming year. A first player, which we’ll use to troubleshoot 
before full deployment, is on order and expected to arrive in late January or early February. 
Initially, we expect to deploy the signage in the Community Center lobby above the desk as well 
as at City Hall. 

Photography and video library management 
As our photo and video libraries have grown, our need to find more flexible management has 
increased. Nick began exploring a variety options, such as Libris, Photoshelter and others, in 
December.  

Convention and Visitors’ Bureau annual luncheon 
Staff attended the Convention and Visitor’s Bureau annual luncheon, where Guy Goldsmith, the 
city’s director of parks, buildings and grounds was recognized (it was a surprise to him). Staff 
helped prepare a presentation for City Administrator Ryan Heiar to give at the lunch. 

United Way video collaboration 

https://vimeo.com/195024799


Megan and Jillian met with staff from the United Way of Johnson and Washington Counties about 
helping produce a promotional video for the organization. We’ve reached out to Coralville and 
Iowa City’s production teams, who are interested in working with us on this project. United Way 
staff are putting together a script this month. 

Story Time 
Megan is preparing to begin shooting and playing the North Liberty Community Library’s regular 
Wednesday story times. In December, she met with staff and watched a story time to get a sense 
of the best way to shoot and began to build a new After Effects intro for the show. 

Other 

We produced and submitted City Council meetings to the Iowa City government channel. 

Staff began work on evaluations, which will be finalized in January.  

Staff represented the City of North Liberty at meetings of the following: the United Way of 
Johnson and Washington Counties campaign cabinet, Iowa City/Coralville Convention and 
Visitors’ Bureau partner advisory committee, Iowa City Area Chamber of Commerce North Liberty 
steering committee, Think Bicycles Johnson County bike month committee.   

We sent news releases about the city’s holiday hours, the PD’s I-PLEDGE inititive, on-street parking 
and winter weather warnings and more. 

Social media  
Month Facebook  

 new likes 
Facebook  

reach (28 days) 
Twitter  

 new follows 
Twitter 

impressions 
Instagram net 
 new follows 

December 2016 51 59,538 29 17,800 14 (874) 
November 2016 48 50,690 36 12,700 17 (860) 
October 2016 79 74,835 42 30,300 19 (843) 
September 2016 64 62,860 52 25,000 21 (824) 
August 2016 84 74,265 55 29,500 82 (803) 
July 2016 110 83,551 70 16,500  124 (721) 
June 2016 217 66,227 92 25,400  89 (597) 
May 2016 112 54,190 55 37,800 46 (508) 
April 2016 122 62,193 30 24,500 43 (462) 
March 2016 139 41,479 43 26,200 41 (419) 

Website Statistics (Current month and preceding 12) 
Month Sessions Users Pageviews Pages/Session Avg. Session 
December 2016 12,687 9,167 29,048 2.29 1:30 
November 2016 13,679 9,930 28,603 2.09 1:25 
October 2016 18,311 12,813 35,906 1.96 1:25 
September 2016 14,139 10,256 30,028 2.12 1:30 



August 2016 21,915 15,496 42,191 1.93 1:22 
July 2016 21,164 15,123 40,525 1.91 1:22 
June 2016 23,761 16,469 47,658 2.01 1:27 
May 2016 19,917 14,231 39,812 2.00 1:22 
April 2016 16,898 12,044 36,230 2.14 1:38 
March 2016 19,400 14,590 37,648 1.94 1:18 
February 2016 13,444 9,722 29,899 2.22 1:40 
January 2016 15,994 11,582 34,566 2.16 1:33 
December 2015 14,596 10,984 28,898 1.98 1:19 

Completed Shoots 
Title Requested By Date Shot Duration 
Parks and Recreation City Administration Dec. 1 0:29 
Telecommunication Commission City Administration Dec. 5 0:32 
Planning and Zoning City Administration Dec. 6 0:18 
Board of Adjustment City Administration Dec. 7 0:25 
Ryan Heiar Heads to the NLDP City Administration Dec. 8 0:04 
City Council City Administration Dec. 13 2:13 
Peace Poster Contest Lions Club Dec. 15 0:01 
Beat the Bitter social promo Beat the Bitter Dec. 16 0:01 
Library Board of Trustees City Administration Dec. 19 0:46 
City Council City Administration Dec. 27 0:41 
Total shoots: 10 Duration of new video: 5.5 hours 

 

 



 

 

City of North Liberty 
3 Quail Creek Circle 

PO Box 77 
North Liberty, IA 52317 

 
 
 

Phone: 319-626-5738 
Fax: 319-626-5739 

northlibertyiowa.org 

 Water Pollution 
Control Plant 

Iowa 
TO:  City Council, Mayor and City Administrator 
 
FROM:  Dave Ramsey 
 
DATE:  January 3, 2017 
 
SUBJECT:  December 2016 Water Pollution Control Plant (WPCP) Report 
 
1. All scheduled preventative maintenance at the plant and lift stations was completed. 

Staff stayed very busy with numerous operational jobs throughout the month.  Recent       
IDNR lab rule changes now require staff to spend an additional 6-10 hours per week 
in the lab.  The dewatering building operations and maintenance adds 20 man hours 
per week.  The current maintenance department consists of only two maintenance 
specialists.  The plant expansion doubles the work load in the maintenance 
department.  In order to maintain the plant at its current high standards, I will need at 
least four additional employees which I have included in my proposed budget 
requests for the next two fiscal years.   
  

2. This month’s staff safety training was safety policy review.  The department 
completed its annual Respiratory fit testing and hearing tests. 

 
3. We held our 18th construction meeting on the WPCP Phase 2 expansion project.  We 

are working with the general contractor and Fox Engineering on a daily basis to keep 
the project moving forward while trying our best to minimize change orders and 
related costs.  Overall the project is going very well. 

 
4. The yearly updates of our hazardous chemicals list, SDS sheets, chemical location 

map, and lab emergency action plan were all completed. 
 

5. Replaced the grit pump in the pretreatment building.  This piece of equipment was 
not in the Phase 2 plans.  This equipment removes large qualities of inorganic grit 
material before the biological treatment process. 

 
Dave Ramsey 
WPCP Superintendent 



 
 
To: Mayor and City Council 
 
From: Greg Metternich, Water Superintendent  
 
Re: Monthly Report 
 
January 4, 2017 
 
 
 
We read 8,134 radio reads last month that’s an increase of 11 accounts. We had to re-read 
approximately 62 accounts.    
 
We delivered 190 shut off notices and shut off approximately 30 overdue accounts for non-
payment last month.     
 
In the month of December we treated a total of 33,297,000 gallons of water, our average daily 
flow was 1,074,000 gallons a day, and our maximum daily flow was 1,252,000 gallons. The total 
for the month was 2.9% higher than last year.    
 
Northway Well and Pump spent the last three weeks scrubbing, acidizing, and disinfecting the 
ASR well. Once the cleaning process was finished we gained over 200gpm in the well, as soon 
as the bacteria samples come back we will start the injection process, it will take us until the end 
of April to inject 39,000,000 gallons.  
 
We spent a great deal of time last month working on well issues. Well 5 had the raw water main 
break right at the meter pit, we had to completely remove the meter and the pit and replace about 
12 feet of 6 inch water main. The meter pit will be replaced as part of the upcoming raw water 
project. Last week the 300hp VFD drive for well 5 failed and had to be replaced, the drive is 
being replaced under warranty. Well 6 had drive issues as well, the larger VFD drives had to be 
installed with sinewave filters and the filter failed.     
 
Gingrich drilled down to 130 feet and installed the top three sections of casing on the new Jordan 
well. They moved their equipment over and drilled the Silurian. The acidizing process was 
finished just before the new year. Their sub-contractor started working on both wells 3 and 4. 
They removed the pump and the pit-less units from both sites and are preparing to install the new 
casings.   
 
We continue to stay busy collecting curb box location information, installing new meters and 
RF’s, we’ve had several meter change outs this month.      
 
 
Water Superintendent 
Greg Metternich 



North Liberty Parks & Recreation Committee Meeting 
Thursday, January 5, 2017 

Proposal of Agenda 
 

 
REGULAR MEETING: 7:00PM  
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
 
1. Approve minutes from meeting (s) of:  Minutes from December 1 meeting. 
       
2. Public Comments/Concerns:  Open to public for comments and concerns;  
     5 minutes per person time limit. 
 
3. Building & Grounds Report:  Parks Monthly Report 
 
4. Indoor Pool Deck:   Work is complete, please stop by and check out the new look.  

Many positive compliments being received.  
 

5. Winter/Spring Programs:  Many programs have stared this week or will next week. 
     Busy time of year for track, gymnasiums, weight & exercise area. 
 
6. Aquatic Pool Master Plan:  Joint Meeting with City Council and Water’s Edge Aquatic Master Plan presentation  
     Date/Time: To be determined. 
 
7. Any new issues not on the agenda?  
      
 
OLD BUSINESS: 
 

1. Recreation Monthly Report: Report included in packet summarizing the past month. 
 

2. Any old business not on agenda? 
 

 
CONCLUSION:  
 
1. Next Meeting Thursday, February 2, 2017 at 7:00 PM  

Location: City Council Chambers at 1 Quail Creek Circle 
 

2. Adjourn 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

North Liberty Parks & Recreation Committee Meeting 
Thursday, December 1, 2016 

Board Members Present:    Jef Farland, Jami Maxson, Scott Stahmer, RaQuishia Harrington. Matthew Eckhardt, Bonnie Pitz 
Others Present:  Guy Goldsmith, Shelly Simpson and Tim Hamer 
Meeting called to order: 6:57 pm 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
 

1.  Approve minutes:  Minutes from October 6 meeting approved. (No quorum for  meeting in November) 
 

2. Building and Grounds Report: Penn Meadows shelter complete.  Spent time winterizing, including new splash pad and 
concession stand.  MidAmercian Energy cut down many trees along trail on Zeller to protect high pressure gas mains.  City 
was responsible for removing the debris - took approximately 50 dump truck loads.  Budget and capital improvement plan was 
submitted.  Guy is hoping for approval for another staff person, to be able to have 2 landscape crews. 

3.  Indoor Pool Deck:  Work has begun already.  Quartz flooring on high traffic area and 'Life Floor' (rubber tile like) inside railing 
to water's edge. 

 
4.  Winter/Spring brochure: Programs offered January-April 2017.  Brochure already online registration starts week of Dec. 5. 
  
5. Facility Holiday hours:  Closed Dec 24, Dec 25, Jan 1.  On Dec 23, Dec 26, Dec 30, Dec 31, Jan 2 full time staff have 

holiday, part time staff cover facility which will be open 8am-6pm those days. 
 
6.  Aquatic Pool Master Plan:  Will soon have Water's Edge summary report, hope to then have joint meeting with City Council.  
 
 

OLD BUSINESS: 
1.  Recreation Monthly Report: Increase use of weight and exercise area with colder weather. 
 

 
CONCLUSION: 
 
        1. Next Meeting  Thursday January 5, 2016 at 7:00PM 
    Location: City Council Chambers at 1 Quail Creek Circle 
 

2.  Adjourned at 7:24 pm 
 

 Minutes submitted by Jami Maxson 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
To:  Park & Recreation Commission Board Members 
  Mayor, City Council and City Administrator 
From:  Shelly Simpson, Recreation Director 
Date:  January 4, 2017 
Re:  Monthly Report – December 2016 
 

Program Summaries – December         
Swim Lessons:  

November session of swim lessons: Canceled due to poll deck resurfacing project; pool closed. 
     

Pool Programs:  Indoor Pool was closed from Nov. 28-Dec. 18 for floor resurfacing; income below reflects Dec. 19-31. 
 
 Water Fitness:  Early Bird Aqua Aerobics:  Class resumes in March. 
    Easy Does It:    $ 128.00 
    Water Resistance AM $ 120.00   
    Aqua Boot Camp:  $ -0- 
    Arthritis Foundation Aqua: $ 147.00 
    Noodle Triathlon Workout: $ -0-  
 
Preschool:   

Kids Campsite:  706 participants; (Dec. 1-31) 
Lucky Duck:  Held on Tues & Thurs mornings, this session $ 8.00 collected 
Wiggle Worms:  9 participants, plus walk-ins 
Wiggle Together:  2 participants, plus walk-ins 
Stroller Strides:  AM – 2 participants, plus drop-ins 

PM = 1 participant, plus drop-ins 
Kinder Club – Tues. 3 participants, plus drop-ins 
Pop-up Makerspace: Dec. 27 = 7 participants  

 Christmas Crafts:  Canceled due to lack of enrollment. 
 
 
Youth Programs:   

Recsters BASP:   AM = 14 participants; PM = 50 participants  
All-Days:  Dec. 22 = 7; Dec. 27 & 28 = 9; Dec. 29=10; Dec. 30 = 12; Jan. 3 = 17; Jan. 4 = 12 participants 

 
Youth Sports: 

Tae Kwon Do M/TH: No participants this month 
Tae Kwon Do T/W: 7 participants, plus walk-ins  

 
Adult Sports/Programs:        
 Basketball:  Package $105; Drop-in $494; totals $599.00    

Pickleball:  Package $165; Drop-in $544; totals $709.00 
Volleyball:  Package $ 10; Drop-in $40; totals $50.00  
 
Adult Basketball:  Leagues resume in January 
Co-ed Volleyball:  Leagues resume in January 
 
   

Adult Fitness:  
 Cardio Pump:  5 participants, plus walk-ins. 

Kickboxing PM:   2 participants, plus walk-ins.  
Boot Camp:  Walk-ins only.  
Abs, Buttocks, Core: Walk-ins only. 
Lower Body Blast: Walk-ins only. 
Body Blast:  1 participant, plus walk-ins. 
Core Fusion:  1 participant, plus walk-ins. 



Personal Training: This month totals: Kris C, Rachel, Denise; $-0-  
     
 
Senior Citizens:  

Senior Dining: December 2 = 15 participants 
   December 9 = 10 participants 
   December 16 = 12 participants 
   December 23 = No senior dining; city holiday observed. 
   December 30 = No senior dining; city holiday observed 
   Total for month: 37 participants    
  
Special Events:  Bingo Night:  36 participants 
   Breakfast With Santa: 369 participants 
   Vendor Fair:  28 vendors 
       
ActiveNet Totals: Gross Income (December) = $ 73,500.16 
 
 Residency 
Breakdown          

 

December 1-31, 2016            
Package Residents  Non-residents  Total   

Track Package 135  98  233 vs. Nov = 104    
       

Daily Fees           
December 1-31, 2016       
Daily Weight 1,087  152  1,239 vs. Nov = 756  
Senior Daily Weight 243  46  289 vs. Nov = 205    
Sub Total 1,330  198  1,528 vs. Nov = 961   

Pool       
December 1-31, 2016 Adult  Youth/Seniors  Total  
Daily Fees 211  330  541 vs. Nov = 554 

 


	City Administrator Memo
	Agenda 
	Consent Agenda 
	FY 2016 Audit Report 
	O'Reilly's Auto Parts Site Plan 
	Ogden Agreement 
	North Liberty Road Project 
	Telecommunications Commission Ordinance 
	Additional Information 



